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Gibson Energy is a large midstream energy company in North America with opera-
tions in some of the most hydrocarbon-rich basins in the world.

For over 60 years, Gibsons has provided market access to the leading oil and gas companies in Western Canada. By
diversifying our service offerings and expanding geographically, we continue to meet our customers’ needs in key hy-
drocarbon producing regions throughout North America. Our unparalleled service level is what sets us apart from our
competitors and we strive to provide hands-on service between the producer and end-user.

Our integrated operations allow us to participate in the full midstream energy value chain. We transport millions of bar-
rels of energy products each year by pipeline, trucks and rail through our strategically located terminals in Hardisty and
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada, and through our injection stations and small terminals in the United States.

Gibsons' diversified service offering includes terminals, storage, blending, processing, marketing and distribution of
crude oil, condensate, natural gas liquids, and refined products. We also provide emulsion treating, water disposal and
oilfield waste management services in Canada and the U.S.

,
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2014 RESULTS AND HIGHLIGHTS

Gibsons has a strong corporate culture that sees value in strategic planning and prides itself on the effective delivery
of its goals and objectives over time. In 2014, we continued to execute on our plans.

= Demonstrated strong safety and operational performance;

= Achieved record annual adjusted EBITDA of $453 million, a 6% increase over 2013;

= Expended $352 million of growth capital in 2014, a 99% increase over the prior year;

= Successfully commissioned our pipeline connection from Gibsons’ Hardisty Terminal to the USD Group’s crude oil
unit train rail loading facility at Hardisty, Alberta;

= Completed two new tanks on the east side of the Hardisty Terminal resulting in an 800,000 barrel increase in capacity;

= Constructed and commissioned a processing, recovery and disposal (PRD) facility in North Dakota, along with
a co-located licensed landfill. Both of these facilities are expected to provide stable production-related revenue
sources for the Environmental Services segment;

=  Completed the acquisition of Cal-Gas Inc. for $96 million and Stittco Energy Limited for $32 million. Combined,
these transactions contributed to making Gibsons the largest industrial propane company in western Canada;

= Completed an offering of Senior Unsecured Notes totaling $300 million aggregate principal amount of 5.375%
Senior Unsecured Notes, due July 15, 2022 issued at par, and U.S.$50 million aggregate principal amount of
6.75% Senior Unsecured Notes, due July 15, 2021 at an issue price of 108% of par;

=  Amended the terms of our $500 million secured revolving credit facility to, among other things, release all security
required by the lenders, and to extend the maturity date from June 2018 to August 2019;

= Declared total dividends of $149 million ($1.20/share) in 2014 compared to $134 million ($1.10/share), in 2013;

= Increased distributable cash flow to $265 million resulting in a gross dividend payout ratio of 56% and a net divi-
dend payout ratio of 42%, after considering our DRIP participation level; and

= Increased our quarterly dividend by 7% to $0.32 cents per common share in conjunction with the release of our
year-end 2014 results, the fifth increase since our public offering in June 2011.
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PRESIDENT & CEO’S MESSAGE

“May you live in interesting times...”

It's a phrase I've used often when speaking about the economic, geo-
political and social challenges that affected our industry in 2014. It's
also a phrase that describes the kind of year that Gibson Energy had

- a year of record performance and growth, contrasted with a year

marked by significant volatility in oil prices.

Delivering Results

In 2014, we delivered
record annual results with
Segment Profit of $487
million and Pro Forma
Adjusted EBITDA of $458
million. We also success-
fully executed the most
ambitious capital spend-

ing plan in the company’s
history, spending $352
million on growth capital
projects, many of which
will contribute meaningfully
to our profitability in 2015
and beyond.

But our successes in 2014 did
not materialize overnight. They
were made possible because
of the focused execution of our
strategic plan: to provide mid-
stream solutions that capitalize
on growth trends in North Ameri-
can oil and liquids production.

Stewart Hanlon
President & CEO

During the year we welcomed two new companies to
the Gibsons family, both of which | would characterize
as “bucket list” acquisitions, as we have followed their
successes over the last
twenty plus years.

Cal-Gas Inc. has
been in business
for over 40 years,
providing propane
equipment, service
and delivery to
the oil and gas,
commercial, min-

“Our successes in 2014
did not materialize over-
night. They were made
possible because of the
focused execution of our
strategic plan.”

ing and residential sectors. This acquisition dovetails
nicely with our existing Canwest Propane operations
and extends our geographic footprint into Manitoba
and Northwest Ontario.

Further expanding the Manitoba footprint and
adding Northwest Territories as well, Stittco Energy
Limited provides propane equipment, service and
delivery to the same business sectors as Cal-Gas.

We expect the turmoil created by lower commodity
prices in 2015 to provide some compelling opportunities
to continue our tradition of making strategic acquisitions
as a means of growing our core businesses.
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In 2014, we also acted on numerous opportunities to
improve and grow our operations.

= The multi-year expansion of our eastern lands at
Hardisty continued throughout the year, culminating
in the commissioning of the first two new tanks
that added 800,000 barrels of incremental capacity
in the fourth quarter. An additional 400,000 barrel
tank came into service in February of 2015. This
brought our total capacity at the Hardisty terminal
to 5.5 million barrels, with 1.6 million barrels cur-
rently under construction.

= We added two new pipeline connections to our
Hardisty terminal, which advanced the ever-in-
creasing flexibility of the terminal. We completed
our pipeline receipt connection from the recently
twinned Cold Lake pipeline. We also commissioned
the exclusive, delivery pipeline to USD Group's Hard-
isty unit train loading facility. Both of these projects
are underpinned by long-term contracts with key
credit-worthy customers.

= We constructed and commissioned a full-service,
processing, recovery and disposal facility and landfill

in the North Dakota Bakken — Gibsons’ first in the U.S.

It will recover and recycle oilfield waste streams, effi-

ciently meeting waste treatment and disposal require-
ments, while minimizing the industry’s environmental
footprint in the region.

The safety of our workforce, contractors and nearby
communities remains top-of-mind. In 2014, we intro-
duced several programs to continue on our journey of
continuous improvement. I'm pleased to say we saw real
and significant improvements in key safety metrics. While
we continue to see improvements in our performance, we
can never become complacent. In 2015, we will continue
to strengthen our programs, improve our processes and
support our workforce.

Underlying all of our activities is our operating and finan-
cial discipline that helps us pursue the activities, projects
and ventures that create shareholder value and make us a
stronger company. Gibsons' balance sheet remains solid.

At year end:

= We had $132 million of cash and $442 million avail-
able under our $500 million revolving credit facility,
which carries an August 2019 renewal date;

= QOur debt to debt plus capital ratio was 41%;

= Qur leverage ratio was 2.2 times; and our interest
coverage ratio was 6.7 times.

Our debt levels are low and we are in great financial
health to succeed through another industry cycle. And it
is a cycle. That's the nature of our business. Our exec-
utive team and Board have been through commodity
price cycles like this before and we will persevere through
this one. In 2015,
we will continue
to work hard to
meet our targets,
realize our cost
management
goals, capitalize
on opportunities
and advance our
growth strategy.

“Our debt levels are low
and we are in great fi-
nancial health to succeed
through another industry
cycle. And it is a cycle.”

Recognizing our Strengths

We know successful companies thrive over time, largely
because they have attracted, retained and motivated the
best talent in their industry. For over 60 years, Gibsons
has been defined by people who seized opportunities
and made exceptional customer service a part of every-
thing they do. | want to thank our employees for their
hard work and dedication. | would also like to thank our
Board of Directors. Their guidance and governance have
been invaluable over the past year.

At Gibsons, we recognize that good corporate citizen-
ship is good business. In fact, it is essential to achieve
long-term business sustainability. In 2014, we continued
to invest both time and money into the communities
where we live and work.

Gibson Energy = Annual Report 2014 = 3




During our annual United Way campaign, Gibsons and At Gibsons, we are committed to being a company that

its employees pledged more than $350,000 to support people want to do business with, want to work for, and
various United Way agencies and organizations across want to invest in. We do, indeed, live in interesting times
North America. During the Calgary campaign kick-off, and | look forward to sharing them with you as we
employees participated in our first-ever truck pull. The strengthen and grow our company, seize opportunities
public event, which saw teams of employees pull a 1953 and move ahead.

refurbished Gibsons truck, drew valuable attention to
the United Way cause while at the same time, building
team spirit among employees.

During 2014, Gibsons also contributed to programs
across North America through its community investment
program. The program, founded on the four pillars of
Health, Safety and Wellness; Education and the Arts;
Community Enhancement; and the Environment, allows
Gibsons to support many organizations across North
America, including multi-year partnerships with Ducks
Unlimited and the Calgary Police Foundation.

Stewart Hanlon,
President & CEO

Moving Ahead

The challenges going forward are numerous and com-
plex, but the opportunities are also many.

QOil and liquids production in North America is still pro-
jected to increase. Crude oil and liquids still need to be
hauled from the wellhead to injection stations and ter-
minals. Pipelines and tank infrastructure still need to be
built to support production growth. Production waste
and water will still need to be treated, managed safely
and disposed of. To be direct, we are well-positioned for
the future. While the current challenges of the market
may continue for longer than we would like, we are
committed to focusing on the things we believe we can
influence and control:

= Providing our customers with exceptional
customer-service;

= Investing in our people and strengthening our culture;

= Delivering long-term value to our shareholders; and

= Making valuable contributions to the communities
where we live and work
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) was prepared and approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors as of March 3, 2015 and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes of Gibson Energy Inc. (“Gibson” or the “Company”) for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, which were
prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as set out in the Handbook of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Amounts are stated in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise noted.

This MD &A contains forward-looking statements and non-GAAP measures and readers are cautioned that this MD &A should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s disclosure under “Forward-Looking Statements” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures”
included at the end of this MD&A. Non-GAAP measures contained in this MD &A include EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Pro-forma
Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash flow.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Gibson is a large independent integrated service provider to the oil and gas industry with operations across major producing
regions throughout North America. Gibson is engaged in the movement, storage, blending, processing, marketing and
distribution of crude oil, condensate, natural gas liquids (“NGLs”), water, oilfield waste, and refined products. The Company
transports energy products by utilizing its integrated network of terminals, pipelines, storage tanks, and trucks located throughout
western Canada and through its significant truck transportation and injection station network in the United States. The Company
also provides emulsion treating, water disposal and oilfield waste management services in Canada and the United States and is the
second largest industrial propane distribution company in Canada. The Company’s integrated operations allow it to participate
across the full midstream energy value chain, from the hydrocarbon producing regions in Canada and the United States, through
the Company’s strategically located terminals in Hardisty and Edmonton, Alberta and injection stations and small terminals in the
United States, to the refineries of North America via major pipelines.

Gibson has provided market access to leading oil and gas industry participants in western Canada for over 60 years. The
Company has grown by diversifying its service offerings to meet customers’ needs and by expanding geographically to provide
its service offerings to key hydrocarbon producing regions throughout the United States.

The Company’s integrated segments can be broken down as follows: (1) Terminals and Pipelines, (2) Environmental Services, (3)
Truck Transportation, (4) Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution, (5) Processing and Wellsite Fluids and (6) Marketing.
The Company believes its competitive advantage is driven by its geographic presence in the majority of hydrocarbon-rich basins
in North America, its footholds in strategic market hubs, its ability to capture value throughout the midstream energy value chain,
its diversified, integrated, synergistic service offerings, its ability to source and successfully execute internal growth projects, its
proven track record of sourcing, executing and successfully integrating business acquisitions, its leading health, safety, security
and environment record, its experienced management team with a proven history of successful operations and strong industry
reputation and its conservative risk management policies. The Company is continuously focused on improving its operations
across all segments by utilizing the Company’s integrated asset base to capture inter segment synergies and to expand the
Company’s network of assets, and to increase the Company’s margins by providing additional value added services along the
midstream energy value chain.
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Highlights

The key highlights for the year ended December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Revenue increased by 24% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The
increase was primarily due to increased overall activity in the Company’s segments;

Overall segment profit increased by 7% to $487.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $456.4 million
in the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in segment profit was primarily driven by increases in the Terminals and
Pipelines, Environmental Services, Processing and Wellsite Fluids, and Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution
segments;

Adjusted EBITDA in the year ended December 31, 2014 increased by 6% to $453.1 million compared to $427.0 million in
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the increase in segment profits.
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $458.2 million;

Net income was $91.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $103.8 million in the year ended December
31, 2013. The decrease was largely due to an increase in the non-cash foreign exchange loss incurred on translating the
Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt, higher depreciation and amortization and interest charges, partially
offset by an increase in overall segment profitability and decreased debt extinguishment charges;

The Company declared a dividend of $0.30 per common share in each of the four quarters of 2014 for total dividends of
$148.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. For the year ended December 31, 2014, distributable cash flow was
$265.2 million resulting in a dividend payout ratio of 56%;

Capital expenditures were $411.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, of which $352.5 million related to growth
capital. Growth capital expenditures are primarily related to the construction of tankage and pipeline connections at the
Company’s facilities, in particular at the Hardisty Terminal, and the expansion of the Environmental Services business. At
December 31, 2014, the Company had capital expenditures totaling $200.4 million included in work in progress;

In June 2014, the crude oil unit train rail loading facility at Hardisty, Alberta, was successfully commissioned. The facility,
which the Company jointly developed with US Development Group LLC, is underpinned by long-term customer
commitments. With pipeline connectivity from the Company’s Hardisty Terminal, the facility provides customers with
increased optionality to facilitate crude oil movements across North America;

In October 2014, Gibson revised the design configuration of its storage tank construction project currently underway at the
Hardisty Terminal resulting in a 200,000 barrel increase in the original planned capacity and the construction of an
incremental 300,000 barrel tank to accommodate current and forecasted operational requirements at the terminal;

In October 2014, the Company successfully commissioned two new tanks at the east side of the Hardisty Terminal resulting
in a 800,000 barrel increase in capacity;

In December 2014, the Company successfully commissioned a processing, recovery, and disposal (PRD) facility in North
Dakota. The facility is well located, offers modern processing technologies and establishes Gibson as a full-service waste
provider in the US Bakken tight oil play. This facility is co-located with the licensed landfill which was commissioned earlier
in 2014, both of which will contribute to our efforts to shift the profile of our environmental services business toward more
stable production-related revenue sources;

On August 1, 2014, the Company completed the acquisition of Cal-Gas Inc. (“Cal-Gas”) for cash consideration of $96.4
million subject to final purchase price adjustments. Cal-Gas is one of the largest propane distribution companies in western
Canada, with operations in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Northwest Ontario. Cal-Gas has been in
business for over 40 years, providing propane equipment, service and delivery to the oil and gas, commercial, mining and
residential sectors;

On April 1, 2014, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Stittco
Energy Limited (“Stittco”) for cash consideration of $32.1 million. Stittco is a private company which provides propane
equipment, service and delivery to residential and commercial and mining customers in Northern Manitoba and the
Northwest Territories;

On June 12, 2014, the Company completed an offering of Senior Unsecured Notes totaling $300.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 5.375% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2022 issued at par and U.S.$50.0 million aggregate
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principal amount of 6.75% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2021 at an issue price of 108% of par. The net proceeds
were used to repay all outstanding indebtedness under the existing revolving credit facility (excluding letters of credit), with
the remaining net proceeds used to fund capital expenditures and general corporate purposes; and

e On August 20, 2014, the Company amended the terms of its $500.0 million secured revolving credit facility to, among other
things, release all security required by the lenders, and to extend the maturity date from June 2018 to August 2019 (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”).

On January 31, 2015, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Littlehawk Enterprises Ltd.
(“Littlehawk™) for approximately $8.2 million, subject to the final purchase price adjustments. Littlehawk is a private Canadian
company which operates hydrovac units that specialize in hydro excavation, pressure testing and water hauling for the
construction and energy industries.

In February 2015, the Company successfully commissioned a new tank on the east side of the Hardisty Terminal resulting in a
400,000 barrel increase in capacity. In addition, the Company successfully commissioned its connectivity enhancement project
related to the twining of the Cold Lake pipeline connection to the Hardisty Terminal.

On March 3, 2015, the Board declared a quarterly dividend on its outstanding common shares of $0.32 cents per common share
for the quarter ended March 31, 2015. The dividend is payable on April 17, 2015 to shareholders of record at the close of business
on March 31, 2015.

Trends affecting the Company’s business

In accordance with the Company’s long-range strategic plan, the Company continuously evaluates organic growth opportunities
and potential acquisitions of transportation, industrial propane distribution, gathering, terminalling or storage and other
complementary midstream businesses, such as emulsion treating, water disposal and oilfield waste management services. Some of
the key industry trends that currently affect Gibson’s business and prospects over the short-term (2 years or less) and the medium
to long-term (in two to five years) are:

e Increased oil production in North America has increased demand for many facets of the midstream energy value chain
including storage, transportation, distribution, processing, refining and environmental and production services, all of which
are activities the Company participates in. However, the recent decline in crude oil prices has caused many North American
oil producers, who form a significant part of Gibsons customer base, to lower their near term capital spending plans. This is
expected to impact the overall rate of North American production growth over the short-term. Over the medium to long-term,
as crude oil supply and demand rebalances and crude oil prices realign with global cost structures the Company anticipates a
return to increased activity and production levels and a continued demand for midstream value chain assets;

e The growing supply of Canadian heavy crude oil from the oilsands will result in an increasing demand for diluent in the
Western Canada Sedimentary Basin (the “WCSB”). This should result in increased movements of diluent through the
Edmonton area pipeline and terminal infrastructure and may generate increased opportunities for Gibson’s services;

e Crude oil pricing, location and quality disconnects combined with a shortage of pipeline takeaway capacity from the WCSB
has created demand for crude by rail as a solution for export market access. While the recent decline in crude oil prices has
negatively impacted the economics of this export alternative, the Company expects that a return to higher oil prices should
create opportunities for the Company to increase its service offering to include more crude rail movements;

e The Keystone XL and Energy East pipeline projects, if approved, would help provide the growing supply of Canadian crude
oil access to the large refining markets in the United States, Eastern Canada and other foreign markets. If approved, the
starting point for both pipelines would be adjacent to the Company’s Hardisty Terminal which could provide increased
opportunities for the Company’s terminalling services;

e Enbridge’s expansion of its Line 67 and replacement of its Line 3 will also help provide the growing supply of Canadian
crude oil access to the largest refining markets in the United States and Eastern Canada. The additional capacity from Line
67 expansion is expected to be available in Q3 2015. The replacement of Line 3, if approved, could provide incremental
capacity by 2018. Gibson’s Hardisty Terminal is connected to deliver to both of these pipelines and these expansions should
provide increased opportunities for the Company’s terminalling services at Hardisty;

e Enbridge’s twinning of the southern section of its Athabasca pipeline as well as Inter Pipeline Ltd.’s twinning of its Cold
Lake pipeline should provide for additional volumes into the Hardisty area and increased opportunities for the Company’s
terminalling services at Hardisty;
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e  Price fluctuations between crude oil types can create incremental margin opportunities in multiple areas of the Company’s
operations. While current price differentials have compressed in response to the recent decline in benchmark crude oil prices,
the Company remains attentive to opportunities as this trend continues to evolve;

e The growing supply of propane related to higher liquids rich natural gas development has resulted in declining propane prices
in Western Canada. This may result in increased volumes and potential margin improvement related to our Propane and NGL
Marketing and Distribution segment;

e  The recent reduction in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar highlights added foreign currency volatility
which could result in both positive and negative impacts for the Company. A weakening Canadian dollar should result in
increased profit contributions from the Company’s U.S. business. In addition, it would result in increased revenues and cost
of sales for the Company’s Canadian operations that transact in U.S. dollars. Furthermore, a weakening Canadian dollar will
result in an increase in foreign exchange losses with respect to the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated debt, which are
partially offset by gains on foreign currency forward contracts and options;

®  Over the medium to long-term the Company expects new technology for drilling and well completion methodology to be
deployed towards conventional and unconventional production within the Company’s operating areas; and

e  Over the medium to long-term the Company expects increased oil and natural gas production in North America should also
mean a significant increase in produced water and other oilfield waste. This increase in oilfield waste, together with increased
regulatory scrutiny, should increase demand for the Company’s Environmental Services solutions.

The Company believes the collective impact of these trends and developments, many of which are beyond the Company’s
control, will result in an increasingly volatile crude oil market that is subject to more frequent short-term swings in market prices
and grade differentials and shifts in market structure. Over the short-term, the Company anticipates that lower crude oil prices
may create a challenging environment for some of the Company’s services however over the medium to long-term the Company
feels demand for its services should remain strong.

Capital expenditures

The following table summarizes growth capital and upgrade and replacement capital (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
GIOWEN CAPILAL .....vivieeeviiceietiieee ettt ettt ettt ettt s et e s etesbessets s essetessessete s essesenseseane $ 352,487 $ 177,443
Upgrade and replacement Capital..........c..cccoocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece e 59,035 69,513

$ 411,522 $ 246,956

Total expenditures for growth capital and upgrade and replacement capital were $411.5 million and $247.0 million in the year
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, $391.2 million and
$238.5 million, respectively, were included as additions to property, plant and equipment and $20.3 million and $8.5 million,
respectively, were included as additions to intangible assets.
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Growth capital

The following table summarizes the Company’s growth capital by segment (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
Terminals and PIpelines ! ...........cc.coourvuriioeceeeecee et $ 2200916 $ 101,300
ENVIFONMENTAl SEIVICES @ ..ottt ettt et et eee e s et ete e e e s seeseeseesaenes 68,430 46,649
Truck Transportation(3) .............................................................................................................. 22,164 19,156
Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution e e e e s rer s s st r s st rerraes 12,131 6,807
Processing and Wellsite FIUIAS™ ............oo.ovuoieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 13,979 2,528
OHNEI ...t 14,867 1,003
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt et et e et e et e et e e et e e e tbeeeteeeetae e teeebeeeabeeetbeeeteeeataeeabeeeteeereenans $ 352,487 $ 177,443

(1) Expenditures in the year ended December 31, 2014 relate to a number of construction and expansion projects including the
construction of additional tanks and related infrastructure at the Hardisty and Edmonton Terminals and the related
infrastructure to connect the unit rail facility to the Hardisty Terminal.

(2) Expenditures in the year ended December 31, 2014 relate to the expansion of existing and construction of new emulsion and
waste treatment and salt water disposal facilities in both Canada and the United States and also the addition of equipment
and rolling stock.

(3) Largely represents the purchase of land in the Edmonton area and the initial costs for constructing a new office and
maintenance facility.

(4) Mainly represents the addition of trucks, tanks and generators to meet growing demand in key market areas and the
expansion of rail infrastructure at a Company facility.

(5) Expenditures in the year ended December 31, 2014 largely relates to increasing throughput capacity and rail capabilities at
the facility in Moose Jaw.

(6) Mainly includes the purchase of land in Strathcona County in Alberta’s Industrial Heartland as well as equipment and
software related to information and operational systems.

Upgrade and replacement capital

Upgrade and replacement capital includes improvement projects that extend the physical life of an asset, while replacement
capital includes purchases that replace existing assets as necessary to maintain current service levels or replace assets that no
longer have a useful economic life. Upgrade and replacement capital decreased by 15% to $59.0 million in the year ended
December 31, 2014 from $69.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease was mainly due to a reduction in the
replacement of rolling stock within the Truck Transportation segment.

Acquisitions

On August 1, 2014, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Cal-Gas for cash consideration of
$96.4 million. Cal-Gas is one of the largest propane distributors in Western Canada with operations in British Columbia, Alberta,
Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Northwest Ontario. Cal-Gas has been in business for over 40 years, providing propane equipment,
service and delivery to the oil and gas, commercial, mining and residential sectors.

On April 1, 2014, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Stittco for cash consideration of
$32.1 million. Stittco provides propane equipment, service and delivery to residential and commercial and mining customers in
Northern Manitoba and Northwest Territories.
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Seasonality

The Company believes that seasonality does not have a material impact on its combined operations and segments. However,
certain of the Company’s individual segments are impacted by seasonality. Generally, the Company’s second quarter results are
impacted by road bans and other restrictions which impact overall activity levels in the WCSB and the northern United States, and
therefore negatively impact the Company’s trucking, propane and wellsite fluids businesses in Canada and certain operations
within Environmental Services in Canada and the United States.

Within the Company’s Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment, certain products are impacted by seasonality. Canadian road
asphalt activity is affected by the impact of weather conditions on road construction. Refineries produce liquid asphalt year round,
but road asphalt demand peaks during the summer months when most of the road construction activity in Canada takes place. In
the off peak demand months for road asphalt, the demand for roofing flux continues. Demand for wellsite fluids is dependent on
overall well drilling activity, with drilling activity normally the busiest in the winter months. As a result, the Company’s
Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment’s sales of road asphalt peak in the summer and sales of wellsite fluids peak in the winter.

The Company’s Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment is characterized by a high degree of seasonality driven by
the impact of weather on the need for heating and the amount of propane required to produce power for oil and gas related
applications. Therefore, volumes are low during the summer months relative to the winter months. Operating profits are also
considerably lower during the summer months. Most of the annual segment profit is earned from October to March each year.

Within the Company’s Environmental Services segment, certain services and geographical regions are impacted by seasonality
including the impact of weather and daylight hours. Due to exposure to weather, activity is generally the lowest in the winter
months and shorter daylight hours during the winter months also result in lower overall service activity.

SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL MEASURES

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands except per share amounts)

REVENUE ..ot e e e $ 8,573,529 $ 6,940,669 $ 4,913,029
INELINCOIME ..eiiuvieeiiieieiieeereesiteesteeeteeeeteesebeessaeesteeeseeesbeesaseesssaessseesseseseennses 91,941 103,816 116,186
Earnings per share

BASIC oottt ettt ettt ettt ettt nn s aaan $ 0.74 $ 0.86 $ .

DAIULEA ettt ettt e s e et esabeeane s 0.73 0.84 1.10
Dividends declared per common Share..............ccocvevvevvivrenrenrieeereereeeeeeenns $ 1.20 $ 1.10 $ 1.01

As at December 31,

2014 2013 2012
TOtAl ASSELS ..eeeeiieeiiieeeee ettt e et e e e e et e e e e e nraeeeas $ 3,573,029 $ 3,049,382 $ 2,796,525
Total non-current 1iabilities ............cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 1,507,876 1,058,582 947,374
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SEGMENTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company’s senior management evaluates segment performance based on a variety of measures depending on the particular
segment being evaluated, including profit, volumes, operating expenses, profit per barrel and upgrade and replacement capital
requirements. The Company defines segment profit as revenues less cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization
expense) and operating expenses. Revenues presented by segment in the table below include inter-segment revenue, as this is
considered more indicative of the level of each segment’s activity. Profit by segments excludes depreciation, amortization,
accretion, impairment charges, stock based compensation and corporate expenses, as senior management looks at each period’s
earnings before corporate expenses and non-cash items such as depreciation, amortization and stock based compensation, as one
of the Company’s important measures of segment performance.

The following is a discussion of the Company’s segmented results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
and the following table sets forth revenue and profit by segment for those periods:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Segment revenue

Terminals and PIPEINES ........cccuiiiiriiiiieiieieee ettt st et $ 157,969 $ 132,144
EnvIironmental SEIVICES.......coooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e saasaaasassasssassssasernnnes 431,153 325,059
TTUCK TTanSPOTTALION ....ecuvieriiieriieiiteerte ettt eieeeteestee sttt e sibeesteeebaeebeesabeesaseessseesasesnsaeeseesnseesnsessnses 557,735 532,490
Propane and NGL Marketing and DiStribution .........c.cceeeveeriieniieeniienieeieeeeeeiee e sveesveenine e 1,352,741 1,151,206
Processing and Wellsite FIUIAS......c.eovouiiriiiniieiie ettt sttt 667,793 611,097
IMATKEUIIIZ ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e e et et e be s e e eseeseesteseeneensensansensesenseeseeseesesneaseaneensenes 7,005,045 5,580,040
TOtal SEZMENE TEVEIIUC. ... .eeeuvieeiiieriiienteestiteesteeeteesteestteesareesseeesaessseesseessseessseesssessssessseessseessseesnne 10,172,436 8,332,036
Revenue—inter-seZMENtal ..........ccceoieiiieiiiiieeieie ettt sttt ettt ettt sae e (1,598,907) (1,391,367)
Total TEVENUE——EXLEIMIAL ....ceiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e e e eeeetaaaaeeeeeaenees 8,573,529 6,940,669
Segment profit

Terminals and PIPELINES ........cooveiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt et s 116,524 95,613
Environmental SEIVICES.......cooeiiiiiieeieeeeeeee oo ee e e e e e e e aaassanssssassssssssnssennnes 100,273 83,094
TTUCK TTanSPOTTALION ....ccuveiriiiiriiiiiiteiteet ettt ettt ettt st e st e sb e e bt e e bee e bt e sabeesareesaees 83,178 83,674
Propane and NGL Marketing and DiStribUution ...........cceeeveeriieniieiniienieeieeeeeeiee e e esveesine e 70,271 62,277
Processing and Wellsite FIUIAS. .......covvuiiriiirieeiiecieciie sttt ettt 51,675 48,720
IMEATKEUINE ...ttt ettt ettt st e e st e s ab e e eb bt e bt e s bt e s bt e sateesabeenbteennbeeabees 65,180 83,004
Total SEZMENE PIOLIL ...eeeuiiiiiiiiieeiie ettt ettt st s e e sb et e e bt e e bt e sabeesareenaees 487,101 456,382
General and AdMINISIIATIVE ... ...uuueueeeereeererraesreeserareeereeeeae—.———————————————————————eerereeerererreetrrrrrtrrererrrererens 37,385 34,664
Depreciation and amOTtIZAtION ........ceevueerieerieerieeiie ettt st ettt ettt e st e sabeesabeesbaeesseeeanee 209,925 184,057
Stock Dased COMPENSALION. ....c.uieruiieiieeiieitieeteesteenteertteeteesbeesbeessbeessaeebeesseessseessseessseesssesnseenn 13,977 8,271
Debt eXtINGUISHIMENT COSES.....tiitiiriierieeriieerieeitteeieeeteesreestreestteesteesbaeeseessbeessseessseenssesseesnseesnses - 38,209
FOreign eXChange LOSS ......ceivieriiiiiierieeiie ettt sttt et ettt e e bee st esbeesebeesaseebaeesaesnbaesnseennses 31,519 15,725
INEL INLETESE EXPEIISE «..veeeuveenerieireeiteeite ettt et e eateesate e sttt e sbteebee e bt e eabeesabeesabeesbbeessteeabaeebeesabeesareenaees 66,766 52,987
Gain on financial instruments relating to iNtErest EXPENSE ......ccuerueeruieruirruerienieieeee e - (18,252)
INCOME DEFOIE INCOIME TAX c.ooiieeieeeieeeeeeeeeeeee oo e e e e e s as s asssasasasssssssasnsasnnees 127,529 140,721
TNCOME tAX PIOVISION ..eeniiieiiiiiiieite ettt ettt ettt ettt st e st e sb bt e bt e s be e e bt e sabeesareesaees 35,588 36,905
INEE ITICOIMIC ..uvviieeiieeeeeiiie e ettt e ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e etteeeeebaeeeeseeeassseeeesaeeassseeanssseeessseeaassseeennsseeessseeens $ 91,941 $ 103,816

The exclusion of depreciation and amortization expense could be viewed as limiting the usefulness of segment profit as a
performance measure because it does not take into account in current periods the implied reduction in value of the Company’s
capital assets (such as rolling stock, tanks, pipelines, plant and equipment and disposal wells) caused by use, aging and wear and
tear. Repair and maintenance expenditures that do not extend the useful life, improve the efficiency or expand the operating
capacity of the asset are charged to operating expense as incurred.

The Company’s segment analysis involves an element of judgment relating to the allocations between segments. Inter-segment
sales, cost of sales and operating expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Transactions between segments and within segments
are valued at prevailing market rates. The Company believes that the estimates with respect to these allocations and rates are
reasonable.
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Terminals and Pipelines

The following tables set forth the operating results from the Company’s Terminals and Pipelines segment:

Year ended December 31,

Volumes (barrels in thousands) 2014 2013
Terminals
Hardisty Terminal.........cooieiiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt sttt ettt e st esareenaees 184,519 144,940
Edmonton Terminal ...........coouiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt sttt sttt e e 16,822 17,161
TNJECHION STALIOMS ....eiiieeniteeite ettt ettt ettt e et e sab e e sbb e e bt e e bt e s b e e eabeesateesaneennees 47,154 46,582
TOtAl LEIMUNALS. ...ttt sttt b et a et e et e st e bbb ebeebeebeene 248,495 208,683

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

REVETIUES .ottt et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e et e eeeaaeeseeaeeeeesaeeeseeaaeeesenaeesesneeesasaeessaneeeeaas $ 157,969 $ 132,144
Operating eXpenses aNd ONET..........oiiieriiiiieeiee ettt e e e steeebeesbeesebeesaseesnees 41,445 36,531
SEEMENE PIOTIL ..eeueiieiiieiieeiie ettt ettt e st e sate e baeebeesabeessbeeseseessseesseenseesaseesnseennsens $ 116,524 $ 95,613

Volumes, revenues and cost of sales. Hardisty Terminal volumes increased by 27% in the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, as a result of increased throughput volumes from customers with dedicated tank
usage and increased volumes from the Company’s crude oil train rail loading facility which commenced operations in June 2014.
Revenue at the Hardisty Terminal increased by $23.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in volume and the additional revenue from customers
with dedicated tank usage that are subject to minimum volume charges, and in particular, due to the impact of two new tanks at
the east side of the Hardisty Terminal that were commissioned in October 2014. Revenue also increased due to the
commencement of operations at the crude oil train rail loading facility in June 2014.

Edmonton Terminal volumes decreased by 2% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31,
2013 mainly due to various tanks being taken out of service to facilitate the expansion of the facility, offset in part by the increase
in diesel receipt volumes from a major customer. Although volumes at the Edmonton Terminal decreased, revenues increased by
$1.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 as a result of the impact of
minimum volume charges and an increase in fixed fee arrangements.

Injection station volumes increased by 1% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013
due to an increase in activity with a major customer in the fourth quarter of 2014. As a result of increased volumes and the impact
of foreign exchange rates on translating revenue denominated in U.S dollars, revenue increased by $0.1 million in the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.

Operating expenses and other. Overall operating expenses increased by $4.9 million, or 13%, in the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was largely related to the increase in operating costs due to
the expansion of the Hardisty Terminal and costs incurred related to the crude oil train rail loading facility that was commissioned
in June 2014.

Segment profit. Overall, segment profit in the year ended December 31, 2014 increased by $20.9 million, or 22%, compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to an overall increase in volumes, the impact of additional
customers with dedicated tank usage that are subject to minimum volume charges, and the commencement of operations for the
crude oil train rail loading facility, offset in part by an increase in operating costs.
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Environmental Services
The following tables set forth operating results from the Company’s Environmental Services segment:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Revenues
Environmental services and fluid handling .............ccocvevieviiviiviiniiniiieciceccceeeeeeeeee e $ 312,806 $ 214,595
PrOAUCTION SEIVICES. .. iiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et ettt e et e e e e et e e e s e e e s e s e s e s e sssssasssssssssssssssnssnnsssnsssnnnnens 66,344 68,713
OTNET SEIVICES . oeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e aaaeaesesaaasssaeaeasesasssasesesaa e s asaassasaasaaaasaaesaaasasesseenenenens 52,003 41,751
TOtAl TEVEIUES ..ottt oottt e e e e e e e e e e e s e s e s e s e s e s sssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnsssssssnsasennnees 431,153 325,059
(OLo T o) BT 1 (= TR 256,990 183,133
Operating eXpenses aNd ONET..........oiiiiriiiiiieeie ettt et eaeesbeesbeessbeesaseenenas 73,890 58,832
SEEMENE PIOTIL ..eeetieriiiiiiieiie ettt ettt et e et e st e e st e e sttt e sabesbaeesseesabeesabeessseesnsaensseenssesnsens $ 100,273 $ 83,094

Revenues and cost of sales. Environmental services and fluid handling revenues increased by 46% in the year ended December
31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in the fluid disposal
business in the United States and the impact of an increase in volumes processed at the Canadian environmental processing
facilities. Further, the increase was also due to the favorable impact of the change in foreign exchange rates on translating revenue
denominated in U.S. dollars from the Company’s United States operations.

Production services revenue decreased by 3% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. The decrease was primarily due to the impact of lower overall activity, pricing pressure related to additional competition
and weather conditions which negatively impacted the first and third quarters of 2014 in the United States. The decrease was
offset by the favorable impact of the change in foreign exchange rates on translating revenue denominated in U.S. dollars from
the Company’s United States operations.

Other services revenue increased by 25% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013 primarily due to an increase in exploration support services revenue resulting from increased seismic activity in the United
States, partially offset by lower accommodations revenue due to the impact of additional competition in the Bakken region.
Further, the increase was also due to the favorable impact of the change in foreign exchange rates on translating revenue
denominated in U.S. dollars from the segment’s U.S. operations.

Cost of sales increased by 40% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, as a
result of increased activity and also due to the unfavorable impact of translating costs of sales denominated in U.S. dollars.

Operating expenses and other. Operating costs increased by $15.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2013, mainly due to increased payroll related costs and also due to the unfavorable impact of
translating operating costs denominated in U.S. dollars.

Segment profit. Segment profit increased by $17.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013, largely as a result of the impact of improved margins in the environmental services and fluid handling
operations.
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Truck Transportation
The following tables set forth the operating results from the Company’s Truck Transportation segment:

Year ended December 31,

Volumes (barrels in thousands) 2014 2013
Barrels DAUlEd...........oooiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e araaaaaaeans 131,998 144,340
Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

(in thousands)
REVETIUES .ot e et e e e e e e e e eeeaeeeseaeeeeaneeeseeaeeesaeaaeesaeseeesesseeesaseeesssseeesanane $ 557,735 $ 532,490
COSE OF SALES ...ttt ettt et et e e s 376,685 352,728
181,050 179,762
Operating expenses and OthET............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e s 97,872 96,088
SEEMENE PIOTIL ..euetieiiieiiieie ettt ettt et e et esebee s bt e sttt esabesbaeesseesaseesabaensseessseenseessnesnseenns $ 83,178 $ 83,674

Volumes, revenues and cost of sales. For the year ended December 31, 2014, barrels hauled decreased by 9% compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease was mainly due to the impact of adverse weather conditions in both Canada and the
United States that limited the Company’s ability to haul in certain regions on a short-term basis and also a decline in overall
volumes hauled of sulphur and petroleum coke particularly in the first quarter of 2014.

Despite the decrease in volumes, revenues increased 5% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. The impact of decreased volumes was offset by increased rates for spot hauling activities due to more long
haul opportunities, increased service related charges, and also the favorable foreign exchange impact of translating revenue
denominated in U.S. dollars from the Company’s United States operations.

Cost of sales is primarily comprised of payments to owner-operators and lease operators. Cost of sales increased by 7% in the
year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 due to the overall increase in revenues and an
increase in service related activities from Canadian operations.

Operating expenses and other. Overall operating expenses increased by $1.8 million, or 2%, in the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, mainly due to the unfavorable impact of translating operating costs
denominated in U.S. dollars partially offset by the impact of a gain of $1.5 million on sale of certain property, plant and
equipment.

Segment profit. Segment profit decreased by $0.5 million, or 1%, in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to the impact of lower margins, offset in part by lower operating costs.
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Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution
The following tables set forth operating results from the Company’s Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment:

Year ended December 31,

Volumes 2014 2013
Sales volumes—Industrial (litres in thousands)
(O 1T I TSRS 250,173 207,449
COMIMEICIAL .1vviiiiiiiiiiiee et e e et e e e e e eetr e e e e e e e e tabeeeeeeeeeassbeeeeeesenssssaeeeeeeensnnees 126,448 89,960
AULOIMIOTIVE ..vvvieieieeeiiiieee e ettt e e e e eet e e e e e e tteeeeeeeeetaaaeeeeeeeeeassseaeeeeeeasssssaeeeeaansnssaeeeeeeensrnees 20,786 21,108
RESIACITIAL ......oveeiiiiiieceee e e e e e et e et e e et e e e eeaaeeeeeteeeeenaneeeenns 39,292 22,824
OBRET ..ttt e et e e et b e e e e b e e e eetbe e e e tre e e e abaeeeatba e e e tbeeeetbaeeeaabaeeeaabaeeannnns 34,899 21,627
471,598 362,968
Sales volumes—wholesale (barrels in thousands)
PIOPANE ....coiiiiiiii e e e e e 3,129 4,656
Other NGLs
BULANE....ooiiiii e e e e e e e e e rar e e e e e e eenrraaaaaeas 2,986 2,046
CONAENSALE .....vvvveeeeeeeiiiiiiee e e eeecit et e e e eeeere e e e e e e eeetareeeeeeeeetasaeeaeeeeesssaesaeeeeaasssaseeaeeeaassrsseeaeeaanes 3,864 1,980
LS. QIVISION 1.t e et e e e e e eaee e e e eateeeeeaaeeeeeaneeeeeaaeeeenns 3,220 4,332
10,070 8,358
Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
Revenues (in thousands)
Industrial
PIOPANE. .....ceecviveeietiieeeeteet ettt ettt ettt et et e st et et eae et eaeese b essets s ess et e st esseseasessebensets s eseetesenene $ 248,776 $ 170,144
OBRET et et e ettt e e et e e e etaeeeetbeseetbeeeeaabaeeetbeeeetbeeeenbaeeeatbeeeeaareeeeannes 29,721 23,855
TOtAl INAUSIITAL....coneteiiiiiiteeee ettt ettt e bt e bt e st e e e e st e saeeenaees 278,497 193,999
Wholesale
PIrOPANE. ... ..iiiiiieiiiecteee ettt ettt e e et e st e e st e e s it e e st e e ba e ebaeenbeesabeennteenabeennnas 228,771 235,828
ONET NGLS ...ttt b ettt et et ettt bt b e s bt ebeeaeeaeeseeneennan 845,473 721,379
TOtal WHOIESALE .......eeiiiiiiieeii ettt sttt e 1,074,244 957,207
TOLAL TEVEIIUES ...ceuveiiiiiiieiiieeite ettt ettt ettt ettt e bt e st e sat e e s ab e e bt e e bt e eabeesabeesabeesateenaaeennee 1,352,741 1,151,206
COSE OF SALES ... 1,206,361 1,028,479
Operating expenses ANd OhET.........ooiuiiiriiiiiiii ettt sttt e 76,109 60,450
SEEMENE PIOTTL ..cniiiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt st e e bt e sat e sateesbteesbeesabeesabeesatees $ 70,271 $ 62,277

Volumes, revenues and cost of sales. Industrial volumes increased by 30% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013, largely due to the increased volumes in the oil and gas, commercial, and residential markets as a
result of the Cal-Gas and Stittco acquisitions completed during 2014.

Industrial propane revenues increased 46% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013, as a result of higher sales volumes and overall rack prices. Other industrial revenue relates to equipment sales, service
labour and rental and delivery charges. Other industrial revenue increased by 25% in the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, largely due to the Company’s investment in related equipment and the impact of
the Cal-Gas and Stittco acquisitions.

Wholesale propane volumes decreased by 33% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. The decrease in volumes was largely driven by the impact of lower propane demand by certain customers. Wholesale
propane revenues decreased by 3% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 due to
lower propane volumes, offset in part by higher overall propane wholesale prices.

Other NGLs volumes increased by 20% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013,
primarily as a result of higher demand from internal and external customers. As a result of the increase in volumes, other NGLs
revenues increased by 17% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Cost of sales increased 17% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due
to the increases in both industrial and wholesale business. The increase in industrial cost of sales was due to the impact of the
acquisitions of Cal-Gas and Stittco completed during 2014. The increase in wholesale cost of sales was largely in line with
increased revenue.

Operating expenses and other. Overall operating expenses increased by $15.7 million, or 26%, in the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to the impact of the Cal-Gas and Stittco acquisitions.

Segment profit. The Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment profit increased in the year ended December 31, 2014
by $8.0 million, or 13%, compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 as a result of the increase in industrial and wholesale
propane segment profit partially offset by lower wholesale other NGLs segment profit. Increased industrial segment profit was
mainly due to the higher volumes as a result of the acquisitions of Cal-gas and Stittco acquisitions completed during 2014. Higher
wholesale propane segment profit was positively impacted by the increase in overall higher wholesale propane prices. Lower
other NGLs segment profit was primarily due to the impact of unfavorable pricing conditions.

Processing and Wellsite Fluids

The following tables set forth operating results from the Company’s Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment:

Year ended December 31,

Volumes (barrels in thousands) 2014 2013
ROOTING FIUX 1ttt ettt ettt st e et e st e 1,830 2,076
ROAd @SPRAlt ..o e 470 186
Frac oils (Gibson Clear and light straight run distillate) ..........c..cccoeciiiiiiiiiiniiniiniiccceee 539 466
DiStIate (D822).....couiiiiiiii et et e e e e 754 835
O e st s et e s a e e e ae e 2,117 1,909
OBRET ... et sttt s 222 152
TOtal SAIES VOIUIMES .....eeiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt sttt e sb e e sat e e be e e bt e st e sabeenaees 5,932 5,624

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Revenues
Road asphalt and 100 iNg fIUX .....c.ccvivviriiiiiiiiiieiceeteeee ettt sb e eve e $ 247423 $ 234,887
Frac oils (Gibson Clear and light straight run distillate) ..........ccccceevviieriieniieeniieeniecee e 77,897 59,353
DiSHHIALE (DB22)....eviiieeiiieeeiiee ettt ettt e ettt e e e e tb e e eetaeeestaaeeetbeseetsaeeetbaeeetbeeeenns 110,914 118,632
0] 0TSO PP 192,512 174,071
OhET ... ettt ettt et 39,047 24,154
TOtAl TEVEIUES ..ot ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e s e s e s e s e s e s e s e s ssssssssssssssssssssssnnsssnsssssssnsasasnnees 667,793 611,097
(Oo T o) HEY: 1 (= TR 594,331 540,182
Operating expenses and OthET............ccioiiiiiiiiiiiiie e s s 21,787 22.195
SEEMENE PIOTIL ..eeitieiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt et e et e s bt e st e e sttt e s abeebbeesaeesabeesnseessseesssaensseenssesnsens $ 51,675 $ 48,720

Volumes, revenues and cost of sales. Sales volumes for road asphalt increased by 153% in the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly due to an increase in demand from customers as a result of increased
paving activities. Sales volumes for roofing flux decreased by 12% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013 due to an increase in the amount of asphalt being sold as road asphalt. Road asphalt and roofing flux
revenue increased by 5% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year ended December 31, 2013 mainly due to the
impact of higher road asphalt volumes.

Frac oils volumes increased 16% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 largely
due to an overall increase in customer demand. Frac oils revenues increased by 31% in the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to higher overall selling prices and higher sales volumes.

Sales volumes for distillate decreased 10% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013
due to more volumes being sold as frac oils and due to lower customer demand in the United States, particularly in the fourth
quarter of 2014. As a result of lower volumes, distillate revenues decreased by 7% in the year ended December 31, 2014,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Tops volumes increased 11% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 due to an
increase in customer demand. As a result, tops revenues increased by 11% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013.

Other volumes include the sale of the Company’s oil based mud product (“OBM”) and solvents. Other volumes increased by 46%
in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, largely driven by increased demand for
the Company’s OBM product. Other revenue increased by 62% in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013 largely due to the increase in volumes.

The overall cost per barrel for the suite of products sold by the Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment increased by 4% due to
the increase in crude oil costs driven by tighter differentials and a negative foreign exchange impact on crude oil purchases
denominated in U.S. dollars, particularly in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Overall margins increased by $2.5 million, or 4%, in the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase was largely due to increased margins for frac oils, distillate and other products, offset in part by
lower overall margins for roofing flux, road asphalt and tops.

Operating expenses and other. Operating expenses decreased by $0.4 million, or 2%, in the year ended December 31, 2014 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. Operating expenses decreased mainly due to an increase in foreign exchange
gains on realizing U.S. dollar denominated and other revenue.

Segment profit. The Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment profit increased in the year ended December 31, 2014 by
$2.9 million, or 6%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to higher margins for frac oils, distillate
and other products and lower operating costs, partially offset by lower overall margins for roofing flux, asphalt, and tops.

Marketing

The following tables set forth the operating results from the Company’s Marketing segment:
Year ended December 31,

Volumes (barrels in thousands) 2014 2013
Sales Volumes
Crude and ITUENL .........couvviiiii e e e eeet e e e e e et e e e e e e e e tarreeeeeeeenrraaeeaeeeenes 120,676 103,549

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

(in thousands)
REVEIUES ...t st e $ 7,005,045 $ 5,580,040
(OLe T o) BT 1 (= TR 6,931,758 5,487,361
Operating expenses and OthET............ccciiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e 8,107 9,675
SEEMENT PIOTIL ..eonviiniiiiiieiiit ettt ettt ettt e e e eaees $ 65,180 $ 83,004

The following tables set forth the monthly average NYMEX benchmark price of West Texas Intermediate crude oil (U.S.$):

Calendar Period 2014 2013
JANUATY «.oviviiietceceete ettt ettt ettt e ettt eeteeteessessessesb e b e beebeebeeteeteetseneesberaestesbesbeebenaeereas $ 94.86 $ 94.83
FEDIUATY ..ot ettt et et e et e et e sabaeesbeesabeesabeennteesabeebeeebaeenbeeaa 100.68 95.32
IMLATCHL ..ttt ettt et b et et e h bttt e a e e bbbttt et sbee b e b eaees 100.51 92.96
AAPTIL ettt ettt h ettt b bbbt e sbeesbe e b eaees 102.03 92.07
1Y SRS 101.79 94.80
JUIIE <.t ettt ettt et e a et e et e e a e ea e et e et e e n e et e et e e teent e st e st enteenteeneeneennes 105.15 93.80
JULY ettt ettt ettt a e e bt et e en e e st e bt e teen e e st eteenteenteeneeneennes 102.39 104.67
ATZUSE ¢t ettt ettt et et a et h et e e e e h et e ane s aeeneeanes 96.08 106.57
SEPLEIMDET ...ttt sttt st et et st sa ettt e e bttt e b e e e e 93.03 106.24
OICTODET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ebt e s bt et e st eb e e bt e bt e st e e bt e bt e bt eabesbtenbeenbeeaees 84.34 100.55
INOVEIMDET ...ttt ettt ettt s bttt et st s bt e bt et s bt e sbe et e e st e ebtesbe et e eabesbaenbeennens 75.81 93.93
DIECEMDET ...ttt ettt sttt bt e sbt et e st bt e bt et e st e ebeenbeennens 59.29 97.89
Average for the year ended December 31 ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 92.99 97.80
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Volumes, revenues and cost of sales. Sales volumes for crude and diluent increased by 17% in the year ended December 31, 2014,
due to a continued focus on bringing volumes to the Company’s integrated assets. Revenue increased by 26% in the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to higher volumes, higher crude oil prices in
the first half of the year and the impact of a tightening in crude oil differentials during the year.

Cost of sales increased by 26% in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly due
to the increase in revenue.

Operating expenses and other. Operating expenses decreased by $1.6 million, or 16%, in the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to lower payroll related costs.

Segment profit. The Marketing segment profit decreased by $17.8 million, or 21%, in the year ended December 31, 2014 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. In the year ended December 31, 2014, overall margins were positively impacted
by the increase in volumes, especially deliveries to the Company’s terminals, including crude oil shipped via rail at the
Company’s various rail loading facilities. However, lower margins were earned in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2013 which led to the overall decrease in segment profitability.

General and administrative, excluding depreciation and amortization

General and administrative expense (“G&A”) is comprised of costs incurred for executive services, accounting, finance, treasury,
legal, human resources, investor relations and communications that are incurred at a corporate level and are not related to a
specific segment. G&A expense was $37.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $34.7 million in the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase was largely driven by the continued growth of the Company resulting in an increase in
payroll related costs.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense was $209.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $184.1 million in
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was largely due to the additional depreciation and amortization related to the
increase in the Company’s tangible assets resulting from the completion of capital projects and the completion of the Cal-Gas and
Stittco acquisitions during 2014.

Stock based compensation

Stock based compensation expense was $14.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $8.3 million in the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to granting of additional annual stock awards in 2014 as a result of the
expansion of the equity incentive plan to include more employees.

Debt extinguishment costs

On June 28, 2013, upon the issuance of senior unsecured notes and the revolving credit facility, the Company repaid and
terminated its previous senior secured credit facility which was comprised of a Tranche B Term Loan facility of U.S.$650.0
million and a revolving credit facility of U.S.$375.0 million. Accordingly, the Company recorded debt extinguishment costs of
$38.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2013. No similar debt extinguishment costs were incurred in the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Foreign exchange loss (gain) not affecting segment profit

In the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded a foreign exchange loss of $31.5 million compared to $15.7 million
in the year ended December 31, 2013.

The gains and losses recorded are primarily as a result of the impact of the movement in exchange rates on the Company’s U.S.
dollar denominated long-term debt and related financial instruments. In the year ended December 31, 2014, a loss of $52.0
million was recorded due to the unfavorable movement in exchange rates on the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term
debt. This was partially offset by a gain of $16.6 million, related to the change in mark-to-market value of U.S. dollar forward
contracts and options used to mitigate the currency risk associated with the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt.
In the year ended December 31, 2013, a loss of $42.5 million was recorded due to the unfavorable movement in exchange rates on
the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt. This was partially offset by a gain of $22.5 million, related to the change
in mark-to-market value of U.S. dollar denominated forward contracts and options used to mitigate the currency risk associated
with the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt.
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Net interest expense

Net interest expense, excluding the non-cash movement in financial instruments relating to interest expense, was $66.8 million in
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $52.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in interest charges as a result of the increase in outstanding debt balance.

Financial instruments relating to interest expense

In the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recorded a gain of $18.3 million relating to an embedded derivative on an
interest rate floor within the Company’s Tranche B Term Loan that was required to be separated from the carrying value of long-
term debt and was accounted for as a separate financial instrument that was measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Following the repayment of the Tranche B Term Loan on June 28, 2013, the Company no longer has an embedded derivative
relating to the interest rate floor.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was $35.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $36.9 million in the year ended
December 31, 2013 with the decrease due to lower income before taxes in the current year. The effective tax rate was 27.9%
during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 26.2% in the year ended December 31, 2013, respectively. The main
reason for the increase in the effective rate was the increase in non-deductible net capital losses related to foreign exchange losses
on the Company’s long-term debt. The non-deductible net capital losses for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $9.4 million.

Fourth Quarter Results
Three months ended December 31,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Segment revenue

Terminals and PIPELiNes .........cocverieiieiieieeee ettt ettt et e et eaeeaeens $ 44,087 $ 35,208
Environmental SEIVICES........uevtiriiriiriinieiienteneee ettt ettt ettt ettt senesbee b ennene 115,185 81,386
TTUCK TTanSPOTTALION ....ccuveiiuiiiriieiiieeite ettt ettt et ettt e et e sabe e bt e e bt e e bt e sabeesaseesareesnneenne 144,097 134,102
Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution .............c.ccoccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiceeeeeecee e 383,265 369,418
Processing and Wellsite FIULAS. .......coouiiiiiiiiiiiiieiececete ettt 162,253 156,930
IMATKEUINE ..ottt ettt sttt e s e et e et eeabee s beesabeessbeenstesnbaeenseesabeesasaessseensaesnsnessaennse 1,502,860 1,424,424
TOtal SEZMENE TEVEIIUE......eeutieiieiiiieiteetiteeiee sttt e et ettt e bt e e bt e s bt e s bt e sabeesbteesbteebeesbeesabeesabeesaeeens 2,351,747 2,201,468
Revenue — inter-SeZMENtal .........coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt et e (375,282) (285,430)
Total revenue — €XEEINAL .......oooeiiiiiieieeieeeeeeeee e aeaaa e aeaaaeaereseeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeees 1,976,465 1,916,038
Segment profit

Terminals and PIPEIINES ........coooueiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee ettt et 34,020 25,065
Environmental SEIVICES.......ccuevtiriiiiiriinierierteneee ettt sttt ettt ettt sanesbe e eaneas 28,097 22,564
TTUCK TTanSPOTTALION ...cccuveiiutiiriiieitieeite ettt ettt ettt eb e st e et e st e bt e bt e e bt e sabeesateesaneesaneenne 22,743 22,165
Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution .............ccccoccooiiiniiiiiiiniiiiiiceseeececee e 15,524 23,204
Processing and Wellsite FIULAS. .......coouiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieececeteec ettt 14,807 13,612
IMATKEUINE ..ottt ettt ettt e sttt ettt et e sabeesabeesabeessbeenstesabaesnseesaseesasaessseensaesnssessaennse 14,332 16,733
Total SEZMENt PrOFit .......cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et st 129,523 123,343
General and AdMINTISIIATIVE ... ...uuuuueeerrereirreseeereeeserarerereeee.——.——————————————————————eeeereeeerereeererrrrrerererereres 10,984 9,310
Depreciation and amOTtiZAtION ........ceeueerieerieritieeiteniee ettt ettt e et e st e sateesiteesbeessbeeenee e 58,338 52,002
Stock based COMPENSALION. ....c...eerueiiriierieiriiteriteeiee et etee st e ete e sttt e sate ettt e sbteebeesbeesabeesabeesaneenns 3,827 2,258
FOreign eXChange LOSS ......cciviiriiiiiieie ettt eiteeie ettt et ettt e st e s bt esabeesabeesaeesnbaesnseesaseensseenns 15,269 15,056
INEL INLETEST EXPEIISE ..uveeereeerierureeireesitesteeeseessseesseensseessseenseesseessseessseensssesssessseesseessseessessssesns 19,273 14,662
INCOME DEFOIE INCOIME TAX c.coeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e esasasssnsasasasssasssnsnnans 21,832 30,055
TNCOME tAX PIOVISION .teeevieiiieriieeiieeiteette et e sitteste ettt eeteebeessbeesateessbeensseenssesnseesssaessseesaseensseanes 8,426 9,331
INEE INICOIMNE .neeeeeeeee et e et e et e e et e e et e e e et e eeeaeeeeseaeeeseaaseeseenseeesanaeesssseeesaneeesaseeesssseeesanaee $ 13,406 $ 20,724
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Segment revenue increased by $60.4 million in the three months ended December 31, 2014 compared to the three months ended
December 31, 2013. Changes in segment revenue were as follows:

Terminals and Pipelines segment revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2014 increased by $8.9 million compared
to the three months ended December 31, 2013. The increase was largely due to an increase in revenue at the Hardisty
Terminal resulting from an increase in revenue from customers with dedicated tank usage that are subject to minimum
volumes and fixed fee arrangements, two additional large tanks coming into service and revenue from the commencement of
operations at the crude oil train rail loading facility;

Environmental Services segment revenue increased by $33.8 million in the three months ended December 31, 2014 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly due to increased volumes at the Company’s Canadian environmental
services facilities and an increase in the U.S. fluid disposal business;

Truck Transportation segment revenue increased by $9.9 million mainly as a result of increased rates for spot hauling
activities due to more long haul opportunities, increased service related charges, and also the favorable foreign exchange
impact of translating revenue denominated in U.S. dollars from the Company’s United States operations;

Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment revenue increased by $13.8 million due to higher industrial sales
volumes realized from the Cal-gas and Stittco acquisitions, offset in part by lower wholesale revenue;

Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment revenue increased by $5.3 million due to an increase in demand for road asphalt, frac
oils and tops and OBM products, partially offset by lower roofing flux and distillate revenues; and

Marketing segment revenue increased by $78.4 million which was driven by the impact of higher volumes.

Segment profit increased by $6.2 million or 5% in the three months ended December 31, 2014 compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in segment profit was due to:

Terminals and Pipelines segment profit increased by $8.9 million, largely due to increased volumes through the Company’s
terminals and the additional profit from customers with dedicated tank usage and the impact of the commencement or start-up
of operations at the crude oil train rail loading facility;

Environmental Services segment profit increased $5.5 million largely as a result of an increase in volumes from the Canadian
environmental services facilities and an increase in the U.S. fluid disposal business;

Truck Transportation segment profit increased by $0.6 million with the increase in revenues largely offset by higher
operating costs;

Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment profit decreased by $7.7 million due to reduced margins from the
wholesale business, largely as a result of lower volumes and unfavorable pricing conditions;

Processing and Wellsite Fluids segment profit increased by $1.2 million, primarily as a result of higher margins on asphalt,
frac oils and OBM products, partially offset by lower tops and distillate revenues; and

Marketing segment profit decreased by $2.4 million mainly due to lower margins partially offset by the impact of higher
volumes.

Net income was $13.4 million in the three months ended December 31, 2014 compared to $20.7 million in the three months
ended December 31, 2013. Net income decreased due to higher interest, depreciation and amortization, general and administrative
and stock based compensation expenses.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s quarterly results for each of the last eight quarters.

2014 2013

Three months ended December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31
(in thousands)
Revenues........cccooeveeennnen. $1,976,465  $2,360,007 $2,126,365 $2,110,692 $1,916,038  $1,841,894 $1,619,726 $1,563,011
Net income (loss) ............. 13,406 8,542 23,838 46,155 20,724 42,599 (5,235) 45,728
EBITDAY ...oon. 100,001 89,272 89,798 125,981 96,806 115,385 33,060 114,733
Adjusted EBITDA® ........ 119,302 114,134 82,684 136,945 115,284 103,533 87,176 121,044
Earnings (loss) per share

0.10 0.07 0.19 0.38 0.17 0.35 (0.04) 0.38

0.10 0.07 0.19 0.37 0.16 0.35 (0.04) 0.37

(1) EBITDA is not a measure recognized under IFRS and does not have standardized meanings prescribed by IFRS. EBITDA
consists of net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, and amortization.

(2) Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, other
non-cash expenses and charges deducted in determining consolidated net income (loss), including movement in the
unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s financial instruments, stock based compensation expense, impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets, and asset writedowns. It also removes the impact of foreign exchange movements in the
Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt, debt extinguishment expenses and adjustments that are considered non-

recurring in nature.

The Company presents EBITDA because it considers it to be an important supplemental measure of the Company’s performance
and believes this measure is frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of
companies in industries with similar capital structures. EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and readers should not
consider this item in isolation, or as a substitute for an analysis of the Company’s results as reported under IFRS. Some of these

limitations are:

- EBITDA:

- excludes certain income tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash available to the Company;
- does not reflect the Company’s cash expenditures, or future requirements, for capital expenditures or contractual

commitments;

- does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, the Company’s working capital needs; and

- does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest payments on the
Company’s debt, including the Senior Unsecured Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility;

- Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often have to
be replaced in the future and EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements; and

- Other companies in the industry may calculate EBITDA differently than the Company does, limiting its usefulness as a

comparative measure.
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Because of these limitations, EBITDA should not be considered as a measure of discretionary cash available to the Company to
invest in the growth of the Company’s business. The Company compensates for these limitations by relying primarily on the
Company’s IFRS results and using EBITDA only supplementally. The following table reconciles consolidated net income (loss)
to EBITDA:

2014 2013
Three months ended December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31
(in thousands)
Net income (10SS)............... $ 13,406 $ 8,542 $ 23,838 $ 46,155 $ 20,724 $ 42599 $ (5235) $ 45,728
Depreciation and
AMOTtization.................... 58,338 53,510 49,264 48,813 52,002 44 460 44,942 42,653
Interest expense'" ............ 19,831 18,774 15,331 13,662 14,749 14,901 (5,286) 10,842
Income tax expense
(TECOVELY) ovrverrereeerrens 8,426 8,446 1,365 17,351 9,331 13,425 (1,361) 15,510
EBITDA ...cooviiiiiininnns $100,001 $ 89272 $ 89,798 $ 125981 $ 96,806 $ 115385 $ 33,0600 $ 114,733

(1) Interest expense includes the impact of the change in net unrealized gains or losses attributable to movement in the mark to
market valuation of financial instruments relating to interest expense.

Adjusted EBITDA and Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA are presented in the table below because the Company believes it facilitates
investors’ use of operating performance comparisons from period to period and company to company by backing out potential
differences caused by variations in capital structures (affecting relative interest expense and foreign exchange differences on the
Company’s long-term debt), the book amortization of intangibles (affecting relative amortization expense) and the age and book
value of property, plant and equipment (affecting relative depreciation expense). The Company also presents Adjusted EBITDA
and Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA because it believes it is frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested
parties as a measure of financial performance. Adjusted EBITDA and Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA as presented herein are not
recognized measures under IFRS and should not be considered as an alternative to operating income or net income as measures of
operating results or an alternative to cash flows as measures of liquidity. Adjusted EBITDA differs from the term EBITDA as it is
commonly used. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as consolidated net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes,
depreciation, amortization, other non-cash expenses and charges deducted in determining consolidated net income (loss),
including movement in the unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s financial instruments, stock based compensation
expense, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets and asset writedowns. It also removes the impact of foreign exchange
movements in the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt, debt extinguishment expenses and other adjustments that
are considered non-recurring in nature. Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA differs from the term Adjusted EBITDA in that it also
includes the pro forma effect of acquisitions that took place in each fiscal year as if the acquisitions took place at the beginning of
the fiscal year in which such acquisition occurred. Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA is also used in calculating the Company’s
covenant compliance under the Company’s debt agreements.

The Company’s calculation of Adjusted EBITDA and Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to such calculations
used by other companies. In calculating Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA, the Company makes certain adjustments that are based on
assumptions and estimates that may prove to have been inaccurate. In addition, in evaluating Adjusted EBITDA and Pro Forma
Adjusted EBITDA, readers should be aware that in the future the Company may incur expenses similar to those eliminated in the
presentation herein.
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The following tables reconcile EBITDA to Adjusted EBITDA for each of the last eight quarters and Pro Forma Adjusted
EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Three months ended Year ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
(in thousands)
EBITDA ...ttt $ 100,001 $ 89272 $ 89,798 $ 125981 $ 405,052
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) on long-term debt " ... 21,615 29,260 (19,725) 20,850 52,000
Net unrealized loss (gain) from financial instruments D e, (6,141) (8,361) 9,064 (13,014) (18,452)
Share based compensation @ ..............coooeviveeeereeeeeeeee e 3,827 3,642 3,380 3,128 13,977
Acquisition related costs ..o - 321 167 - 488
Adjusted EBITDA ....cc.cooiiiiiiiiieicecteceeecsieeceeeene $ 119,302 $ 114,134 $ 82,684 $ 136,945 $ 453,065
Pro forma impact of acquisitions © ............cocoovveeeeiereerrenn. 5,129
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA $ 458,194
Three months ended Year ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
(in thousands)

EBITDA ...ttt et $ 96,806 $ 115385 $ 33,0600 $ 114,733 $ 359,984
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) on long-term debt o 17,549 (11,350) 22,898 13,354 42,451
Net unrealized (gain) from financial instruments D e (1,329) (2,867) (9,014) (8,668) (21,878)
Share based compensation @ ..............ccccooiirrrriereeiereeeenn. 2,258 2,365 2,023 1,625 8,271
Debt extinguishment costs et eee et s e e anen - - 38,209 - 38,209
Adjusted EBITDA .....coooiiieiieeeeeseeeiee e $ 115,284 $ 103,533 $ 87,176 $ 121,044 $ 427,037
Pro forma impact of acquisitions @ .............ccccocoviiriirierirn. -
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA .......ccccoeiiiiiriinieieneeeeceeeeen $ 427,037

(1) Non-cash adjustment representing the unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) on long-term debt, as a result of the movement
in exchange rates in the periods.

(2) Reflects the exclusion of the movement in the mark-to-market valuation of financial instruments used in risk management
activities. The Company uses crude oil and NGL priced futures, options and swaps to manage the exposure to commodities
price movements and foreign currency forward contracts and options to manage foreign exchange risks, although the
Company does not formally designate these financial instruments as hedges for accounting purposes. Accordingly, the
unrealized gains or losses on these financial instruments are recorded directly to the income statement. Management believes
that this adjustment better correlates the effect of risk management activities to the underlying operating activities to which
they relate.

(3) Represents the non-cash stock based compensation relating to the Company’s equity incentive plan.

(4) In connection with the repayment of the Company’s long-term debt and termination of the previous revolving credit facility,
the Company recorded $38.2 million of non-cash debt extinguishment expenses in the three months ended June 30, 2013.

(5) Represents transaction fees that were expensed in connection with acquisitions made by the Company.

(6) Reflects the pro forma impact of acquisitions on the Company’s Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA as if the acquisitions that took
place in the twelve months occurred on January 1 of each twelve month period.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s primary liquidity and capital resource needs are to fund ongoing capital expenditures, growth opportunities and
acquisitions and to fund its targeted dividend level. In addition, the Company must service its debt, including interest payments
and finance working capital needs. The Company relies on its cash flow from operations, debt and equity financings and
borrowings under the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility for liquidity.

The Company’s operating cash flow has historically been affected by the overall profitability of sales within the Company’s
segments, the Company’s ability to invoice and collect from customers in a timely manner and the Company’s ability to
efficiently implement the Company’s acquisition strategy and manage costs. The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and cash flow
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from operations have historically been sufficient to meet the Company’s working capital, capital expenditure and debt servicing
requirements.

The following table summarizes the Company’s sources and uses of funds for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

(in thousands)
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows provided by (used in):
OPEIALNG ACHIVITICS .vveuvieuteeieetiertierteeteetestteste et etesetesteenteeaeesneesaeesseenseeneesseenseanseenseeneesseeseansens $ 336,228 $ 331,631
TNVESHNG ACHVILIES. ..eeuveieeieriiieiieeeiteerte ettt ettt ettt e sab e bt e sbt e e bt e st e sabee st e e sareesaeeas (495,015) (232,250)
FINANCING ACHVILIES ..uveeeuieiriiiiiieeite ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e bt e sb e e ebee st eesabeesateesaneens 188,199 (66,672)

Cash provided by operating activities

The primary drivers of cash flow from operating activities are the collection of amounts related to sales of products such as crude
oil, propane, NGLs, asphalt and other products and fees for services provided associated with the Company’s Truck
Transportation, Terminals and Pipelines and Environmental Services segments. Offsetting these collections are payments for
purchases of crude oil and other products and other expenses. Other expenses primarily consist of owner-operator and lease
operator payments for the provision of contract trucking services, field operating expenses and G&A expenses. Historically, the
Marketing and the Processing and Wellsite Fluids segments have been the most variable with respect to generating cash flows due
to the impact of crude oil price levels and the volatility that price changes and crude oil grade basis changes have on the cash
flows and working capital requirements of these segments.

Cash provided by operations in the year ended December 31, 2014 was $336.2 million compared to $331.6 million in the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in overall segment profitability, partially offset by
an increase in net accounts receivable and accounts payable and income tax paid.

Cash used in investing activities

Cash used in investing activities consists primarily of expenditures for growth capital, upgrade and replacement capital and
business acquisitions.

Cash used in investing activities was $495.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $232.3 million in the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in cash used in investing activities was due largely to the Cal-Gas and Stittco acquisitions
and capital expenditures in 2014. For a summary of capital expenditures, see “Capital expenditures” included in this MD&A.

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $188.2 million compared to cash used in financing activities of $66.7 million in the
year ended December 31, 2013.

The main reason for the change in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013 was primarily the
completion of the debt offering and amendment for net proceeds of $352.0 million offset in part by the payment of net cash
dividends of $108.2 million and interest of $62.1 million.

In addition, in the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company completed the notes offering on June 28, 2013 for proceeds, net
of issue discount of, $764.2 million, which was offset in part by the repayment of the Tranche B Term Loan of $678.1 million.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company also paid debt issue and financing costs of $16.2 million, paid net cash
dividends of $93.9 million, paid interest of $19.8 million, received net proceeds of $8.7 million on settlement of certain derivative
financial instruments relating to interest expense and foreign exchange and received proceeds of $1.2 million on the exercise of
stock options.

Liquidity sources, requirements and contractual cash requirements and commitments

The Company believes that cash on hand, together with cash from operations and borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility,
will be adequate to meet its working capital needs, upgrade and replacement capital expenditures, currently sanctioned growth
capital projects, debt service, targeted dividend level and other cash requirements for at least the next twelve months. The
Company had unrestricted cash of $131.9 million and $442.5 million available under the Revolving Credit Facility as at
December 31, 2014.
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The Company’s ability to make interest payments on the Company’s indebtedness, to pay targeted dividends and to fund the
Company’s other liquidity requirements will depend on the Company’s ability to generate cash in the future. In the three months
ended December 31, 2014, the Company declared a dividend of $0.30 per share for a total dividend of $37.3 million, of which
$29.1 million was paid in cash on January 16, 2015 with the remainder of the dividend being settled with the issuance of common
shares to shareholders participating in the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan (“DRIP”) and stock dividend program (“SDP”).
The declaration of dividends is considered on a quarterly basis and is at the sole discretion of the Board and will be determined on
the basis of earnings, financial requirements for operations and a solvency calculation.

Capital expenditures amounted to $411.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2014. As previously announced, the Company’s
planned capital expenditures for 2015 are expected to be approximately $510.0 million. While the Company anticipates that these
planned capital expenditures will occur, they are subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and
other factors, some of which are beyond the Company’s control.

In addition to anticipated capital expenditures, the Company may engage in additional strategic acquisitions and capital
expenditures as opportunities arise that benefit the Company’s existing operations by expanding the Company’s reach in existing
markets or by providing platforms by which to enter new markets. Any such acquisition or capital expenditure could be material
and could have a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, cash flows and capital commitments and resources. Any future
acquisitions, capital expenditures or other similar transactions may require additional capital and there can be no assurance that
such capital will be available to the Company on acceptable terms, or at all.

On June 12, 2014, the Company closed a Senior Unsecured Notes offering consisting of $300.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 5.375% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2022 and U.S.$50.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.75% Senior
Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2021. The net proceeds from this offering were used to repay all outstanding indebtedness under its
existing Revolving Credit Facility (excluding letters of credit), with the remaining net proceeds used to fund capital expenditures
and general corporate purposes.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had total outstanding Senior Unsecured Notes, excluding debt discount and the issuance
costs, of U.S.$550.0 million bearing fixed interest of 6.75% per annum due July 15, 2021, $250.0 million bearing fixed interest of
7.00% per annum due July 15, 2020 and $300.0 million bearing fixed interest of 5.375% per annum due July 15, 2022
(collectively the “Notes”). Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year the Notes are outstanding.

The Notes agreements contain certain redemption options whereby the Company can redeem all or part of the Notes subject to
certain premiums if such prepayment occurs prior to the dates specified in the agreements. In addition, the Note holders have the
right to require the Company to redeem the Notes or a portion thereof, at the redemption prices set forth in the agreements in the
event of change in control or in the event certain asset sale proceeds are not re-invested in the time and manner specified in the
agreements.

On August 20, 2014, the Company amended the terms of its $500.0 million secured revolving credit facility to, among other
things, release all security held by its lenders, to extend the maturity date from June 2018 to August 2019 and to revise the
definition of senior debt leverage ratio to consist of total debt excluding subordinated debt.

The Revolving Credit Facility of $500.0 million, the proceeds of which are available to provide financing for working capital and
other general corporate purposes, has an accordion feature whereby the Company can increase the Revolving Credit Facility to
$750.0 million subject to obtaining incremental lender commitments. The Revolving Credit Facility has an extendible term of five
years, expiring on August 15, 2019. The Revolving Credit Facility provides sub-facilities for letters of credit, swingline loans and
borrowings in Canadian dollars and U.S. dollars. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to
Canadian Prime Rate or U.S. Base Rate or U.S. LIBOR or Canadian Bankers Acceptance Rate as the case may be plus an
applicable margin. The applicable margin for borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility is subject to step up and step down
based on the Company’s total debt leverage ratio. In addition, the Company must pay a standby fee on the unused portion of the
Revolving Credit Facility and customary letter of credit fees equal to the applicable margins determined in a manner similar to the
interest.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had no amounts drawn under the Revolving Credit Facility, had no restricted cash, and had
issued letters of credit totaling $57.5 million.

The terms of the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility require the Company to maintain certain covenants defined in the
agreement including a consolidated senior debt leverage ratio of no greater than 3.5 to 1.0, a consolidated total debt leverage ratio
of no greater than 4.0 to 1.0 and an interest coverage ratio of no less than 2.5 to 1.0. As at December 31, 2014, the Company was
in compliance with the financial ratios with the senior debt leverage ratio at 2.2 to 1.0, total debt leverage ratio at 2.2 to 1.0, and
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the interest coverage ratio at 6.7 to 1.0. If the Company fails to comply with the financial covenants, the lenders may declare an
event of default. An event of default resulting from a breach of a financial covenant may result, at the option of lenders holding a
majority of the loans, in an acceleration of repayment of the principal and interest outstanding and a termination of the Revolving
Credit Facility.

The Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility contain non-financial covenants that restrict, subject to certain thresholds, some of
the Company’s activities, including the Company’s ability to dispose of assets, incur additional debt, pay dividends, create liens,
make investments and engage in specified transactions with affiliates. The Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility also contain
customary events of default, including defaults based on events of bankruptcy and insolvency, non-payment of principal, interest
or fees when due, breach of covenants, change in control and material inaccuracy of representations and warranties, subject to
specified grace periods. As of December 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with all of its covenants under the Notes and
the Revolving Credit Facility.

Contingencies

The Company is currently undergoing various income tax related and excise tax audits. While the final outcome of such audits
cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company believes that the resolution of these audits will not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. As a part of the acquisition of the Company by the wholly-
owned subsidiary of R/C Guitar Cooperatief U.A., a Dutch Co-operative owned by investment funds affiliated with Riverstone
Holdings LLC, from Hunting PLC (“Hunting”) on December 12, 2008, Hunting has indemnified the Company for the pre-closing
period impact of these audits.

The Company is subject to various regulatory and statutory requirements relating to the protection of the environment. These
requirements, in addition to the contractual agreements and management decisions, result in the recognition of estimated
decommissioning obligations and environmental remediation. Estimates of decommissioning obligations and environmental
remediation costs can change significantly based on such factors as operating experience and changes in legislation and
regulations.

The Company is involved in various legal actions which have occurred in the ordinary course of business. The Company is of the
opinion that losses, if any, arising from such legal actions would not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Contractual obligations

The following table presents, at December 31, 2014, the Company’s obligations and commitments to make future payments under
contracts and contingent commitments:

Payments due by period

Less than More than
(in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-term debt™ ..........coooovviiieieieeceee e $1,188,055  $ -8 -3 - $1,188,055
Interest payments on long-term debt'" ................c..ccoccoo.... 596,647 76,694 153,388 153,388 213,177

Operating lease and other commitments® ........ocovevvrennn, 301,274 70,097 119,333 87,523 24,321
Total contractual Obligations ............ccceeveveeeveveereereernenenen. $2,085976  $146,791  $ 272,721  $ 240911  $1,425,553

(1) The exchange rate used to translate the U.S. dollar obligations on the Company’s long-term debt and interest payments is the
rate as of December 31, 2014 of U.S.$0.8620 to $1.00.

(2) Operating lease and other commitments relate to an office lease for the Company’s Calgary head office, rail tank cars,
vehicles, field buildings, various equipment leases and terminal services arrangements.

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has identified and approved a capital expenditure budget, excluding acquisitions, of
$409.1 million that the Company expects to undertake over the next 12 to 24 months. In addition, the Company had accrued
liabilities for obligations with respect to the Company’s defined benefit plans of $5.7 million and provisions associated with site
restoration on the retirement of assets and environmental costs of $136.3 million but the timing of such payments is uncertain due
to the estimates used to calculate these amounts and the long-term nature of these balances. The Company also has commitments
relating to its risk management contracts which are discussed further in “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
Risks”.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a material current or
future effect on the Company’s financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditure or
capital expenses that are material to investors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On August 11, 2011, the Company formed a partnership (the “Plato Partnership”) to jointly construct and own a pipeline and
emulsion treating, water disposal and oilfield waste management facilities in the Plato area of Saskatchewan. The Plato
Partnership commenced operations in 2012. The Company’s interest in the Plato Partnership is 50%. A member of the
Company’s Board is also a director of the other party with the 50% interest in the Plato Partnership. At December 31, 2014 and
2013, the Company’s proportionate share of property, plant and equipment was $10.2 million and $10.5 million, respectively. The
impact of the Company’s share of the other financial position and results of the Plato Partnership is not material to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions noted above have been measured at agreed upon market based terms.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares. As at
December 31, 2014, there were 124.5 million common shares outstanding and no preferred shares outstanding. In addition, under
the Company’s equity incentive award plan, there were an aggregate of 1.3 million restricted share units, performance share units
and deferred share units outstanding and 2.5 million stock options outstanding as at December 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2014, awards available to grant under the Company’s amended equity incentive plan were approximately 8.6
million.

As at February 27, 2015, 124.9 million common shares, 1.3 million restricted share units, performance share units and deferred
share units and 2.5 million stock options were outstanding.

DIVIDENDS

The Company is currently paying quarterly dividends to holders of common shares. The payment of dividends is not guaranteed,
and the amount and timing of any dividends payable by Gibson will be at the discretion of the Board and will be established on
the basis of Gibson's earnings, financial requirements for operations, the satisfaction of a solvency calculation and the terms of the
Company’s debt agreements. In addition, in connection with Company’s dividend policy, after each fiscal year end the Board will
formally review the annual dividend amount.

The Board has approved a DRIP and a SDP that provide eligible holders of common shares with the opportunity to reinvest their
cash dividends, on each dividend payment date, in additional common shares to be issued from treasury of Gibson. For the
dividend paid on January 16, 2015, holders of approximately 22.0% of the common shares participated in the DRIP and SDP.
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DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOW

Distributable cash flow is not a standard measure under IFRS and, therefore, may not be comparable to similar measures reported
by other entities. Distributable cash flow is used to assess the level of cash flow generated from ongoing operations and to
evaluate the adequacy of internally generated cash flow to fund dividends. Changes in non-cash working capital are excluded
from the determination of distributable cash flow because they are primarily the result of fluctuations in product inventories or
other temporary changes. Upgrade and replacement capital expenditures are deducted from distributable cash flow as they are
ongoing recurring expenditures.

The following is a reconciliation of distributable cash flow to its most closely related IFRS measure, cash flow from operating
activities.

Year ended
December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)
Cash flow frTom Operating aCtivities ..........cevereereierierienienenieere ettt et e e $ 336,228 $331,631
Adjustments:
Changes in non-cash working capital ............cccoeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 105,291 90,043
Upgrade and replacement capital ...........cc.cocooiiiiiiiiiiniiniciecceceee e (59,035) (69,513)
Cash interest expense, including capitalized INtErest.............ccceeveeriieiiiiieeiiniienienececeeee. (68,708) (46,909)
CUITENT INCOIME TAX ceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e s e s e s e s e sssssansnsnnseeeeeeeaeeeees (48,549) (52,074)
Distributable cash flOW .....c.co.cueciriiiiiniiiiiiiec ettt e $ 265,227 $253,178
Dividends declared to shareholders .............ocoeiriiiiiiiiiiiiniiiic e $ 148,573 $ 133,682

Dividends declared in the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 were $148.6 million, of which $112.5 million was paid in
cash and the balance was settled with the issuance of common shares under the Company’s DRIP and SDP. In the twelve months
ended December 31, 2014, dividends declared represented 56% of the distributable cash flow generated, or distributable cash
flow was 1.8 times dividends declared.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is involved in various commodity related marketing activities that are intended to enhance the Company’s
operations and increase profitability. These activities often create exposure to price risk between the time contracted volumes are
purchased and sold and to foreign exchange risk when contracts are in different currencies (Canadian dollar versus U.S. dollar).
The Company is also exposed to various market risks, including volatility in (i) crude oil, refined products, natural gas and NGL
prices, (ii) interest rates and (iii) currency exchange rates. The Company utilizes various derivative instruments from time to time
to manage commodity price, interest rate and currency exchange rate exposure and, in certain circumstances, to realize
incremental margin during volatile market conditions. The Company’s commodity trading and risk management policies and
procedures are designed to establish and manage to an approved level of Value at Risk. The Company has a Risk Management
Committee that has direct responsibility and authority for the Company’s risk policies and the Company’s trading controls and
procedures and certain aspects of corporate risk management. The Company’s approved strategies are intended to mitigate risks
that are inherent in the Company’s core businesses of aggregating and marketing and distribution. To hedge the risks discussed
above the Company engages in risk management activities that the Company categorizes by the risks the Company is hedging and
by the physical product that is creating the risk. The following discussion addresses each category of risk.

Commodity Price Risk. The Company hedges its exposure to price fluctuations with respect to crude oil, refined products, natural
gas and NGLs, and expected purchases and sales of these commodities (relating primarily to crude oil, roofing flux, propane sales
and purchases of natural gasoline). The derivative instruments utilized consist primarily of futures and option contracts traded on
the NYMEX, ICE and over-the-counter transactions, including swap and option contracts entered into with financial institutions
and other energy companies. The Company’s policy is to transact only in commodity derivative products for which the Company
physically transacts, and to structure the Company’s hedging activities so that price fluctuations for those products do not
materially affect the net cash the Company ultimately receives from its commodity related marketing activities.

Although the Company seeks to maintain a position that is substantially balanced within the Company’s various commodity
purchase and sales activities, the Company may experience net unbalanced positions as a result of production, transportation and
delivery variances as well as logistical issues associated with inclement weather conditions.
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Although the intent of the Company’s risk management strategy is to hedge the Company’s margin, the Company has not
designated nor attempted to qualify for hedge accounting. Thus, changes in the fair values of all of the Company’s derivatives are
recognized in earnings, and result in greater potential for earnings volatility.

The fair value of futures contracts is based on quoted market prices obtained from the CME. The fair value of swaps and option
contracts is estimated based on quoted prices from various sources such as independent reporting services, industry publications
and brokers. These quotes are compared to the contract price of the swap, which approximates the gain or loss that would have
been realized if the contracts had been closed out at the period end. For positions where independent quotations are not available,
an estimate is provided, or the prevailing market price at which the positions could be liquidated is used. No such positions
existed as at December 31, 2014 and 2013. All derivative positions offset existing or anticipated physical exposures. Price-risk
sensitivities were calculated by assuming 15% volatility in crude oil and NGL related prices, regardless of term or historical
relationships between the contractual price of the instruments and the underlying commodity price. In the event of an increase or
decrease in prices, the fair value of the Company’s derivative portfolio would typically increase or decrease, offsetting changes in
the Company’s physical positions. A 15% favorable change would increase the Company’s net income by $5.6 million and
$3.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. A 15% unfavorable change would decrease the Company’s net
income by $5.6 million and $3.0 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. However, these changes may be offset
by the use of one or more risk management strategies.

Interest rate risks. Following the Notes offering, the Company’s long-term debt accrues interest at fixed interest rates and
accordingly, changes in market interest rates do not expose the Company to future interest cash outflow variability.

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, the Company is subject to interest rate risk, as borrowings bear interest at a rate equal to, at
the Company’s option, either U.S. LIBOR, U.S. Base Rate, Canadian Prime Rate or Canadian Bankers’ Acceptance rate, plus an
applicable margin based on the Company’s total leverage ratio. As at December 31, 2014, the Company had no amounts drawn
under the Revolving Credit Facility and accordingly, was not exposed to the interest rate cash flow risk.

Currency exchange risks. The Company’s monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the period-end
rate. Exchange differences arising from this translation are recorded in the Company’s statement of operations. In addition,
currency exposures can arise from revenues and purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Generally, transactional
currency exposures are naturally hedged (i.e., revenues and expenses are approximately matched), but where appropriate, are
covered using forward exchange contracts. All of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company,
although effective hedges from an economic perspective, have not been designated as hedges for accounting purposes, and
therefore any gains and losses on such forward exchange contracts impact the Company’s earnings. A 5% unfavorable change in
the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar would affect the fair value of the Company’s outstanding forward
currency contracts and options and would decrease the Company’s net income by $3.2 million and $5.3 million as at December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. A 5% favorable change would increase the Company’s net income by $3.2 million and
$5.1 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company expects to continue to enter into financial
derivatives, primarily forward contracts, to reduce foreign exchange volatility.

Additionally, currency exposure occurs on a portion of the principal of the Company’s long-term debt and the related interest
payments, as they are denominated in U.S. dollars. As at December 31, 2014, the Company had outstanding U.S. dollar
denominated debt of U.S.$550.0 million.

As at December 31, 2014, the Company had U.S. dollar forward contracts to buy U.S. dollars at a weighted average rate of
$1.0242 for U.S.$1.00 for a notional amount of U.S.$250.0 million expiring on September 15, 2017 and the Company also sold
U.S. dollar call options at a strike price of $1.295 for U.S.$1.00 on a notional amount of U.S.$250.0 million expiring on
September 15, 2017. A 5% unfavorable change in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar would impact both
the carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt and the related foreign currency contracts and would decrease the Company’s
net income by $10.7 million and $11.6 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. A corresponding favorable
change would increase the Company’s net income by $10.7 million and $11.6 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

With respect to the related interest payments on the U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt, to date the Company has not entered
into any foreign currency hedges as the Company believes that it will generate enough U.S. dollar cash inflows to pay these
interest payments when due. Based on the interest rate in effect at December 31, 2014, a 5% unfavorable change in the value of
the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar as of December 31, 2014 would increase the Company’s annual interest expense by
$2.2 million. A 5% favorable change in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar as of December 31, 2014
would decrease the Company’s annual interest expense by $2.2 million.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Critical accounting policies and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. Predicting future events is inherently an imprecise activity and, as such, requires the use of judgment. Actual results
may vary from estimates in amounts that may be material to the financial statements. An accounting policy is deemed to be
critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time
the estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably could have been used, or changes in the accounting estimates that
are reasonably likely to occur periodically, could materially impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The
Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates are as follows:

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination. In conjunction with each business combination, the
Company must allocate the cost of the acquired entity to the assets and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at
the date of acquisition. Determining the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired, as well as intangible assets that relate to such
items as customer relationships, brands, contracts, and industry expertise involves professional judgment and is ultimately based
on acquisition models and management’s assessment of the value of the assets acquired and, to the extent available, third party
assessments. Uncertainties associated with these estimates include changes in production volumes, changes in commodity prices,
fluctuations in capacity or product slates, economic obsolescence factors in the area and potential future sources of cash flow.
During the measurement period, the allocation of purchase price of the acquired entity may be adjusted when the initial
accounting for business combination is recorded based on provisional amounts. Although the resolution of these uncertainties has
not historically had a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition, the actual amounts may vary
significantly from estimated amounts. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the net fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Recoverability of asset carrying values. The Company carries out impairment reviews in respect of goodwill at least annually or if
indicators of impairment exist. The Company also assesses during each reporting period whether there have been any events or
changes in circumstances that indicate that property, plant and equipment, inventories and other intangible assets may be impaired
and an impairment review is carried out whenever such an assessment indicates that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Such indicators include changes in the Company’s business plans, changes in activity levels, and an increase in the discount rate,
the intention of “holding” versus “selling” and evidence of physical damage. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Where impairment exists, the asset is written
down to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairments are
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of operations.

The assessment for impairment entails comparing the carrying value of the asset or cash-generating unit with its recoverable
amount, that is, the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future net cash flows. However, the determination as to whether and how much an asset is impaired involves
management estimates on highly uncertain matters such as the outlook for global or regional market supply-and-demand
conditions, future commodity prices, the effects of inflation on operating expenses and discount rates.

In the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any impairment charge with respect to property, plant
and equipment, goodwill or intangible assets.

Income tax. Income tax expense represents the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred income tax. Interest and
penalties relating to income tax are also included in income tax expense. Deferred income tax is provided for using the liability
method of accounting. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial
reporting and income tax basis of assets and liabilities. These differences are then measured using enacted or substantially enacted
income tax rates and laws that will be in effect when these differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in income
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs.

The computation of the Company’s income tax expense involves the interpretation of applicable tax laws and regulations in many
jurisdictions. The resolution of tax positions taken by the Company can take significant time to complete and in some cases it is
difficult to predict the ultimate outcome. In addition, the Company has carry-forward tax losses in certain taxing jurisdictions that
are available to offset against future taxable profit. However, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. Management judgement is
exercised in assessing whether this is the case. To the extent that actual outcomes differ from management’s estimates, income tax
charges or credits may arise in future periods.
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Financial instruments. In situations where the Company is required to mark financial instruments to market, the estimates of
gains or losses at a particular period-end do not reflect the end results of particular transactions, and will most likely not reflect
the actual gain or loss at the conclusion of the underlying transactions. The Company reflects the fair value estimates for financial
instruments based on valuation information from third parties. The calculation of the fair value of certain of these financial
instruments is based on proprietary models and assumptions of third parties because such instruments are not quoted on an active
market. Additionally, estimates of fair value for such financial instruments may vary among different models due to a difference
in assumptions applied, such as the estimate of prevailing market prices, volatility, correlations and other factors, and may not be
reflective of the price at which they can be settled due to the lack of a liquid market. Although the resolution of these uncertainties
has not historically had a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition, the actual amounts may
vary significantly from estimated amounts.

Provisions and accrued liabilities. The Company uses estimates to record liabilities for obligations associated with site restoration
on the retirement of assets and environmental costs, taxes, potential legal claims, and other accruals and liabilities.

Liabilities for site restoration on the retirement of assets are recognized when the Company has an obligation to restore the site,
and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. An obligation may also crystallize during the period of operation of a
facility through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate operations. The amount recognized is the present value
of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with local conditions and requirements. The present value is
determined by discounting the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a risk-free discount rate.
Estimated future expenditure is based on all known facts at the time and current expected plans for decommissioning. Among the
many uncertainties that may impact the estimates are changes in laws and regulations, public expectations, prices and changes in
technology. A corresponding item of property, plant and equipment of an amount equivalent to the provision is also recorded.
This is subsequently depreciated as part of the asset. Other than the unwinding discount on the provision, any change in the
present value of the estimated expenditure is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the corresponding item of property,
plant and equipment. As a result of a change in the risk-free rate and upward revision to the initial costs estimates, the Company
recorded an increase to the provision of $40.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2014, with a corresponding increase to
property, plant and equipment.

Liabilities for environmental costs are recognized when a clean-up is probable and the associated costs can be reliably estimated.
Generally, the timing of recognition of these provisions coincides with the completion of a feasibility study or a commitment to a
formal plan of action. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the expenditure required. Where the liability will not be
settled for a number of years, the amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure. Estimated future
expenditure is based on all known facts at the time and an assessment of the ultimate outcome. A number of factors affect the cost
of environmental remediation, including the determination of the extent of contamination, the length of time remediation may
require, the complexity of environmental regulations and the advancement of remediation technology.

Other provisions and accrued liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of
recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances, which can
be subject to change. Since the actual cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions
and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances. A change in estimate of a
recognized provision or accrued liability would result in a charge or credit to net income in the period in which the change occurs.

Amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company adopted the following amendments to IFRS that were effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on
or after January 1, 2014.

e TAS 32, Financial Instruments, Presentation (‘‘IAS 32°’) has been amended to clarify the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and liabilities. The amendment clarifies that the right to offset must be available on the current date and cannot be
contingent on a future event. The Company adopted these amendments on January 1, 2014 which did not result in any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

e JFRIC 21, Accounting for Levies imposed by governments (‘‘IFRIC 21°") was issued which clarifies that the obligating event
giving rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers payment of the levy. The
Company adopted IFRIC 21 on January 1, 2014 which did not result in any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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IFRS 2, Share based payments (‘‘IFRS 2°*) has been amended to clarify the definition of vesting conditions. The amendment
clarifies that the vesting condition is either a service or performance condition and separately defines these two conditions.
The Company adopted these amendments on July 1, 2014 which did not result in any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 3, Business combinations (‘‘IFRS 3°’) has been amended to clarify that an obligation to pay contingent consideration
which meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability or as equity, on the basis of the
definitions in IAS 32. The standard is further amended to clarify that all non-equity contingent consideration, both financial
and non-financial, is measured at fair value at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognized in profit and loss.
The Company adopted these amendments on July 1, 2014 which did not result in any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted

The annual improvements process addresses issues in the 2012-2014 reporting cycles including changes to IFRS 5, Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations, IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19, Employee
benefits, and IAS 34, Interim financial reporting. These improvements are effective for periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting these improvements on its consolidated financial
statements.

The annual improvements process addresses issues in the 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 reporting cycles including changes to
IFRS 13, Fair value measurements, IFRS 8, Operating segments and IAS 24, Related party transactions. These improvements
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting these improvements on its consolidated financial statements.

IAS 19, Employee benefits, has been amended to clarify the application of requirements to plans that require employees or
third parties to contribute toward the cost of the benefits. The amendment to IAS 19 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2014. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting these improvements on its consolidated
financial statements.

IAS 16, Property Plant and Equipment (“IAS 16”), and IAS 38, Intangible Assets (“IAS 38”), has been amended to (i) clarify
that the use of a revenue-based depreciation and amortization method is not appropriate, and (ii) provide a rebuttable
presumption that amortization of an intangible asset based on revenue generated by using the asset is inappropriate. The
amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements (“IFRS 107), and IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures (“TAS
28), has been amended to address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in regards to a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or
loss is recognized when the transaction involves a business combination, and whereas a partial gain is recognized when the
transaction involves the assets that do not constitute a business. Additionally, the amendments clarify the exception from
preparing consolidated financial statements, the consolidation requirements for subsidiaries which act as an extension of an
investment entity, and the requirements for equity accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures. The
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations (“IFRS 117), has been amended to provide specific
guidance on accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that is a business. The amendment to IFRS 11 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (“IFRS 15), has been issued as a new standard on revenue recognition and
will supersede IAS 18, Revenue, IAS 11, Construction Contracts and related interpretations. IFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on
its consolidated financial statements.

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) completed the final element of its comprehensive publication of
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in July 2014. The package of improvements introduced by IFRS 9 includes a logical model for
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classification and measurement, a single, forward-looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model and a substantially-reformed
approach to hedge accounting. The IASB has previously published versions of IFRS 9 that introduced new classification and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013). The July 2014 publication
represents the final version of the Standard, replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on its consolidated financial
statements.

e JAS 1, Presentation of financial statements (“IAS 1”), has been amended to clarify the guidance on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendment to IAS 1 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS & PROCEDURES

As part of the requirements mandated by the Canadian securities regulatory authorities under National Instrument 52-109-
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings ("NI 52-109"), the Company’s Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
and the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") have evaluated the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures ("DC&P"), as such term is defined in NI 52-109, as at December 31, 2014. The CEO and CFO are also responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting, ("ICFR"), as such term is defined in NI 52-109. In making
its assessment, management used the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) to evaluate the design and effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the Company’s financial
reporting and compliance with IFRS. The Company’s CEO and CFO have evaluated, or caused to be evaluated under their
supervision, the design and operational effectiveness of such controls as at December 31, 2014.

In accordance with the provisions of NI 52-109, management, including the CEO and CFO, have limited the scope of their design
of the Company's DC&P and ICFR to exclude controls, policies and procedures of Cal-Gas and Stittco. Gibson acquired Cal-Gas
and Stittco on August 1, 2014, and April 1, 2014, respectively. Cal-Gas and Stittco’s contribution to the Company's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 was approximately $61.8 million of consolidated net
revenues and approximately $3.1 million of consolidated income before tax. Additionally, as at December 31, 2014, Cal-Gas and
Stittco’s current assets and current liabilities were approximately $43.8 million and $13.3 million, respectively, and its non-
current assets and non-current liabilities were approximately $112.6 million and $13.6 million, respectively The scope limitation
is primarily due to the time required for the Company’s management to assess Cal-Gas and Stittco’s DC&P and ICFR in a manner
consistent with the Company's other operations.

Based on the evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of the Company’s DC&P and ICFR, the CEO and the CFO
concluded that Gibson's DC&P and ICFR were effective as at December 31, 2014. There have been no changes in ICFR that
occurred during the period beginning January 1, 2014 and ended on December 31, 2014 that has materially affected or is
reasonably likely to materially affect Gibson’s ICFR.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this MD &A constitute forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or the
Company’s future performance. All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements. The use of
any of the words “‘anticipate’’, “‘plan’’, ‘‘contemplate’’, “‘continue’’, ‘‘estimate’’, “‘expect’’, ‘‘intend’’, ‘‘propose’’, ‘‘might’’,
“may’’, “will”’, “‘shall’’, “‘project’’, “‘should’’, ‘‘could’’, ‘‘would’’, ‘‘believe’’, ‘‘predict’’, ‘‘forecast’’, ‘‘pursue’’, ‘‘potential’’
and ‘“‘capable’’ and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated
in such forward-looking statements. No assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-
looking statements included in this MD &A should not be unduly relied upon. These statements speak only as of the date of this
MD&A. In particular, this MD &A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:

e the addition of assets to the business and the increase in the number of services to be offered by the Company;

e the Company's investment in new equipment, technology, facilities and personnel;

e the Company's growth strategy to expand in existing and new markets;

*  the availability of sufficient liquidity for planned growth;

* new technology and drilling methodology being deployed towards conventional and unconventional production within the
Company's operating areas;

* uncertainty and volatility relating to crude prices and price differentials between crude oil streams and blending agents;

* increased crude oil production and exploration activity on shore in North America, including from the Canadian oil sands;

e the expansion of midstream infrastructure in North America to handle increased production and expansion of capacity in the
U.S. refining complex to handle heavier crude oil from the WCSB;

e the effect of competition in regions of North America and its impact on downward pricing pressure and regional crude oil
price differentials among crude oil grades and locations;

e the effect of market volatility on the Company's marketing revenues and activities;

e the Company's ability to pay down and retire indebtedness;

e the Company's plans for additional strategic acquisitions, capital expenditures or other similar transaction, including the
costs thereof;

e the Company's planned hedging activities;

e the Company's projections of commodity purchase and sales activities;

e the Company's projections of currency and interest rate fluctuations;

e the Company’s projections of a growing dividend; and

e the Company's dividend policy and continuing availability of the Company’s DRIP and SDP.

With respect to forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A, assumptions have been made regarding, among other
things:

e future growth in world-wide demand for crude oil and petroleum products;

*  crude oil prices supporting increased production and services in North America, including the Canadian oil sands;

*  no material defaults by the counterparties to agreements with the Company;

e the Company's ability to obtain qualified personnel, owner-operators, lease operators and equipment in a timely and cost-
efficient manner;

e the regulatory framework governing taxes and environmental matters in the jurisdictions in which the Company conducts
and will conduct its business;

*  operating costs;

*  future capital expenditures to be made by the Company;

*  the Company's ability to obtain financing for its capital programs on acceptable terms;

e the Company's future debt levels;

*  the impact of increasing competition on the Company; and

e the impact of future changes in accounting policies on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In addition, this MD&A may contain forward-looking statements and forward-looking information attributed to third party
industry sources. The Company does not undertake any obligations to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements
except as required by securities law. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of numerous risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties described in
“Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” included in the Company’s Annual Information Form dated March 3, 2015
as filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and available on the Gibson website at www.gibsons.com.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This MD &A refers to certain financial measures that are not determined in accordance with IFRS. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA,
Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are not measures recognized under IFRS and do not have standardized
meanings prescribed by IFRS. Management considers these to be important supplemental measures of the Company’s
performance and believes these measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the
evaluation of companies in industries with similar capital structures. See ‘‘Summary of Quarterly Results” for a reconciliation of
EBITDA to net income (loss), the IFRS measure most directly comparable to EBITDA, and for a reconciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA and Pro Forma Adjusted EBITDA to EBITDA. Distributable cash flow is used to assess the level of cash flow generated
from ongoing operations and to evaluate the adequacy of internally generated cash flow to fund dividends. See ‘‘Distributable
Cash Flow” for a reconciliation of distributable cash flow to cash flow from operations, the IFRS measure most directly
comparable to distributable cash flow.

Readers are encouraged to evaluate each adjustment and the reasons the Company considers it appropriate for supplemental
analysis. Readers are cautioned, however, that these measures should not be construed as an alternative to net income (loss)
determined in accordance with IFRS as an indication of the Company’s performance.
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March 3, 2015
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Gibson Energy Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gibson Energy Inc., which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and the consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Gibson Energy Inc. as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

%W@/M LLA

Chartered Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
111 5th Avenue SW, Suite 3100, Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 5L3
T: 403 509 7500, F: 403 781 1825, www.pwc.com/ca

“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.



Gibson Energy Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash eqUIVaIENLS .......cccveerviiiiienieeie et
Trade and other receivables (NOte 6) .........ccocvuveeeiiieeeiiiieeeiiee e,
INVeNntories (NOLE 7) ....veieeeriieeiiee et e eevee e
Income taxes 1eCeiVable .......covvivriiiiiiiiiieeiiecieereee e
Prepaid expenses and Other assetS........oovvvevverrieereeniieeniieenieenieenees
Net investment in finance leases (NOte 8).........ceevevvvrerieeriervvvnnnneennn.
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS....eeruriererieririeriieeiieeiteesreerieeesieeeeeesbeesbeeesaneenenes

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment (nOte 9) ........cc.ccceriiiiiiiiiiinieniee
Long-term prepaid expenses and other assets (note 10)....................
Net investment in finance leases (NOte 8)......cccceevevveeeeciiieeeciieeeniienn.
Deferred income tax assets (Note 11) .....cceeeeevieieriieeeiiiiee e,
Intangible assets (NOte 12)....ccc.eeeviiiiiiiiiieiiiiniierieeseeeeeee e
GOOAWIIl (NOLE 13) c.vviiieiiiieeiiee et
Total NON-CUITENLE ASSELS ..eevvveerrreireeiieeieeeieerteesaeenreesreeereensneeneees
TOtal SSELS.......ooueiiiiiiiiiii e

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade payables and accrued charges (note 15).........cccceceeeieiinennenes
Dividends payable (note 18) ........cccooieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicieeeeeee
Deferred reVeNUE........ocueeviiiiiiieierieeeeeteet e
Income taxes Payable .......cccveevvieriiieriiieiieee e
Total current Habilities ..........coceeeriiiiiiiiniiicce,

Non-current liabilities

Long-term debt (NOte 14) ....ceeviieiiiiiieiiieeieeeieereeee e
Provisions (NOt€ 16) .......cccueiieiiiiiiiiiieeeciee et e
Other long-term liabilities (NOte 17).....c.cevvueeriieniieeniieieeiie e
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 11).......ccccceveviieeiiiiiieniieeeiiienen.
Total non-current HabilitieS ........cccveereerrieeesiieiiienieenieesre e
Total HaDIIIHES .oo.vveeeieeiieiieeeieecieee e s

Equity

Share capital (NOte 18) .....cueevueiriiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeee e
Contributed SUrplus .........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiie e
Accumulated other comprehensive income............ceeveeeveeeriieenneeennne.
DEfICHE. ..t
TOtAl EQUILY «euveeeitieiiienieerteete ettt ettt s
Total liabilities and equity ................cccooooiiiiiiiii

Commitments and contingencies (note 19)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors:
(signed) “James M. Estey”

James M. Estey
Director
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December 31,

2014 2013
................................ $ 131,911 $ 97,182
................................ 641,283 592,850
................................ 154,937 156,419
................................ 12,100 7,534
................................ 24,366 25,170
................................ 908 765
................................ 965,505 879,920
................................ 1,494,569 1,119,856
................................ 39,778 19,640
................................ 94,387 93,236
................................ 3,532 8,187
................................ 191,537 202,395
................................ 783,721 726,148
................................ 2,607,524 2,169,462
................................ $ 3,573,029 $ 3,049,382
................................ 581,463 565,179
................................ 37,346 33,605
................................ 19,042 2,847
................................ 122 20,535
................................ 637,973 622,166
................................ 1,165,368 757,566
................................ 136,347 91,424
................................ 14,810 15,487
................................ 191,351 194,105
................................ 1,507,876 1,058,582
................................ 2,145,849 1,680,748
................................ 1,634,001 1,585,145
................................ 23,841 16,130
................................ 93,011 33,879
................................ (323,673) (266,520)
................................ 1,427,180 1,368,634
................................ $ 3,573,029 $ 3,049,382

(signed) “Marshall L. McRae”
Marshall L. McRae

Director



Gibson Energy Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Operations

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)

Revenue (NOLE 20) ......ooieiiiieeiiee ettt e e rte e et e e st e e et eesnteeesnbeeeenbeeeennnaeeenreeean
Cost of sales (notes 7, 21, 22 and 28).......cceeceeeeiiuieeeeiiieeeeceieeecieeeereeeesaeeeeeareeeesereeeenes
GIOSS PIOTIE 1.ttt ettt ettt et e st e s bt e st e e bt e e bte s sabeesateesbteennaeeane

General and administrative expenses (notes 21 and 22).......ccccvvevvieeriienieniieeneesieenveennnes
Other operating inComMe (NOLE 23) ...c..ieviierieeriieriieeiieeieeeieesteesteesbeesereesbreesseesseesseesnses
Income from operating activities ..............cocooviiiiiiiiiiniii i

INEETESE EXPEIISE ..eeeneviieieuiiieieiite et ee ettt ettt e ettt e ettt e e sttt e e sabbee e sabbeessabbeeseasbeeesabaeeens
Gain on financial instruments relating to interest expense (Note 28) .......cccceevvverreveerunennne
INEETESE INCOMC ....eeeiviieeeiiieeeiiee et ee e et e ettt e e et e e e ettt eestteeeentseeeessseeesnsaaeeansseesanssaeesnsseenns
Foreign exchange loss on long-term debt (Note 14) ........cooveiriiiiiiiniiiniiiieeceeceeee
Debt extinguishment COStS (NOLE 14) ...c...eiviiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeee ettt
Income before iNCOME LAXES .............cccueviiiiiiiiiiiiieceee et
Income tax provision (NOtE 11) ....eeviiiiiiiiiiiiiieie et

INEEINICOIMC ...ttt e e e e e et e et e e e e e et eeeeeesesnaaaaeeeeessennnaeeeas

Earnings per share (note 24)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Year ended
December 31,

2014

2013

$ 8,573,529

$ 6,940,669

8,299,403 6,666,257
274,126 274,412
56,245 47,372
(11,845) (6,576)
229,726 233,616
67,598 53,458
. (18,252)
(832) 471)

35,431 19,951

- 38,209

127,529 140,721
35,588 36,905

$ 91,941 $ 103,816
$ 0.74 $ 0.86
$ 0.73 $ 0.84




Gibson Energy Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

I\ A 1 1160 11 (IR

Other comprehensive iNCOME (10SS) ..........ccccuieriiiiiiiiieniieeeeee e
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of operations

Exchange differences on translating foreign Operations........c....ceeceeeveeeveeriieenseenieeneeenne.
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of operations

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax ........cccccceeceeevieeneennne.

Other comprehensive income, net of tax................coccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Comprehensive INCOME .............ocooiiiiiiiii ettt st e

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013

$§ 91,941 $ 103,816
59,132 43,045
(521) 1,144
58,611 44,189

$ 150,552 $ 148,005




Gibson Energy Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Balance — January 1,2013 .................c.coocee.

NEt INCOME ..ot
Other comprehensive income, net of tax............
Comprehensive iNCOME ........ceecvverveeriveerveenneenns
Employee share options:
Stock based compensation...............ccueee...
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ...
Reclassification of contributed surplus on
exercise of stock option and other stock
AWATAS .oeeeiiiieeeiiee e
Issuance of common shares in connection with
the dividend reinvestment and stock dividend
PIOZLAIMS ..ttt eee e e
Dividends on common shares ($1.10 per
COMMON ShATE).....ccvvieeeiiiieiiiee e

Balance — December 31,2013 ........................

NEL INCOME ...evveeeiiiieeciieeeeiieeeeireeeereeeeiaee e
Other comprehensive income, net of tax............
Comprehensive iNCOME ........ceecveerveercveerveeneeenns
Employee share options:
Stock based compensation ...........cccceeeeneenne
Proceeds from exercise of stock options.....
Reclassification of contributed surplus on
exercise of stock option and other stock
AWATAS ...eveieeiiieeeciiee e ree e
Issuance of common shares in connection with
the dividend reinvestment and stock dividend
PIOZLAIMS. c..ieieeienieenteeneeeeeeteeeeeneesseeneeeeesneenees
Dividends on common shares ($1.20 per
COmMMON ShATe) ....cvvvvveiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e

Balance — December 31,2014 ..........................

Accumulated
Share other

capital Contributed comprehensive Total

(note 18) surplus income Deficit Equity

$ 1,543,149 $11,297 $ (9,166) $ (237,798) $ 1,307,482
- - - 103,816 103,816

- - 43,045 1,144 44,189

- - 43,045 104,960 148,005

- 8,271 - - 8,271

1,169 - - - 1,169
3,438 (3,438) - - -
37,389 - - - 37,389
- - - (133,682) (133,682)

$ 1,585,145 $ 16,130 $ 33,879 $ (266,520) $ 1,368,634
- - - 91,941 91,941

- - 59,132 (521) 58,611

- - 59,132 91,420 150,552

- 13,977 - - 13,977

5,942 - - - 5,942
6,266 (6,266) - - -
36,648 - - - 36,648
- - - (148,573) (148,573)

$ 1,634,001 $ 23,841 $ 93,011 $ (323,673) $ 1,427,180

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Gibson Energy Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Income from Operating ACtIVITIES ........ceeeueeeerieriinineriinieeeee ettt sttt $ 229,726 $ 233,616
Items not affecting cash
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (NOte 21).........cccevieiiniiniiinieninieneene 154,934 133,854
Amortization of intangible assets (NOLE 21).....covuiiriiriiiiiiiiiieieeriee et 54,991 50,203
Stock based compensation (NOLE 22) ......c.eeevueerieerieenieenieeiee et erieesbee et esiteesireesbeeeseeeeane 13,977 8,271
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (NOte 23) .........ccccevieiieiirienieieiiieieneeieens 2,717) (1,029)
(0111155 U SOUREUPSRURURTPPRRRRPRNE (7,509) (3,863)
Net (gain) loss on fair value movement of financial instruments (note 28)...........cccceueennne (1,883) 622
Changes in items of working capital
Trade and Other TECEIVADIES ........cooiiiiiiiieieee oo aaaaaaaaeaaaees 4,819 (108,618)
TNVENEOTIES .o eieeeeieeeeeeee ettt aaat s aa s s s aaasasasasasaaeaasaesseseeesenenens 10,252 (3,700)
OTNET CUITENT ASSELS cooeieieieeeiieeeeeee ettt 3,127 (11,705)
Trade payables and accrued Charges ..o (63,264) 68,481
DEferred TEVENUE ......coooiiiiiiiiii oo a e aaaeaassaeaaneeeeeseeeeeeseeeeees 15,764 1,330
INCOMME LAKES....etiieieiieeeeiiee et ee et e et e e et e e ettt e e e bt eeeetbeesssaeesssaeeennsseeeanssaeeasssaeesnsseenannns (75,989) (35,831)
Net cash provided by Operating aCtiVities ...........ccceevueriieiieiiiriienieneeeeee e 336,228 331,631
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and eqUIPMENt ...........c..ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e (354,682) (227,019)
Purchase of iINtangible aSSELS.......coiuiiriiiriiiinieriie ettt sttt e s (19,123) (8,495)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (NOLE 5) .....cccueeriiiriiiiiiiirieiiceeeeee e (128,440) -
Proceeds 0n SAlE OF @SSELS .......ueiiiiiiieiiiiieee et e et ee ettt e e e e e e e etrae e e e e eeeetaareeeeeeeanens 7,230 3,264
Net cash used in INVESHNZ ACHVITIES. ...cevuetrrurerrieeriieeiieeiteeiee ettt et et et esaee st e saeesareesaeeenee (495,015) (232,250)
Financing activities
Payment of shareholder dividends ............ccocuieriieriiinieeiie et (144,832) (131,309)
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plans (NOte 18) ........ccceeviierieerieenieniiesieenieeseeeeeen 36,648 37,389
TNEETESE PAIA...eeneeeeiieeiieeiee ettt ettt ettt et e et esbeesabeesabeensbeeabeenseesabeeenseesabeenssaens (62,058) (19,803)
TNEETESE TECEIVEA .eouvtieniiieiie ettt ettt ettt et ettt e et e et e sabeeesteesabeeeabeessseessseensseenssesnseean 850 466
Proceeds from exercise Of StOCK OPIONS ....ccvieevieriierieenieeiieciee ettt reeieesbee e 5,942 1,169
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of debt discount and premium (note 14).........cccceevueeneee. 358,595 764,173
Payment of debt issue and financing COSLS........ceeruiirieiniiinieriie ittt (7,072) (16,189)
Repayment of long-term debt (NOte 14) ....ccocuiiriiiiiiiiiiiriieeee e - (678,098)
Repayment of credit fACIIITES .....cocveeriiiiiiiiiieeiiceeeeeeeeee et (463,494) (156,385)
Proceeds from Credit faCIlitiEs.......oooeeeiiieieieeeeeeeeeecececee e ar e eaeeaeeeaeseeeeeeeeeees 463,601 124,000
Repayment of finance lease liabilities .........cceeeveerieiriieiiiiienieiiceeee e (563) (808)
Net proceeds on settlement of derivative financial instruments
not affecting operating activities (NOte 28) ........cocuereeriirriiniinieienienieneee et 582 8,723
Net cash provided by (used in) fiNaNCiNG ACHVILIES .....eevuvierierriieeiiieeiienieenteenee e eenieeesireeeee s 188,199 (66,672)
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents..................cccoccirviiiiiiiiiieniiniiiene, 5,317 3,447
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ..............c.cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieee e 34,729 36,156
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year ..............ccccccoooiiiiiiiniiiniienceee e, 97,182 61,026
Cash and cash equivalents — end of Year ...............ccocoeriiiiiiiiniiiiniice e $ 131,911 $ 97,182

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1

General Information

Gibson Energy Inc. (“Gibson” or the “Company”) was incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Alberta). The
Company’s common shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “GEI”.

Gibson is engaged in the movement, storage, blending, processing and marketing and distribution of crude oil, condensate,
natural gas liquids, water, oilfield waste and refined products. The Company also provides emulsion treating, water disposal,
oil-field waste management services and propane distribution. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Canada. The
address of the Company’s principal place of business is 1700, 440 Second Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as set out in the Handbook of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issuance by the Company’s board of directors (“Board”) on
March 3, 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, the Company’s functional currency, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousands of dollars, except where indicated otherwise. All references to $ are to Canadian dollars
and references to U.S.$ are to United States dollars.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain items that
are recorded at fair value as required by the respective accounting standards.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the results of the Company and its subsidiaries together with its interest in
joint operations.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when the Company is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company and continue to be consolidated until the date control ceases. All intercompany transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Company has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
operations and accordingly, the Company has recognized its proportionate share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
relating to these joint operations.
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Foreign currency translation

The financial statements for each of the Company’s subsidiaries and joint operations are prepared using their functional
currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates. The
presentation and functional currency of the parent company is Canadian dollars. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Operating results are translated at
the average rates for the period. Exchange differences arising on the consolidation of the net assets of foreign operations are
recorded in other comprehensive income (loss).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than an entity’s
functional currency are recognized in the statement of operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the cash paid and the fair value of other assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange. For acquisitions achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquired company are
remeasured at the acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations. Direct
costs incurred by the Company in connection with an acquisition, such as finder’s fees, advisors, legal, accounting, valuation
and other professional or consulting fees, are expensed as general and administrative expenses when incurred. The acquired
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess
of the cost of acquisition plus the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest, if any, over the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired is credited to the statement of operations in the period of acquisition.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Company is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

At the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the operating segments expected to benefit from the
combination’s synergies. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset acquired as part of a business combination is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and is
recognized separately from goodwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights and its fair value
can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carried initially at cost. The initial cost is
the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

33 1 T [OOSR 2 — 10 years
CUSLOMET TEIALIOMSIIPS ...ttt eueieeiieeiieette sttt ettt st et e sttt e st e e bt e e beesabeeeabeessbeesabeensseessesnsaesnsaesnseesnbeensseesnsaensnennss

Long-term customer contracts
INON-COMPELE AZTEEIMEIIS ....cnveeutiiteieenteeuteetteatteteeateettesteeteeatestsesteenbeesteestesbeesbeenaeeaeesbeesseenseeateestenbeenteenteestenbeenteennens
TECHNOIOEY ..ttt ettt et e b e et e e bt e e et e s ab e e e bt e e sb bt e bt e e b e e e bt e sabeeeabeesateesabeenbee e baeeabee s
SOTEWATE ..ttt ettt ettt e b ettt e bt eeab e e sa bt e eub e e bt e e bt e s ab et s abeeeabeesabeeeuteeabbeeabe e e ba e e bt e sabeesabeesabeennee et
LICENSE ANA PEITIIALS .euuteeniiiiiieiiieetee et et sit e ettt ettt ettt et e e bt e eateesabeeshteesbbeebee s bt e eabeesabeeeabeeabte e bteeabaeenbaesabeesabeenabeesaneenneean

The expected useful lives and method of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed on an annual basis and, if necessary,
changes in expected useful life are accounted for prospectively.
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The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset into operation, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration
given to acquire the asset.

Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs comprises the cost of replacement assets or parts of assets, inspection
costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately depreciated is replaced and it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company, the expenditure is capitalized and the carrying
amount of the replaced asset is derecognized. Inspection costs associated with major maintenance programs are capitalized
and amortized over the period to the next inspection. All other maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than assets that are work in progress, using the straight-line
method over their expected useful lives.

The useful lives of the Company’s property, plant and equipment are as follows:

BUILAINES -ttt b bt e e et e s b e s bt et e e st e s bt e s bt et eat e eh e e e bt et e ea e e eh b e bt en b e enbeehee bt e beeabeseaenbean 10 — 20 years
EIQUIPIMENIE ...ttt ettt a e bt et e et e s h e e s bt ea et eat e e bt e bt em bt e st e eb e e bt embeee b e eb e e bt e bt eatesheenbeentesaee 3 —20 years
ROINEG STOCK -ttt ettt b ettt a e st e et e at e e bt e bt em bt e et e eb e e bt embeeabesbee bt enbesaeesaeenbeeneeeaes 5 —23 years
PAPEIINES ...ttt ettt et e b e e bt e st e s bt e a bt e s h bt e bt e e bt e e bt e s bt e et e esa bt e eat e e bae e beeeabeeenbeenates 8 — 20 years
TTAIIKS ..ttt ettt st et e s bt et e e e bt e bt e sa bt e e a b e e eat e e h b e e bt e e bt e ea bt e sabeeea b e e shbe e bt e e bteenbeesabeeeabeenabeenaneenne 20 — 33 years
PIANT ...ttt ettt e h e e bt e bt e a bt e st e e h et e b te e bt e e bt e e abee e e bt e abe e bbe e hte e beeebeeeabeesabeenats 7 — 25 years
DISPOSAL WEILS ..ottt ettt st et e b e e bt e s bt e e st e e s at e e sab e et b e e bt e ea bt e st e e sateesab e e abeebteenbeesbaeeanee e 15 — 25 years

The expected useful lives, method of depreciation and residual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an
annual basis and, if necessary, changes are accounted for prospectively.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the statement of operations in the
period the item is derecognized.

Impairments

The Company carries out impairment reviews in respect of goodwill at least annually or if indicators of possible impairment
exist. The Company also assesses during each reporting period whether there have been any events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that property, plant and equipment and intangible assets may be impaired and an impairment
review is carried out whenever such an assessment indicates that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such
indicators include, but are not limited to changes in the Company’s business plans, changes in commodity prices leading to
lower activity levels, an increase in the discount rate and evidence of physical damage. For the purposes of impairment
testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows. Where impairment
exists, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Impairments are recognized immediately in the statement of operations.

The assessment for impairment entails comparing the carrying value of the asset or cash-generating unit with its recoverable
amount, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis
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of discounted estimated future net cash flows. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. In the absence of such transactions, an appropriate valuation model is used.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversible in the future. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been previously recognized.

Non-derivative financial instruments — recognition and measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, normally being
the transaction price plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money is significant.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of operations when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired,
as well as through the use of the effective interest method. This category of financial assets includes cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company may not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments
(more than 30 days past the due date) are considered indicators that the trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of operations. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short-term deposit, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as other liabilities include amounts borrowed under credit facilities, trade payables and accrued
charges, dividends payable and long-term debt. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. For interest-bearing loans and borrowings this is the
fair value of the proceeds received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains and losses arising on the repurchase,
settlement or cancellation of liabilities are recognized in statement of operations.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, used periodically by the Company to manage exposure to market risks relating to
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, are not designated as hedges. They are recorded at fair
value and recorded on the Company’s balance sheet as either an asset, when the fair value is positive, or a liability, when the
fair value is negative. Changes in fair value are recorded immediately in the statement of operations.
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Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost determined using a weighted average cost
method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less applicable selling expenses. If carrying value exceeds net
realizable amount, a write down is recognized. The write down may be reversed in a subsequent period if the circumstances
which caused it no longer exist.

Leases - lessee

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee. Assets
acquired under finance leases are recorded in the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment at the lower of their fair
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments and depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful life or
their lease terms. The corresponding rental obligations are included in other long-term liabilities as finance lease liabilities.
Interest incurred on finance leases is charged to the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

All other leases are operating leases, and the rental of these is charged to the statement of operations as incurred over the
lease term.

Leases - lessor

Contractual arrangements that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of property to the lessee are
recorded as a net investment in a finance lease. The present value of minimum lease receivable under such arrangements are
recorded as an investment in finance lease and the finance income is recognized in a manner that produces a consistent rate
of return on the investment in the finance lease and is included in revenue.

Operating lease income is recognized in the statement of operations as it is earned over the lease term.
Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where appropriate, the future cash flow estimates are adjusted to
reflect risks specific to the liability.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money. Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized within finance costs.

A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of an obligation will only be confirmed by future events or where the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably and outflow of cash is less than remote. Contingent assets are not
recognized, but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Decommissioning

Liabilities for site restoration on the retirement of assets are recognized when the Company has an obligation to restore the
site, and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. An obligation may also crystallize during the period of
operation of a facility through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate operations. The amount recognized is
the present value of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with local conditions and requirements. The
present value is determined by discounting the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a risk-free
discount rate. Actual expenditures incurred are charged against the accumulated liability.

A corresponding item of property, plant and equipment of an amount equivalent to the provision is also created. The amount
capitalized in property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Increases in the
decommissioning liabilities resulting from the passage of time are recognized as a finance cost in the consolidated statement
of operations. Other than the unwinding of the discount on the provision, any change in the present value of the estimated
expenditure is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the corresponding item of property, plant and equipment.
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Environmental liabilities

Environmental liabilities are recognized when a remediation is probable and the associated costs can be reliably estimated.
Generally, the timing of recognition of these provisions coincides with the completion of a feasibility study or a commitment
to a formal plan of action. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the expenditure required. Where the liability will
not be settled for a number of years, the amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure using a
risk-free discount rate.

Employee benefits
Defined benefit pension plan and other post retirement benefits plan

The company maintains a funded defined benefit pension plan and an unfunded defined benefit other post-retirement benefits
plan (“OPRB”).

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs or credits are recognised immediately in statement of operations.
Defined contribution pension plans

The Company’s defined contribution plans are funded as specified in the plans and the pension expense is recorded as the
benefits are earned by employees and funded by the Company.

Share-based payments

The Company’s equity incentive plan allows for the granting of stock options, restricted share units with time (RSUs) and
performance share units (PSUs) with performance based vesting conditions and deferred share units (DSUs) that vest on the
date such employee redeems the DSUs after their cessation of employment with the Company.

The fair value of grants made under the employee share award plan is measured at the date of grant of the award. The
resulting cost, as adjusted for the expected and actual level of vesting of the awards, is expensed over the period in which the
awards vest.

At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and management’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

The movement in the cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date is recognized in the statement of operations
with a corresponding impact to contributed surplus.

The fair value of RSUs, PSUs and DSUs are equal to the Company five days weighted average share price at the date of
grant.

The fair value of options is measured by using the Black-Scholes model. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable and
it requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Expected volatility of the stock is based on a combination of the
historical stock price of the Company and also of comparable companies in the industry. The expected term of options
represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the
Government of Canada’s Canadian Bond Yields with a remaining term equal to the expected life of the options used in the
Black-Scholes valuation model.
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Termination benefit

The Company recognizes termination benefits as an expense when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary termination.

Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred income tax. Interest and penalties
relating to income tax are also included in income tax expense.

The income tax currently payable is based on the taxable income for the period. Taxable income differs from net income as
reported in the statement of operations because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current income tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided for using the liability method of accounting. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the financial reporting and income tax basis of assets and liabilities. These
differences are then measured using enacted or substantially enacted income tax rates and laws that will be in effect when
these differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in income tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is
recognized in income in the period that the change occurs. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

Revenue recognition

Product revenues associated with the sales of crude oil, diluent, natural gas liquids, asphalt, natural gas, wellsite fluids and
distillate owned by the Company are recognized when the risk of ownership passes to the customer and physical delivery
occurs, the price is fixed and collection is reasonably assured. Sales terms are generally FOB shipping point, in which case
the sales are recorded at the time of shipment, because this is when title and risk of loss are transferred. All payments
received before delivery are recorded as deferred revenue and are recognized as revenue when delivery occurs, assuming all
other criteria are met. Freight costs billed to customers are recorded as a component of revenue. Revenues from buy/sell
transactions whereby the Company acts as an agent are recorded on a net basis.

Revenue associated with the provision of services such as transportation, terminalling and environmental services are
recognized when the services are provided, the price is fixed and collection is reasonably assured. Revenue from pipeline
tariffs and fees are based on volumes and rates as the pipeline is being used. Long-term take-or-pay contracts, under which
shippers are obligated to pay fixed amounts ratably over the contract period regardless of volumes shipped, may contain
make-up rights. Make-up rights are earned by shippers when minimum volume commitments are not utilized during the
period but under certain circumstances can be used to offset overages in future periods, subject to expiry periods. The
Company recognizes revenues associated with make-up rights at the earlier of when the make-up volume is shipped, the
make-up right expires or when it is determined that the likelihood that the shipper will utilize the make-up right is remote.
Revenue from pipeline tariffs and fees are based on volumes and rates as the pipeline is being used. Revenue from equipment
rentals and non-refundable propane tank fees are recorded in deferred revenue and are recognized in revenue on a straight
line basis over the rental period, typically one year.

Excise taxes are reported gross within sales and other operating revenues and taxes other than income taxes, while other sales
and value-added taxes are recorded net in operating expenses.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of finished goods inventory (including depreciation, amortization and impairment charges),
processing costs, costs related to transportation, inventory write downs and reversals, and gains and losses on derivative
financial instruments relating to commodities.

Interest
Interest income and expense is recognized in the statement of operations using the effective interest method.
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Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognized in the statement of operations in the period in which they are incurred.

Share capital

Common and preferred shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.

Per share amounts

Basic per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted per
share amounts are calculated giving effect to the potential dilution that would occur if stock options and other equity awards
were exercised or converted into common shares.

Dividends
Dividends on common shares are recognized in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Board.
Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for resource allocation and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the President and Chief Executive Officer.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination

In conjunction with each business combination, the Company must allocate the cost of the acquired entity to the assets and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Determining the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, as well as intangible assets that relate to such items as customer relationships, brands and contracts
involves professional judgment and is ultimately based on acquisition models and management’s assessment of the value of
the assets and liabilities acquired and, to the extent available, third party assessments. Uncertainties associated with these
estimates include changes in production volumes, changes in commodity prices, fluctuations in capacity or product slates,
economic obsolescence factors in the area and potential future sources of cash flow. During the measurement period, the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed may be adjusted when the initial accounting for business combination is
recorded based on provisional amounts. Although the resolution of these uncertainties has not historically had a material
impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition, the actual amounts may vary significantly from
estimated amounts. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill.
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Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

The Company tests annually whether goodwill of an operating segment has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of the operating segments are determined based on fair value less
costs of disposal calculations which requires the use of estimates. The Company also assesses at least annually whether there
have been any events or changes in circumstances that indicate that property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
may be impaired and an impairment review is carried out whenever such an assessment indicates that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

In the impairment analysis of the Company’s assets, some of the key assumptions used in estimating future cash flows
include revenue growth, future commodity prices, expected margin, expected sales volumes, cost structures and the outlook
of market supply and demand conditions appropriate to the local circumstances and environment. These assumptions and
estimates are uncertain and are subject to change as new information becomes available. Changes in economic conditions can
also affect the rate used to discount future cash flow estimates.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Canada and the United States of America. Tax provisions are recognized when it
is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a taxing authority. In such cases, provision is made for
the amount that is expected to be settled, where this can be reasonably estimated. This requires management to make some
assumptions as to the ultimate outcome, which can change over time depending on facts and circumstances. A change in
estimate of the likelihood of a future outflow and/or in the expected amount to be settled would be recognized in statement of
operations in the period in which the change occurs.

Fair value of derivatives financial instruments

The Company reflects the fair value of derivative financial instruments based on valuation information from third parties.
The calculation of the fair value of certain of these instruments is based on proprietary models and assumptions of third
parties because such instruments are not quoted on an active market. Additionally, estimates of fair value may vary among
different models due to a difference in assumptions applied, such as the estimate of prevailing market prices, volatility,
correlations and other factors, and may not be reflective of the price at which they can be settled due to the lack of a liquid
market. As a result of changes in key assumptions, the actual amounts may vary significantly from estimated amounts.

Provisions

Accruals for decommissioning and environmental remediation are recorded when it is considered probable and the costs can
be reasonably estimated. A number of factors affect the cost of environmental remediation, including the determination of the
extent of contamination, the length of time remediation may require, the complexity of environmental regulations and the
advancement of technology. Considering these factors, the Company has estimated the costs of remediation, which will be
incurred in future years. The Company believes the provisions made for environmental matters are adequate, however it is
reasonably possible that actual costs may differ from the estimated accrual, if the selected methods of remediation do not
adequately reduce the contaminates and further remedial action is required. The Company uses third-party environmental
evaluators, where possible, to obtain the estimates of decommissioning and environmental provision.

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
Identification of cash-generating unit (“CGU”)

For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels of integrated assets that generate identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets, termed as a CGU. The
allocation of assets into a CGU requires significant judgment and interpretations with respect to the integration between
assets, the existence of active markets, similar exposure to market risks, shared infrastructures and the way in which
management monitors the operations.
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Investment in finance leases

In determining whether certain of the Company’s long-term tank storage arrangements are, or contain, a lease, the Company
must use judgement in assessing whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the
arrangement conveys the right to use the assets. For those arrangements considered to be a lease, further judgement is
required to determine whether substantially all of the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
customer or remain with the Company, to appropriately account for the arrangement as a finance or operating lease. These
judgements can be significant as to how the Company classifies amounts related to the arrangements as property, plant and
equipment or net investment in finance lease on the balance sheet. The Company has determined, based on the terms and
conditions of these arrangements, that the substantial risks and rewards to the ownership of certain storage tanks have been
transferred to the customer, and accordingly, these storage tanks have been recognized as an investment in finance lease.

Current and deferred taxation

The computation of the Company’s income tax expense involves the interpretation of applicable tax laws and regulations in
many jurisdictions. The resolution of tax positions taken by the Company can take significant time to complete and in some
cases it is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome. In addition, the Company has carry-forward tax losses in certain taxing
jurisdictions that are available to offset against future taxable profit. This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax
assets are likely to be realized, and a judgment as to whether or not there will be sufficient taxable profits available to offset
the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires assumptions regarding future profitability and is therefore inherently
uncertain. To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease in the
amounts recognized in respect of deferred tax assets as well as in the amounts recognized in statement of operations in the
period in which the change occurs. However, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. To the extent that actual outcomes
differ from management’s estimates, income tax charges or credits may arise in future periods.

Change in the terms of the credit agreement

The Company incurs costs on the refinancing, replacement and re-pricing of its long-term debt and credit facilities. The
treatment of such costs is dependent on the assessment of whether the refinancing, replacement or re-pricing was an
extinguishment or a modification of the original loan. In the case of an extinguishment, the costs incurred are charged to
statements of operations whereas in the case of a modification, the costs are capitalized as a part of the existing carrying
amount of the loan and amortized to statement of operations over the term of the loan using effective interest method. When
the terms and conditions of a refinancing, replacement and re-pricing are substantially different, it is generally considered an
extinguishment. The assessment requires the exercise of significant judgement involving comparing qualitative and
quantitative factors of the credit agreement before and after the refinancing, replacement or re-pricing.

4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company adopted the following new and revised standards, along with any consequential amendments. These changes
were made in accordance with applicable transitional provisions.

e TAS 32, Financial Instruments, Presentation (‘‘IAS 32’") has been amended to clarify the requirements for offsetting
financial assets and liabilities. The amendment clarifies that the right to offset must be available on the current date and
cannot be contingent on a future event. The Company adopted these amendments on January 1, 2014 which did not
result in any material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

e JFRIC 21, Accounting for Levies imposed by governments (‘‘IFRIC 21°") was issued which clarifies that the obligating
event giving rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers payment of
the levy. The Company adopted IFRIC 21 on January 1, 2014 which did not result in any material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

e IFRS 2, Share based payments has been amended to clarify the definition of vesting conditions. The amendment
clarifies that the vesting condition is either a service or performance condition and separately defines these two
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conditions. The Company adopted these amendments on July 1, 2014 which did not result in any material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 3, Business combinations has been amended to clarify that an obligation to pay contingent consideration which
meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability or as equity, on the basis of the
definitions in IAS 32. The standard is further amended to clarify that all non-equity contingent consideration, both
financial and non-financial, is measured at fair value at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognized in
profit and loss. The Company adopted these amendments on July 1, 2014 which did not result in any impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted

The following provides information requiring new standards and interpretations that have been issued but not yet adopted by
the Company:

The annual improvements process addresses issues in the 2012-2014 reporting cycles including changes to IFRS 5,
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations, IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19,
Employee benefits, and IAS 34, Interim financial reporting. These improvements are effective for periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting these improvements on its
consolidated financial statements.

The annual improvements process addresses issues in the 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 reporting cycles including changes
to IFRS 13, Fair value measurements, IFRS 8, Operating segments and IAS 24, Related party transactions. These
improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The impact of adopting these
improvements will not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements (“IAS 17), has been amended to clarify the guidance on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.
The amendment to IAS 1 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting these improvements on its consolidated financial statements.

IAS 16, Property Plant and Equipment (“IAS 16”), and IAS 38, Intangible Assets (“IAS 38”), has been amended to (i)
clarify that the use of a revenue-based depreciation and amortization method is not appropriate, and (ii) provide a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation of an intangible asset based on revenue generated by using the asset is
inappropriate. The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial
statements.

IAS 19, Employee benefits (“IAS 19”), has been amended to clarify the application of requirements to plans that require
employees or third parties to contribute toward the cost of the benefits. The amendment to IAS 19 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The impact of adopting this amendment will not have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The IASB completed the final element of its comprehensive publication of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in July 2014.
The package of improvements introduced by IFRS 9 includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a
single, forward-looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model and a substantially-reformed approach to hedge accounting.
The TASB has previously published versions of IFRS 9 that introduced new classification and measurement
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013). The July 2014 publication represents the
final version of the Standard, replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on its consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements (“IFRS 10”), and IAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures
(“TAS 28”), has been amended to address an inconsistency between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in regards to a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments
is that a full gain or loss is recognized when the transaction involves a business combination, and whereas a partial gain
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is recognized when the transaction involves the assets that do not constitute a business. Additionally, the amendments
clarify the exception from preparing consolidated financial statements, the consolidation requirements for subsidiaries
which act as an extension of an investment entity, and the requirements for equity accounting for investments in
associates and joint ventures. The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting these amendments on its
consolidated financial statements.

e IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations (“IFRS 11”), has been amended to provide specific
guidance on accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that is a business. The amendment to IFRS
11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

e JFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (“IFRS 157), has been issued as a new standard on revenue
recognition and will supersede IAS 18, Revenue, IAS 11, Construction Contracts and related interpretations. IFRS 15 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting this standard on its consolidated financial statements.

5 Business combinations

Cal-Gas Inc. (“Cal-Gas”)

On August 1, 2014, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Cal-Gas for total cash
consideration of $96.4 million, including final closing adjustments. Cal-Gas is a provider of propane and related equipment,
service and delivery to commercial, industrial and residential customers in Western Canada and Northwestern Ontario.

The following table summarizes the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Fair Value
Trade and Other TECEIVADIES .......coooviiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e aaaaaaessaesaeaasasssasaaassssssasaasassaasansaens $ 11,314
) ORI 1100 & < TR PTOSPPPTPPPPRRRRRPRTRNt 1,457
Prepaid and OthET ASSELS .....ccuiiiiiiiiieeiie ettt et eite ettt e st e st e sttt e sabeetteessaeesbeessseesaseesaseensseesssaenssesnseesseennse 331
Property, plant and QUIPIMENLE .........occuiiiiiieiiieiiierie et erte ettt e et e st e e st e saeesbeeebaeesbeessbeessseesssesssseensseenseesnses 64,401
GOOAWIII™Y oot 29,152
TNEANGIDIE ASSELS P ......ovooeoeeee ettt 7,534
Other IONZ-TEIMN ASSELS ....c..eeuiiiiiiiiieiiieiee ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et e et et et e e e e bt e b e e s e sanesaeebeennesanesaeenee 105
Trade payables and accrued CharZes ..........cocioviiiiiiiiiiii e (10,957)
DETEITEA TEVEIUE.......eeieiiiieiiiieee et eeec e e e e e ettt e e e e e e et baeeeeeeeeeaabaaeeeeeeeastsaseaeeeesansssseeeseeaasssssseeseeennnrees (442)
53 (012 F5 107 s PSPPSR (90)
Deferred income tax HADIIIIES .......eeecuviiieiiieeiciieeee ittt eesiee e et e et e e e st e e estaeessssaaeesnsseeseesseeessseaesnsseesanes (6,420)
PN A T R T 11T T TSRS $ 96,385

(1) The goodwill arising on the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.
(2) Consists of customer relationships of $5.1 million and non-compete agreements of $2.4 million.

Acquisition-related costs of $0.3 million have been charged to general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the expected synergies with the Company’s existing propane
operations within the Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment. The goodwill for this acquisition is allocated to
the Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment.

The fair value of trade receivables is $11.3 million, which approximates its gross contractual amount.
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Stittco Energy Limited (“Stittco”)

On April 1, 2014, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding common shares of Stittco for total cash
consideration of $32.1 million including final closing adjustments. Stittco is a provider of propane and related equipment,
service and delivery to commercial, industrial and residential customers in northern Manitoba and the Northwest Territories.

The following table summarizes the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Fair Value

Trade and Other TECEIVADIES .......coooviiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e et eaeesaesaeaes s aaesaaasesssaassasassaasansaens $ 12,818
) ORI 1100 & <3 TSRO OTOSPPRTPRPPRTTRRPRRRNt 4,922
Prepaid and OtRET @SSELS .....ccuiiriiiiieeiie ettt et eiee sttt e st e st e sttt e sateebeestaeeabeessbeesaseessseensseessseenseesnseesseennse 253
Property, plant and EQUIPIMENT .........eeriiiiiierieeiie ettt et ste et e esteeesbeesbeessseessseensaeesssessnbeesseessseesssesnsseas 15,653
GOOAWII™Y .o 4,837
TINEANGIDIE ASSELS P ......oooeeeeeceee e 5,660
Trade payables and acCrued CharZes ..........coiiviiiiiiiiiiiii e s s (4,068)
INCOME tAXES PAYADIE .....oouiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt s e e (1,270)
(03T V21 071 L SRR (2,007)
53 1012 F5 107 RS URUTSRN (734)
Deferred iINCOME taX LHADIIITIES ....oooeeiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e asassaetaassassasssasssasssassssassesssssssassanes (4,009)
INEE ASSELS ACGUITEA ... veveeviveeietiiete et ete et eteete et ettt et ete et eseete et eseebe s eteesessese st essese s essesessessssessesessessesessesessensesessesnas $ 32,055

(1) The goodwill arising on the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.
(2) Consists of customer relationships of $5.4 million, and non-compete agreements of $0.3 million.

Acquisition-related costs of $0.2 million have been charged to general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the expected synergies with the Company’s existing propane
operations within the Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment. The goodwill for this acquisition is allocated to
the Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution segment.

The fair value of trade receivables is $12.8 million, which approximates its gross contractual amount.
Additional Information

If the Cal-Gas and Stittco acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2014, the Company estimates that it would have reported
combined revenue of $8,671.7 million and net income before income taxes of $129.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2014. From the date of the acquisitions to December 31, 2014, the acquisitions contributed revenue of $61.8 million and
income before tax of $3.1 million.

6 Trade and other receivables

December 31,
2014 2013
TTAE TECEIVADIES ...ttt a e e aaaaeaaaeseeeeeeesseseeeseseeeeeeees $ 599,546 $ 583,068
Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNLS ...........cociiiiiiiiiiieiie e e (4,678) (4,092)
Trade r€CEIVADIES = NET c..eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et aaaeeaasaaaaseseeeeseessesseesesererenees 594,868 578,976
Risk management assets (MO 28) ....cc.uivrueeeiuererieriiieeiieeieesieeereesreesieeebeeeaeesnbeesreennne 18,702 1,120
Deposits held as COllateral..........cooviiriiiiiiiiiiiiieneeeee ettt 898 1,145
BroKker accounts 1€CEIVADIE .......cooeveeeieiiieeeeecece e eeeeeeees 4,554 1,326
INdIrect taxes FECEIVADIE.......coeieieieieeeeeeecccce e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 15,377 5,967
(0113 PSR 6,884 4,316
$ 641,283 $ 592,850
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Allowance for doubtful accounts

Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013
OPENING DAIANCE.......coverviriieiiriieiieieteteetere sttt ettt st st $ 4,092 $ 4,603
Additional AllOWANCES ......coeeeieieeeieeecececeee e eeeeeee e s aaabaaaeaaaassaeaeseeeeeneenees 1,708 1,291
Receivables written off as uncollectible............cccoeeviiiieiciiieiiiieceie e (1,191) (1,866)
RECOVETIES ..ottt e e e et e e e ees e e e e e e eenataereeeeeeeasareeens (73) (28)
Effect of changes in foreign eXchange rates........cccvvvievieiiiieeiieeiiienieenieesee et eire e 142 92
ClOSING DALANCE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt abe s e b e b e sbe b e beeteessessessesseneas $ 4,678 $ 4,092
7 Inventories
December 31,
2014 2013
CIUAE Ol ettt e e e e e st e e e e eeeaaaeeeeeeeensaaraeeeeeean $ 68,883 $ 77,610
DIIUENT ..ot e e ee ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e eeaaraaaeeeaan 2,889 3,561
ASPRNALE 1.ttt sttt et e et e s bee et beesebeeetbeetaeenbaesbeeenbeenn 15,922 14,638
Natural as HQUIAS ...eeeveeriiiiieiieetee ettt et ettt e s 41,230 34,749
Wellsite fluids and diStllate............oooviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 11,727 13,003
Spare parts ANd OThET ........c...eeriiiiiiiiierie ettt ettt e e 14,286 12,858
$ 154,937 $ 156,419

The cost of the inventory sold included in cost of sales was $7,149.1 million and $5,631.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

8 Net investment in finance leases

The following summarizes the Company’s net investment in arrangements whereby the Company has entered into fixed term
contractual arrangements to allow customers to have dedicated use of certain tanks owned by the Company. These
arrangements are accounted for as finance leases:

December 31,

2014 2013
Total minimum lease payments TeCEIVADIE ..........c.ccvevverieriieriirieteeieeieeeeeie et $ 353,392 $ 363,742
ReSIAUAL VAIUE .......oeiiiiiiieiiie ettt e e e eb e e e abae e eaveeeeareeeeanns 35,858 35,182
UNEAINEA INCOIMIE ...eeeiiieieiiiiiiiee ettt e e e eeetr et e eeeeete e e e e eeeetaereeeeeeesatareeeeeeesasrereeeseenannees (293,955) (304,923)
95,295 94,001
eSS CUITENE POTTION 1.uevieneiieiieeiiieriie ettt eieeeieestee sttt e sabeesateebteebeessbeesnseessseessseessseesssesnsees 908 765
Net investment in finance lease : NON-CUITENt POTtION......cccveirrveerireririerieenieerreerireeieeeane $ 94,387 $ 93,236
The minimum lease receivables are expected to be as follows:
20 LS et e e — e e e e —eeeeetteeeeatbeeeaat—aeaeatbeeeaatate e baaeeatbaeeaattteeataeeeattaeeeataeeeaaaeeeatreeans $ 23,548
2076 et e e bt e e e —eeeetbeeeeatbeeeaat—aeaeatbeae ettt e aaabteeeatbaeeaaatteeeaaaeeeatbaeeaartseeeaaaeeearaeeans 23,548
20T ettt e e e b e e e e —eeeetteeeeatbeeeaat—aeeeatbeaeaatbeeeaaabaaeeatbaeeaatteeeabaeeeatbaeeaatseeeaaaeeeataeeans 23,548
208 et e ettt e e et e e e e —eeeeetteeeeatbeeeaatbaaeaatbeeeaatbteeaaabaaeeatbaeeaantteeeabaeeeatbaeeaartseeeaaaaeeearaeeans 23,548
201D et e e a e e e e —eeeeetbeeeeatbeeeaat—aeeeatbeeeaatbtee e btaeeatbaee ettt eeaaaeeeattaeeeartseeeaaaeeeareeeans 23,548
2020 AN JALET....coeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo aaaeaeasasae s aetsaseses s st s e s es s s s e e s s e s e s e e e e e e e e e e ae e e aeteeeeeeeetereeereraes 235,652
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
Pipelines Equipment &
Land & and Rolling Disposal Work in
Buildings  Connections Tanks Stock wells Progress Total

Cost:
At January 1, 2014 .........cccueeneee. $113,292 $ 128,360 $ 266,947 $ 400,671 $ 524,655 $ 86,464 $ 1,520,389
Additions.........cceeeeveeeieenieeieeene, 25,535 3,971 9,155 38,438 50,454 263,717 391,270
Disposals......ccceeveereereenienreee 22) - (798) (11,670) (2,050) - (14,540)
Acquisitions through business

combinations (note 5)................ 13,150 - 53,879 8,016 5,009 - 80,054
Transfer to net investment in

finance leases (note 8)............... - - (2,026) - - - (2,026)
Reclassifications ........ccoeeeeveennnnnee 6,510 517 85,557 2,967 54,629  (150,180) -
Change in decommissioning

provision (note 16) .........c.cc...... - 4,586 16,225 - 23,828 - 44,639
Effect of movements in

exchange rates..........ccocceeeennenne. 1,166 - 1,214 16,071 11,900 399 30,750
At December 31, 2014 ................ $ 159,631 $ 137,434 $ 430,153 $ 454,493 $ 668,425 $200,400 $ 2,050,536
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment:

At January 1, 2014 .........cueene.e. $ 20,706 $ 43,579 $ 58,377 $ 132,214 $ 145,657 §$ - $ 400,533
Depreciation..........ccceceeeeereeenenne. 4,832 9,073 19,494 54,781 66,754 - 154,934
Disposals......ccceeveereereenieneee 22) - (244) (8,605) (1,252) - (10,123)
Effect of movements in

exchange rates ......ccccceeveeveennnn. 83 - 584 6,234 3,722 - 10,623
At December 31, 2014 ................ $ 25,599 $ 52,652 $ 78211 $ 184,624 $ 214,881 $ - $ 555967
Carrying amounts:
AtJanuary 1, 2014 .......ccceeneee. $ 92,586 $ 84,781 $ 208,570 $ 268,457 $ 378,998 $ 86,464 $ 1,119,856
At December 31, 2014 ................ 134,032 84,782 351,942 269,869 453,544 200,400 1,494,569
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Plant,
Pipelines Equipment &
Land & and Rolling Disposal Work in
Buildings connections Tanks Stock wells Progress Total

Cost:
AtJanuary 1, 2013 .......ccoeennenee. $ 94,698 $ 133,706 $ 266,925 $ 337,260 $ 439,645 $ 36,741 $ 1,308,975
Additions........cceeeeeiveeeniiieeeeinenn. 11,627 191 8,474 57,501 17,906 142,762 238,461
DisposalS.......ceeeervieniieeniieniienne - - (199) (6,844) (2,464) - (9,507)
Transfer to net investment in

finance leases (note 8)............... - - (15,905) - - - (15,905)
Reclassifications ........ccceeeeennneee. 6,109 (1,984) 15,722 5,132 68,289 (93,268) -
Change in decommissioning

provision (note 16) ..........ceueee. - (3,553) (8,844) - (8,183) - (20,580)
Effect of movements in

exchange rates.......c.ccceveveennennne. 858 - 774 7,622 9,462 229 18,945
At December 31, 2013 ................ $113,292 $128360 $ 266,947 $ 400,671 $ 524,655 $ 86,464 $ 1,520,389
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment:

AtJanuary 1, 2013 ......ccccovennenee. $ 15849 $ 34477 $ 42998 $ 88981 $ 8788 $ - $ 270,191
Depreciation.........ccceeeveevveenenennne. 4,829 9,102 15,285 46,160 58,478 - 133,854
DisposalS.......ceeeereiienieenreeiienne - - (83) (5,396) (1,696) - (7,175)
Effect of movements in

exchange rates.......c.ccceeeveerunennne. 28 - 177 2,469 989 - 3,663
At December 31, 2013 ................ $ 20,706 $ 43579 $ 58,377 $ 132,214 $ 145,657 $ - $ 400,533
Carrying amounts:
AtJanuary 1,2013.......cceevennee. $ 78,849 $ 99,229 $ 223,927 $ 248,279 $ 351,759 $ 36,741 $ 1,038,784
At December 31, 2013 ................ 92,586 84,781 208,570 268,457 378,998 86,464 1,119,856

Additions to property, plant and equipment includes capitalization of interest of $7.2 million and $2.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value includes $0.6 million and $2.3 million of assets capitalized under finance
lease, respectively.
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10 Long-term prepaid expenses and other assets

December 31,

2014 2013
Risk management assets (N0 28) ......c.eevueriiriiieienieniieieee ettt $ 34,855 $ 15,646
Long-term prepaid EXPENSES ........cccooueeuieiiirieniieiieie ettt 371 442
Defined benefit plan aSSets.........cocevieiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 989 1,058
ONET @SSELS ..eeeieiiieiiiiieeeeeeeeite e et e e e eeeee it treeeeeeeeebareeeeeeeestsbaeeeeeeeeaesssaseeeeeeaasreseeaeeeennees 3,563 2,494

$ 39,778 $ 19,640
11 Income tax
The major components of income tax are as follows:
Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013
Current tax provision
Current tax on incoOme fOr the YEAT..........ccvcveieriirierricieereeiereeie ettt $ 48,274 $ 51,339
Adjustments in reSPECt Of PrIOT YEATS.....ccuveerverrireeriieeitieerieeeteesteeeeeesreestreesereensnesnees 275 735
Total current tax ProviSion .............cccoociiiiiiiriiiriiieeieeceeere e 48,549 52,074
DEferred taX TECOVETY . .eieuriiiiiierieeiiieeiteetteerieeeteesbeesiteesteenateebaeesbeessbeessbeesaseesaseensnes (12,886) (10,848)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences........cc..ccoeceeviienciiiiiniiniecneennn. (75) (4,321)
Total deferred taX FECOVEIY...........cccviiiiiiiriieiieeeiie ettt e e esire e ee e et eeaeesebaeesaeenes (12,961) (15,169)
INCOME tAX PIOVISION . ..cutieutieiiietiertieteete st te st et et e eaeeste e et et e saee et enteentesseateeneeeneesseensean $ 35,588 $ 36,905

The income tax provision differs from the amounts which would be obtained by applying the Canadian statutory income tax

rate to income before income taxes. These differences result from the following items:

Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013

Income Defore INCOME LAXES. ....cccuviieeeiiieeiiieeeieeeeiteeeeereeeereeeeeereeeeeareeeesabaeeesreeeenans $ 127,529 $ 140,721

Statutory INCOME TAX TALE .eevvverereeireeiieeiteerteesteeetaeenteesbeesseessseessseessseesssesnseesnssessses 25.3% 25.2%

Computed INCOME taX PIOVISION ...veerurieriierieeeieeeieesreesreesreesteeesseesseessesssseesseenses 32,265 35,462

Increase (decrease) in income tax resulting from:

Foreign exchange loss on long-term debt, Net...........ceevvveerrierieesiieeiieenieenieeene 4,646 4,026

Foreign exchange 108S, Other.........cocceviiiiiiiniiniiiiiiceeeceteeecee e 4,704 2,995

NON-deductible EXPENSES ......eeriieririeriieeiieeieeerieerteerteeiteebeesbeesbeesareeseresaeeens 484 1,568

Stock based COMPENSALION ......ceeveeriieriieriienieerie ettt et e eiee s 3,533 2,091
NON-taXaADIE AIVIAEIAS ...vvvveiiiiiieeeeeieee et e e e naae e e e e e e eennaes (12,014) (11,159)

Rate differential on fOreign taXes ........cceveeeerierieriieieeiereee e 2,173 3,078
Other, including revisions in previous tax estimates and rate reductions ............ (203) (1,156)

$ 35,588 $ 36,905

Effective iINCOME tAX TALE ....cccuviiieiiiieeiiieeeeeie ettt e et e et e e e sae e e e eatr e e e aaeeeeaeneeas 27.9% 26.2%

(115 ()1 | AR STROR 48,549 52,074
DEFEITEM ... e et (12,961) (15,169)

$ 35,588 $ 36,905

The increase in the statutory rate was due to higher local income tax rates in Canada in the current year.

The income tax provision relating to actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefit obligation recognized in other

comprehensive income was $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, and 2013.
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The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

December 31,

Deferred tax asset to be settled after more than 12 months.............eevvvveeveeeveriennnnns $
Deferred tax asset to be settled within 12 moOnthS..............euvvvevveiveeeiiieiiieiiieieienenes

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months

Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months........c.cccooveeviiinenniinicnneen.

Deferred tax LHabilities (NEL) .....cvvvieviieirieeerieeree et ettt eetee e et eeere e e eeeeeteeeeaeeeeaeeens $

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

OPENING DAIANCE.......cveviriieiieiieiieieteetctese ettt ettt ettt st sae et eanene $
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates.........ccooueeveiriienieinieeniiiiniceseeeeceeeeen
Recognized on business combinations (NOLE 5) .......eeevveervueiriiieniieenieinieenieeeieeeieeeeens
Income Statement (TECOVETY) ..coueirrieriierieeniteeniteeiteeteeetee st e siteessteebeesbeesareesabeesaeeenns

Tax (credit) charge relating to components of other comprehensive income

ClLOSING DALANCE ...ttt ettt ettt st $

2014 2013
1,532 $ 4,487
2,000 3,700
3,532 8,187

172,851 184,605
18,500 9,500
191,351 194,105
187,819 $ 185918
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
185,918 $ 197,056
4,609 3,644
10,429 -
(12,961) (15,169)
(176) 387
187,819 $ 185918

The movement in the significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Non-capital Asset Retirement
losses carried retirement benefits
Deferred tax assets forward obligations obligations Other Total
AtJanuary 1, 2013 ..ccoiiiiiieiieeceeeeiee $ 22,271 $ 10,882 $ 2,062 $ 28,294 $ 63,509
Credited (charged) to the statement of
OPETALIONS...veenereeereerireeireenereeireesaeeeaeens (2,291) 1,360 (195) (6,066) (7,192)
Credited to other comprehensive income ..... - - (387) - (387)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . 1,513 269 - (1,186) 596
At December 31, 2013 .....cccceieiieiieieene. $ 21,493 $ 12,511 $ 1,480 $ 21,042 $ 56,526
Credited (charged) to the statement of
OPETALIONS....eeueveeireeiieeieeeeeeeieeeiee e (5,062) 1,006 (213) 9,350) (13,619)
Charged to other comprehensive income...... - - 176 - 176
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . 1,686 380 - 1,531 3,597
At December 31, 2014 .......cccvvevieeiieieennee. $ 18,117 $ 13,897 $ 1,443 $ 13,223 $ 46,680
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Accounting
Timing of Property, and tax
Partnership Plant and basis
Deferred tax liabilities Income Equipment differences Other Total
AtJanuary 1, 2013 ..cccoeiiiiieeieeceeeeieee $ (61,386) $(154,052) $ (43,434) $ (1,693) $(260,565)
Credited (charged) to the statement of
OPETALIONS...veeereeereeireeireerireeteeerieeeneens 13,918 2,243 4,507 1,693 22,361
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . - (4,240) - - (4,240)
At December 31, 2013 .....ccccvvviienieniienieene $ (47,468) $(156,049) $ (38,927) $ - $(242,444)
Credited (charged) to the statement of
OPEIAtIONS ...ceveeeeieeeenieeeienieenteeieeeeseeeeeas 14,606 1,412 11,285 (723) 26,580
Business combinations...........ccceecevveeeeieeennns - (10,429) - - (10,429)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . - (5,934) (1,272) (1,000) (8,206)
At December 31, 2014 .......cccoveieiiieeeiieees $ (32,862) $(171,000) $ (28,914) $ (1,723) $(234,499)

Income tax losses carry forward

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had losses available to offset income for tax purposes of $48.8 million and
$60.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2014, the Company has $1.3 million and $47.5 million of the losses available in
Canada and the United States, respectively that expire as follows:

DECEMBDET 31, 2030 ...eiiiiiiiieeiieee ettt et e e e e ettt e e e ee et e eeeeesea it ettt eesaana—teeeeeeseaatteeeeesannarateeeessananaaes $ 673
DTSy ol i N R 3 SRR 33,831
| D LTIy T i B N R 3 PRI 12,799
DECEIMDET 31, 2033 . oo et e e et et et e e e e e e e e e s e aaaaa——————————————————————————————————————————————tttatatatatatatatararaaanans 126
DECEMDET 31, 2034 ... oo et ee e et et e e et e e e e e e e aaa e e s aa———a——————————————————————————————————————taattatatatataaatataraaaaans 1,332

$ 48,761

No income tax liability has been recognized in respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries.
As no income taxes are expected to be paid in respect of these differences related to Canadian subsidiaries, the amounts have
not been determined. There are no taxable temporary differences associated with investments in non-Canadian subsidiaries.
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12 Intangible assets

Customer  Long-term Non-compete License and
Brands relationships Contracts agreements Technology Software Permits Total

Cost:
AtJanuary 1, 2014 ........ $ 50,465 $235096 $ 34,653 $ 23,368 $ 2,579 $27911 $ 3,448 $ 377,520
Additions........c.ceevueenne. - 754 - - - 19,498 - 20,252
Acquisitions through

business combinations

O L) D - 10,602 - 2,592 - - - 13,194
Effect of movements in

exchange rates............. 865 12,264 2,727 594 88 130 268 16,936

At December 31,2014.. § 51,330 $258,716 $ 37,380 $ 26,554 $ 2,667 $47,539 $ 3,716 $ 427,902

Accumulated
amortization:
At January 1, 2014 ........ $ 28,142 $101,478 $ 14,801 $ 17,468 $ 1980 $ 9,944 $ 1,312 $ 175,125
Amortization ................. 10,617 31,637 3,772 2,894 340 4,547 1,184 54,991
Effect of movements in
exchange rates............. 692 3,681 1,129 561 51 39) 174 6,249

At December 31,2014.. § 39,451 $136,796 § 19,702 $ 20,923 § 2371 $ 14452 $ 2,670 $ 236,365

Carrying amounts:

At January 1, 2014........ $ 22,323 $133,618 $ 19,852 $ 5900 $ 599 $17,967 $ 2,136 $ 202,395
At December 31, 2014.. 11,879 121,920 17,678 5,631 296 33,087 1,046 191,537
Customer  Long-term Non-compete License and
Brands relationships Contracts agreements  Technology Software Permits Total
Cost:
At January 1, 2013 ........ $ 49,881 $226,364 $ 32,712 $ 22945 $ 2,516 $19470 $ 3,074 $ 356,962
Additions.........ccccceeeee. - - - - - 8,333 162 8,495
Effect of movements in
exchange rates............. 584 8,732 1,941 423 63 108 212 12,063

At December 31,2013.. § 50,465 $235,096 $ 34,653 $ 23,368 $§ 2579 $27911 $ 3,448 $ 377,520

Accumulated

amortization:
AtJanuary 1, 2013 ........ $ 18,280 $ 70,900 $ 10,515 $ 13934 $ 1,651 $ 7,073 $ 171 $ 122,524
Amortization ................. 9,694 29,396 3,698 3,142 317 2,858 1,098 50,203
Effect of movements in
exchange rates............. 168 1,182 588 392 12 13 43 2,398

AtDecember 31,2013.. § 28,142 $101,478 § 14801 $ 17468 § 1980 $ 9,944 § 1,312 §$ 175,125

Carrying amounts:
At January 1, 2013........ $ 31,601 $155464 $ 22,197 $ 9,011 $ 865 $12,397 $ 2903 $ 234,438
At December 31, 2013.. 22,323 133,618 19,852 5,900 599 17,967 2,136 202,395
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13 Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Balance as at JANUATY 1 .....ccooooviiiiiiieiiiiciecce ettt ettt $ 726,148 $ 709,358
Additions through business combinations (NOLE 5) ....cccueevvveerciirriiienieenieenieeireeieesreesneens 33,989 -
Effect of changes in foreign eXchange rates.........cueevueeriieriiiiiieenieciie et 23,584 16,790
Balance as at DECEMDET 31 ......vviiiieeiiiieiie ettt ettt e e s eaaeeas $ 783,721 $ 726,148

The goodwill recorded on the balance sheet represents the excess of the cost of acquisitions over the fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Of the balance as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, $432.7 million, net of
impairment, relates to goodwill recognized on the acquisition of the Company by the wholly-owned subsidiary of R/C Guitar
Cooperatief U.A. (“Co-op”), a Dutch Co-op owned by investment funds affiliated with Riverstone Holdings LLC
(“Riverstone”), from Hunting PLC (“Hunting”) on December 12, 2008. Of the remaining balance, $314.0 million represents
additional goodwill recorded on acquisitions completed and $37.0 million relates to the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates recorded by the Company since December 12, 2008.

Goodwill is monitored for impairment by management at the operating segment level. The following is a summary of
goodwill allocated to each operating segment:
December 31,

2014 2013

Terminals and PiPEliNnes .........ccoeiirieiiieiieieeeeee ettt $ 200,120 $ 199,972
Environmental SEIVICES ........eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et eeeciee e e eeeetee e e e e e esatreeeeeeeesanaaeeeeeeeeannees 234,731 216,542
Truck TranSPOTTALION ......cevtieriiiiiieiieeite ettt sttt sttt e st e saaeesateesaeeeaees 54,474 51,388
Propane and NGL Marketing and DiStribution ..........ccceeveeecieeiiieniieeniienieeie e sieesveenene 133,177 97,027
Processing and Wellsite FIUIAS .......occuieriieiiieniieiecic ettt 117,664 117,664
IMATKEUINE . ...eeeivieeieeeitieete ettt ettt st e sttt et e et esabeeeabeesabeesabe e sseenseesasaesnseesnseesnseennsees 43,555 43,555
$ 783,721 $ 726,148

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on a fair value less costs of disposal calculation. This
calculation involves comparing the fair value of each operating segment to its carrying value, including goodwill, at
November 30, the annual impairment test date. To calculate a fair value, management uses an earning’s multiple approach. In
calculating earnings, the Company uses Board approved budgets to determine earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (“EBITDA”) by operating segment. Corporate expenses are allocated to the operating segments based on
assumptions such as expected usage and headcount. To determine fair value, an implied multiple was applied to each
operating segment’s EBITDA less corporate expenses. The implied multiple was calculated by looking at multiples of
comparable public companies by operating segment up to 12.7. For all operating segments, the fair value less costs of
disposal was greater than the operating segments carrying value, including goodwill. Accordingly, goodwill is not considered
impaired in the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. The fair value of each of operating segment was categorized as
Level 2 fair value based on the observables inputs.
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14 Loans and Borrowings
Revolving Credit Facility

On June 28, 2013, the Company established a revolving credit facility of up to $500.0 million (the “Revolving Credit
Facility™), the proceeds of which are available to provide financing for working capital and other general corporate purposes.
On August 20, 2014, the Company amended the Revolving Credit Facility to among other things, release all security required
by the lenders and to extend the maturity date from June 28, 2018 to August 15, 2019. The Company incurred debt financing
costs of $1.6 million and $2.1 million in the year ended December 2014 and 2013, respectively, which were capitalized as a
part of prepaid expenses and other assets.

The Revolving Credit Facility provides sub—facilities for letters of credit, swingline loans and borrowings in Canadian dollars
and U.S. dollars. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to Canadian Prime Rate or U.S.
Base Rate or LIBOR or Canadian Bankers Acceptance Rate as the case may be plus an applicable margin. The applicable
margin for borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility is subject to step up and step down based on the Company’s total
debt leverage ratio. In addition, the Company must pay a standby fee on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility
and customary letter of credit fees equal to the applicable margins based on the Company’s total debt leverage ratio.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain covenants including financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain
ratios of maximum senior debt leverage ratio of 3.5:1.0, maximum total debt leverage ratio of 4.0:1.0 and minimum interest
coverage ratio of 2.5:1.0. As at December 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Revolving
Credit Facility.

The Company has no amounts drawn against the Revolving Credit Facility as at December 31, 2014. The Company had
issued letters of credit totalling $57.5 million and $57.4 million as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.

Long-term debt

December 31,

2014 2013
U.S.$550.0 million 6.75% Notes due July 15, 2021 (December 31, 2013: U.S.$500.0
§1 011 15T} 1) FR SRR $ 638,055 $ 531,800
$250.0 million 7.00% Notes due July 15, 2020 .......cecerierieiieireeiieieieieeeee e 250,000 250,000
$300.0 million 5.375% Notes due July 15, 2022 .....ccoociiirieieieieiesesere e 300,000 -
Unamortized issue discount and debt 1SSUE COSES ...uvurururrrrrrrrrrrrrrrieereeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeens (22,687) (24,234)
Long-term debt: NON-CUITENE POTLION .....vevveviierieeirriietiiteseeresseseesesseseesesesessesseseseseesessesesss $ 1,165,368 $ 757,566

On June 28, 2013, the Company issued U.S.$500.0 million 6.75% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2021 at issue price of
98.476% and $250.0 million 7.00% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2020 at issue price of 98.633%. On June 12, 2014,
the Company issued U.S.$50.0 million 6.75% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2021 at issue price of 108% under its
existing indenture and issued $300.0 million 5.375% Senior Unsecured Notes due July 15, 2022 at issue price of par
(collectively, the “Notes”). Interest is payable semi—annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year the Notes are
outstanding.

The Company incurred and capitalized debt issue costs of $5.4 million and $14.1 million in the year-ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively. A portion of the proceeds from the Notes issued in 2014 was used to repay all outstanding
indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Notes agreements contain certain redemption options whereby the Company can redeem all or part of the Notes at prices
set forth in the respective indebtedness from proceeds of an equity offering or on the dates specified in the respective
indebtedness. In addition, the Notes holders have the right to require the Company to redeem the Notes at the redemption
prices set forth in the respective indebtedness in the event of change in control or in the event certain asset sale proceeds are
not re-invested in the time and manner specified in the respective indebtedness.
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The Notes contain non-financial covenants and customary events of default clauses. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company was in compliance with all of its covenants under the Notes.

Foreign exchange loss on long-term debt

As a result of the movement in foreign exchange rates, the Company recorded foreign exchange losses, net, on long-term
debt as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Foreign exchange loss on movement in exchanges rates on U.S. dollar long-term debt .... $ 52,000 $ 42451
Gain on financial instruments relating to long-term debt (note 28) ........cccceevveerveervennnnenn (16,569) (22,500)
$ 35,431 $ 19,951

Debt extinguishment costs

Concurrent with the completion of the issuance of the Notes and the establishment of the Revolving Credit Facility in 2013,
the Company terminated its previous senior secured first lien credit facility which comprised of the Tranche B Term Loan
facility of U.S.$650.0 million and a revolving credit facility of up to U.S.$375.0 million. As a result, the Company
recognised debt extinguishment costs of $38.2 million comprising unamortized debt issue costs of $22.8 million,
unamortized financial instrument liability discount of $10.0 million and unamortized financing costs of $5.4 million during
the year ended December 31, 2013.

Trade payables and accrued charges

Trade payables and accrued charges include the following items:

December 31,

2014 2013

TTAAE PAYADIES ....oviviivieeieiieiete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt sb et b et e e teeteebeeteessessessessessesbenrens $ 445,670 $ 456,955
Accrued compensation Charges.........c..occiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieece e 43,988 36,591
INdirect taxes PAYADIE .....ccc.eeiiiiiiiiiiieiieee e 3,157 1,980
Risk management liabilities (NOte 28) ......cccueiriiiriiiiiiiiieeie ettt 18,135 2,465
Broker accounts payable ...........c.coooiiiiiiiiiii e 183 2,610
Defined benefit plan Obligations ...........cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecee e 757 825
Interest Payable ......c..cooiiiiiiii e e e 36,892 27,894
Due to HUNtING (NOLE 1) c.uviiiiiiiiieiiieie ettt ettt sttt ire sttt e st e sabeesnbe e abeenenas 8,999 9,199
OBRET .. st 23,682 26,660
$ 581,463 $ 565,179
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Provisions

The aggregate carrying amounts of the obligation associated with decommissioning and site restoration on the retirement of
assets and environmental costs are as follows:

Year ended

December 31,

2014 2013
OPENING DAIANCE. ......cvovivieriiieietieieteetet ettt ettt ettt et s et et sete et et ete b e e ebe s eseebe s esssbensens $ 91,424 $ 111,197
SEUIEINEIILS ....veieiiiiee et eeiee e et e e ettt e e et e eeeateeeetbeeeesseeeessaeeesseeeesnsseesansseesasssaeennsseenannns (4,462) (3,305)
Assumed in a business cOmMbINAtiON (NOLE 5) .....vveveriuieeeriiiieeeiiieeeieeeeieeeerreeeeaeeeesereeeens 824 -
AQQITIONS ..ttt ettt ettt e et e et e e bt e e beesabeeesbeessseessaeessaeasseesssaessseessseassseesseanseeanss 4,152 2,032
Change in estimated future cash flOWS..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e 14,584 705
Change 1N diSCOUNE TALE .....cccuveeueiiiieeiee ettt ettt ettt eat e st e st e et e e btesbeesbeesareens 25,903 (23,317)
UnWinding Of diSCOUNL......ceiuttiitiiiiiieeiieriteete ettt ettt ettt ebeesbeesaeee s 2,898 3,380
Effect of changes in foreign eXchange rates..........ccocveverreriiinieneiniinieneeneeeeeeseeieeiene 1,024 732
ClOSING DALANCE ...ttt ettt ettt et b et b e e s et e aeeteeteessessassessessessensas $ 136,347 $ 91,424

The Company currently estimates the total undiscounted future value amount, including an inflation factor of 2.0%, of
estimated cash flows to settle the future liability for asset retirement and remediation obligations to be approximately
$265.7 million and $228.9 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In order to determine the current provision
related to these future values, the estimated future values were discounted using an average risk-free rate of 2.3% and 3.1% at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The provision is expected to be settled up to 40 years into the future. A one
percent increase in the risk-free rate would decrease the provision by $31.4 million, with a corresponding adjustment to
property, plant and equipment. A one percent decrease in the risk-free rate would increase the provision by $31.4 million,
with a corresponding adjustment to property, plant and equipment.

Other long-term liabilities

December 31,

2014 2013

Defined benefit plan ObliGAtiONS ........c.ccoereririiririeiinienceeeteeetetetere sttt e $ 5939 $ 6,086
Risk management liabilities (NOLE 28)......cccuieriiiiiieriieeiieeieeeieerte et et sve e s 8,269 5,046
Finance 1ease Habilities .........cccuiiiiiiiieiiiic ettt e e e et e e e eaaeeeeereeeen - 345
ONET ..ottt ettt e et e et e e et eeetae e etaeeetteeetaeeaeeebeeeasaeeabeeeaseenareeeabeeteean 602 4,010
$ 14,810 $ 15,487

Share capital
Authorized
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and preferred shares.

Holders of common shares are entitled to one vote per common share at meetings of shareholders of the Company, to receive
dividends if, as and when declared by the Board and to receive pro rata the remaining property and assets of the Company
upon its dissolution, liquidation or winding-up, subject to the rights of shares having priority over the common shares.

The preferred shares are issuable in series and have such rights, restrictions, conditions and limitations as the Board may
from time to time determine. The preferred shares shall rank senior to the common shares with respect to the payment of
dividends or distribution of assets or return of capital of the Company in the event of a dissolution, liquidation or winding up
of the Company. There were no issued and outstanding preferred shares as at December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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Common Shares - Issued and outstanding

The following table below sets forth the issued and outstanding common shares for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013.

Common Shares

Number of
Common
Shares Amount
Balance as at January 1, 2013 .....oooiiiiiiiieieeiee ettt sttt s s 120,123,530 $ 1,543,149
Issuance of common shares in connection with the exercise of stock options....................... 135,340 1,169
Issuance of common shares in connection with other equity awards..........ccecceevvveerieennennnen. 375,976 -
Issuance of common shares in connection with the dividend reinvestment and stock
AIVIAENA PIOZTAIMNS ...vveenirieniieiiieeiteeieeeiee et e st e st s e estte e bbeesbeesabeessseesnseessseessseensseenseean 1,565,346 37,389
Transfer from contributed surplus on issue of equity awards ..........c..cccceeeerienieniiiencnene. - 3,438
Balance as at December 31, 2013 ... 122,200,192 $ 1,585,145
Issuance of common shares in connection with the exercise of stock options...........cc.......... 580,145 5,942
Issuance of common shares in connection with other equity awards..............cccccocenieiiinene 436,783 -
Issuance of common shares in connection with the dividend reinvestment and stock
dividend PrOGIAMS .......c.cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt et 1,271,425 36,648
Transfer from contributed surplus on issue of equity awards .........cccoecveerceeerieereeniieesiieennnen. - 6,266
Balance as at December 31, 2014 ...oooeeieeeeeeeee e 124,488,545 $ 1,634,001

A dividend of $0.30 per share, declared in November 2014, was paid on January 16, 2015.

Commitments and contingencies

Commitments

Operating lease obligations primarily relate to office leases, rail tank cars, vehicles, field buildings, various equipment and

terminal services arrangements. These leases expire at various dates over the next 10 years. The minimum payments required
under these commitments, net of sub-lease income, are as follows:

20 LS et et e et e e ettt e e ee—aeeeatteeaataeeeataaeeiteaeaaaaeeeatbaeeeatteeeenabaeeeatteeeeaaraeeenaraeas $ 70,097
2016 oot e et e e e e et et e e a— e e e —aee ettt eaatbaeeeatbaaeeatbeeeaatbaeeeatbeeeatbaeeaaabaeeeatbeeeetraeeearaeas 63,688
20T ettt e e e— e e e eebeeeetbeeeaa—aeeeatbaaeaatbtteeaa—aaeaatbaeaantaeeeaabeeaeaatbeeeaabeeeaaaraeeanrraeans 55,645
20 L8 et e e e e e et ——eeeeeeeeet———eaeeeeaait———aaaeeeaai—rtteaeeeaartraaeaeeeaaiataaaaeeeaaatrraeeeeeaannarrees 48,757
2000 e e e et e e e e e e e e ———eeeeeeaa———eeaeeeaai——taaaaeeaattraaaaaeeaaiataaaaeeeaaatrraaaeeeaanaraees 38,766
2020 QI LALET........utiiieeee ettt eeeeet e e e e e eeetareeeeeeeeetaaaeeeeeeeabrabeaaeeeaaataaaaeaeeeaanrbaraaaeeeaanrtateeeeeeananrres 24,321

$ 301,274

Expenses related to operating leases, net of sublease income, were $39.6 million and $28.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

With respect to capital expenditures, at December 31, 2014, the Company had $409.1 million remaining to be spent that
relates to projects approved at that date.

Contingencies

The Company is currently undergoing income tax related and excise tax audits. While the final outcome of such audits
cannot be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these audits will not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

As a part of the acquisition of the Company by Riverstone from Hunting on December 12, 2008, Hunting has indemnified the
Company for the pre-closing period impact of these audits. Included in income tax receivable and trade payables and accrued
charges as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is $9.0 million and $9.2 million, respectively, whereby Hunting
paid the Company and the Company paid the tax assessments relative to certain of these audits. The Company has assumed
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that the remaining assessment amounts paid in connection with these audits will be refunded to the Company and although
the timing is uncertain, will be settled within a year.

The Company is subject to various regulatory and statutory requirements relating to the protection of the environment. These
requirements, in addition to the contractual agreements and management decisions, result in the recognition of estimated
decommissioning provisions. Estimates of decommissioning costs can change significantly based on such factors as
operating experience and changes in legislation and regulations.

The Company is involved in various legal actions, which have occurred in the ordinary course of business. Management is of
the opinion that losses, if any, arising from such legal actions would not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Revenue
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
PIOAUELES .o e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e etaeeeeeaaeeeeereeeeensneeeenns $ 7,507,013 $ 5,998,769
SEIVICES .uvtieeeeeeeeitieeeeeeeeeet et eeeeeee ettt e e e e eeeeettaaeeeeeeeeebbaaeeeeeeaassssaeeeeeaaasssaaeaaeeeaassssaeeseeaannens 1,066,516 941,900
$ 8,573,529 $ 6,940,669
Depreciation and amortization
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Depreciation of property, plant and €qUIPMENT.............ccccveieierierierierieseereere e e ereeenns $ 154,934 $ 133,854
Amortization of INtANZIDIE ASSELS .....cecueirriiiriiiiiieriierteee ettt 54,991 50,203
$ 209,925 $ 184,057

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible assets have been expensed as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
COSE OF SALES ettt ettt e e e e e e et e e s et e e eeaeeeseaeeesaateeesneeessaeeesaraeeeaas $ 205,043 $ 179,620
General and admMINISTIATIVE .....oooeeeieieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s aaaaaaaaaassaarasasssaeaeseeeseeeseeenes 4,882 4,437
$ 209,925 $ 184,057
Employee salaries and benefits
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
SAlArIeS ANA WAZES ....veeeeeieieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e bt e e este s bt e be e teeneesseesseeseentesneenns $ 292,188 $ 255,697
Post-employment BENEfits........c.coovuieriiiiiiiniiiiieeie ettt 6,394 5,568
Share based COMPENSAION ....cc..eeriierieiriiiinieeiie et etee sttt et et e e sbteebeesbeesbeesareesaeeenne 13,977 8,271
Termination DENETILS ......covveieieeeieiececce e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1,365 746

$ 313,924 $ 270,282
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Employee salaries and benefits have been expensed as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
COSE OF SALES ..ottt e e e e et e e e e e e e et e e e e e s sesnaaeeeeessennaaaeeeeeeans $ 280,730 $ 241,568
General and adMINISTIATIVE ...ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecee et eeeaaaeseaaeaaasaaaesssessssasssesesererererens 33,194 28,714

$ 313,924 $ 270,282

23 Other operating income

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Gain on sale of property, plant and €qUIPMENL .........coceervueeriiienieenieerieneeeee e $ 2,717 $ 1,029
Foreign eXchange Zain .........cccoocviiiiiiiiiiiiic e 9,128 5,547
$ 11,845 $ 6,576
24 Per share amounts
The following table shows the number of shares used in the calculation of earnings per share:
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Weighted average common shares outstanding - Basic .........cccceeiiiiiiiniiiiniinicnienen. 123,591,547 121,376,222
Dilutive effect of:
Stock options and Other AWATdS .........c.cceevieiriiriiiiniereceeeee et 2,004,643 1,708,187
Weighted average common shares — Diluted ...........ccooueeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceeeeee, 125,596,190 123,084,409

25 Related party transactions
Joint operations

On August 11, 2011, the Company formed a partnership (the ‘“Plato Partnership”) to jointly construct and own pipeline and
emulsion treating, water disposal and oilfield waste management facilities in the Plato area of Saskatchewan. The Plato
Partnership commenced operations in 2012. The Company’s interest in the Plato Partnership is 50%. A member of the
Company’s Board is also a director of the other party with the 50% interest in the Plato Partnership. At December 31, 2014
and 2013, the Company’s proportionate share of property, plant and equipment was $10.2 million and $10.5 million,
respectively. The impact of the Company’s share of the other financial position and results of the Partnership is not material
to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management

Key management includes the Company’s directors, executive officers, business unit leaders and other non-business unit
senior vice presidents. Compensation awarded to key management was:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Salaries and short-term employee benefits..........covvereriirierierieeiereeeeeeee e $ 7,597 $ 6,079
Post-employment Benefits..........cocooiuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,068 817
Share based COMPENSATION ....cc.ueeruiiirieiriiiirite ettt ettt ettt et st e st esbeesareesaneenee 4,639 2,696
$ 13,304 $ 9,592

70



Gibson Energy Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where noted)

26 Post-retirement benefits
Defined benefit plans

The company maintains a funded defined benefit pension plan and an unfunded defined benefit other post-retirement benefits
plan (“OPRB”).

The Company’s defined benefit pension plans are funded based upon the advice of independent actuaries. The Company is
required to file an actuarial valuation of its pension plans with the provincial regulator every three years, with the most recent
actuarial valuation filing as at December 31, 2012. Based on the actuarial valuations as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
status of the defined benefit plans was as follows:

Accrued benefit obligation
Year ended
December 31,

2014 2013
Pension OPRB Pension OPRB
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year...........cccoceeeeieieieieiecienennn. $ 15,187 $ 3,605 $ 14,736 $ 3,996
CUITENE SETVICE COS.uuvriiiiiiiiieiirieeeeieeeeeteeeeireeeeereeeesreeeesereeeesaseeeenareeens 212 135 323 506
INEETESE COSE.uviiiiuiiiiieiiie ettt et ete e et e e et e e eeata e e e eave e e e ateeeeaneas 674 156 558 155
Benefits PAIA ....ccvevveeverieeiieiieieiieieietei ettt (518) (287) (500) (261)
Actuarial 0SS (ZAIN) ...cccueerrueiriiiiriieiieerie ettt 773 452 56 (791)
(01111 SO 14 - 14 -
Accrued benefit obligation, end Of Year ..........ccceceveevierinienieeeeeeceeene $16,342 $ 4,061 $ 15,187  $ 3,605
Plan assets
Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Pension OPRB Pension OPRB
Fair value of pension plan assets, beginning of year.............cc.cccevevververvennenn. $ 12939 §$ - $ 11,107 $ -
Interest ON Plan @SSELS .....cecvveereeerrieririeeieerieerteerieeeieeebeeereeeereesreenanees 536 - 394 -
ACTUAL CONIIDULIONS ...vvvvviiiiiiiiiieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e 1,211 287 1,142 261
Actual benefits Paid ........cecveeviieeiiieiiierieecieee e (518) (287) (500) (261)
ACTUATIAL ZATN...eeiiieiiieiieeiie ettt ere e e e st st e e e e 528 - 796 -
Fair value of pension plan assets, end of Year...........ccccoeveieievierreeeereeeennns $ 14,606 $ - $ 12939 §$ -

Accrued benefit liability

December 31,

2014 2013
Pension OPRB Pension OPRB
Accrued benefit Obligation ...........oceevveiiiiiriiiiniieeeeee e $ (16,342) $ (4,061) $ (15,187) $ (3,605)
Fair value of plan assets ...........cccooviiriiiiiiiiniinieiceeeeeeee e 14,696 - 12,939 -
Accrued benefit Tability.......ccecveverieirieieirieieeieieeecee e $ (1,646) $ (4,061) $ (2,248) $(3,605)
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The significant weighted average actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Company’s post-retirement benefit
obligation are as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
DIESCOUNE TALE ..nentieititeeiteite ettt ettt ettt ettt et et s bt e sb e beeatesbeesbee bt eateebeesbee bt entesanenbeenbeens 4.00% 4.75%
Rate of COMPENSALION TNCTIEASE ....eevveeiieeiieeiieiiieeitteriteeiteerteeeteesbeesabeeesaaeetaesbaessseesasaesnseessssesses 4.00% 4.00%
Health care cost trend rate fOr NEXE YEAT ........cc.oeoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeee e e e 7.0% 7.0%

Assumed discount rate and health care cost and trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for defined benefit plan
obligations. A one-percentage point change in discount rate and assumed health care cost and trend rates would have the
following impact:

One % point One % point

increase decrease
Discount rate effect on defined benefit plans Obligations ..........ceecveervierieriiieerieeniie e $ (2,939) $ 3,079
Health care cost and trend rates effect on OPRB ............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiice e, 571 (450)

Defined contribution pension plan

The Company operates defined contribution plans whereby, in some cases, contributions made by participants are matched
by the Company up to specified annual limits and in other cases, contributions are fully funded by the Company. The total
expense recorded for the defined contribution pension plans was $6.2 million and $5.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Share based compensation

The Company has established an equity incentive plan which permits the award of stock options, RSUs, PSUs’ and DSUs for
executives, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. RSUs give the holder the right to receive a cash payment,
subject to consent of the Board, or its equivalent in fully paid common shares equal to the fair market value of the
Company’s common shares at the date of such payment. The RSUs granted in 2014 and 2013 were expected to be settled by
delivery of common shares and accordingly, were considered an equity—settled award for accounting purposes. RSUs granted
generally vest over a three year period. RSUs granted with specific performance criteria are designated as PSUs. DSUs are
similar to RSUs except that DSUs may not be redeemed until the holder ceases to hold all offices, employment and
directorships.

At December 31, 2014, awards available to grant under the equity incentive plan totalled approximately 8.6 million.
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A summary of stock options activity under the equity incentive plan is as follows:

Weighted-

Average

Number of Exercise Price

Shares (in dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2013.....cccuii ittt sttt sttt e b e e aaeeaaeenees 1,294,142 $ 8.66
(€571 1111 KRR U R T UTTTTR 798,233 25.87

)25 S (& 1=« PO RO UP PRSPt (135,340) 8.64
FOTTRILEA. ...t e ettt e e eta e e e ta e e e eatr e e eeataeeesatseeeeareeennnns (28,050) 24.88
Balance at December 31, 2013, ... i e 1,928,985 16.22
GIANTEA ..ot e e e e e e e e e e et e e e et e e e et e e e et eeeenaaeeeenneas 1,159,259 28.72

25 ) (ed 1 PR UPRTUURSIN (580,145) 10.24
FOTTRILEA. ... e e e et e e e e e eeareeeeeaaeeeenns (22,884) 25.94
Balance at December 31, 2014 ........ocoouiiieieeeieeeeeee ettt ettt 2,485,215 $ 23.33
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2014 ........cc.oviviiiiieiiiiieeeee et 847,530 $ 15.03
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2013........oooiiiiiiiiiieeee e 1,076,097 $ 9.33

Additional information under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan regarding stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2014
is as follows:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted-

Weighted Average Average
Remaining Exercise Remaining Exercise
Contractual Life Price Number Contractual Price
Number Outstanding (Years) (in dollars) QOutstanding Life (Years) (in dollars)
537,132 4.0 $ 8.64 537,132 4.0 $ 8.64
4,750 3.6 16.10 4,750 3.6 16.10
33,681 4.4 20.67 19,547 4.4 20.67
40,164 4.5 22.03 26,776 4.5 22.03
21,930 5.5 24.44 7,310 5.5 24.44
688,299 5.2 25.94 204,761 5.2 25.93
1,076,412 6.2 28.28 16,103 6.2 28.28
82,847 6.6 34.44 31,151 6.6 34.44

2,485,215 5.4 847,530 4.5

A summary of RSUs, PSUs and DSUs activity is set forth below:

Number of Shares

RSUs PSUs DSUs
Balance at January 1, 2013 ...coociiiiiiiiiieeee e 870,038 76,276 44,956
Granted ........cccvvieeiiiieeeeiiee ettt ee e e e e e e e e area s 246,604 155,478 50,065
FOITEILEA. .....uvvveeieieeeeeeee et e (15,145) (6,504) -
ISSUCA ..o e e e (373,886) (2,090) -
Balance at December 31, 2013 ...ouuviiieiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeieieiiieeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeees 727,611 223,160 95,021
Granted ........cccvvieeiiiiieeeiiee ettt e e ee e e e e aae e e area s 270,308 438,590 52,955
Issued for common Shares.........ccccccvvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiii (429,526) (7,257) -
FOIfeited. .....ooiieiiieeieee e e e (22,012) (24,542) (1,190)
Issued fOr Cash ......cccuivieeiii i (1,628) (992) -
Balance at December 31, 2014 .....vvvvevieieieieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeieeveveeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeees 544,753 628,959 146,786
Vested, Balance at December 31, 2014 ........cccoeieiiiiieciiiieiieeeieeeeas 110,652 - 146,786
Vested, Balance at December 31, 2013 .....ouvveiiiiiviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeieievivenenens 114,345 - 73,599

Stock based compensation expense was $14.0 million and $8.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and is included in general and administrative expenses.
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The fair value of the options granted was estimated at $2.46 per option and $2.40 per option for the year ended December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The fair value of options was calculated by using the Black-Scholes model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
Expected dividend Tale.........coecuiiiiieniieiiieie ettt sttt ste et e sbeeebeessbeesabeesaeeenaneenns 4.3% 4.0%
EXPECted VOIAtIIILY .o..veeeiieiiieeiieiieete ettt ettt ettt e st eebe e snbe e aneenbneeanasane 19.5% 20.2%
RISK-TTEE INTEIESE TALE ..euveeierierrieriiierie ettt eiteeiee st e et este e tte e bteebeessbaesaseessseesnseensseensnesnne 1.2% 1.2%
Expected life Of OPtiON (YEAIS).....c.uieruiiriieeiieeiienieerieesteerieeesieeebeesteeseteesaeensseensreeseeens 3.0 3.0

The fair value of RSUs, PSUs and DSUs was determined using the five days weighted average stock price on the date of
grant.

Financial instruments
Non-Derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, net investment in
finance lease, trade payables and accrued charges, amount borrowed under the credit facilities, dividends payable, and long-
term debt.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables and accrued charges, dividends payable and amount
borrowed under the credit facilities are recorded at amortized cost which approximates fair value due to the short term nature
of these instruments.

Long-term debt is recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method of amortization. As at December 31, 2014,
the carrying amount of long-term debt was $1,188.1 million less debt discount and issue costs of $22.7 million and the fair
value of long-term debt based on period end trading prices on the secondary market (Level 2) was $1,193.6 million. As at
December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of long-term debt was $781.8 million less debt discount and issue costs of $24.2
million and the fair value of long-term debt based on period end trading prices on the secondary market (Level 2) was $805.9
million.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset if the Company has the current legal right to offset and intends to settle on a net
basis or settle the asset and liability simultaneously. The following table provides a summary of the Company’s offsetting
trade and other receivables and trade payables and accrued charges:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Trade payable Trade payable

Trade and other and accrued Trade and other and accrued

receivables charges receivables charges

GIroSS AMOUNLS......cvveeivreeereeeeteeereeeeteeeeaeeereeereeeneeas $ 430,794 $ 417,337 $ 560,256 $ 529,789
Amount OffSet .......c.eeveiiiiieeiiieiie e (316,703) (316,703) (409,636) (409,636)

Net amount included in the consolidated
financial Statements ............c.oeeevveevveeeeereereeenneanes $ 114,091 $ 100,634 $ 150,620 $ 120,153
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Derivative financial instruments (recurring fair value measurements)

The following is a summary of the Company’s risk management contracts outstanding:

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

CommOdity fULUTES .....ceevieieiiieie et $ 4,850 $ 490 $ - $ 336

COMMOILY SWAPS...eeuvreeurieeiierieenteenreenireerieesbeesseesseessseenes 13,847 16,928 1,095 1,914

ComMMOILY OPLIONS ...vvverevrreireeieerieenreenreeieeereeeseesreesreenes - - 13 -

Foreign currency forwards .........cccoeeveevveenieniieennieenieenieennenn 34,860 717 15,651 215

Foreign currency Options ........ccceeecveercveeriveenveenveenieessneessneenns - 8,269 7 5,046

TOLAL ..o e $ 53,557 $ 26,404 $ 16,766 $ 7,511
Less non-current portion:

Foreign currency forward contracts ..........cceceeeveenevennen. 34,855 - 15,646 -

Foreign currency Options ........cceeceereveenieenveeneeenveenneenns - 8,269 - 5,046

34,855 8,269 15,646 5,046

CUTTENE POTTION ....evevevieeeeveee ettt e teteee et eeseseseseesesereanenas $ 18,702 $ 18,135 $ 1,120 $ 2465

The fair value of financial instruments are classified as a non-current asset (long-term prepaid expense and other assets) or
liability (other long-term liabilities) if the remaining maturity is more than 12 months and, as a current asset or liability, if the
maturity is less than 12 months.

(@

(ii)

Commodity financial instruments
WTI Futures, options and swaps

The Company enters into crude oil futures, options and swap contracts to manage the price risk associated with sales,
purchases and inventories of crude oil, natural gas liquids and petroleum products.

Natural Gas Liquids (“NGL”)

The Company enters into NGL swap contracts to manage the risk associated with sales, purchases and inventories of
NGLs.

Currency financial instruments

The Company enters into forward and options contracts to buy and sell U.S. dollars in exchange for Canadian dollars to
fix the exchange rate on its estimated future net cash inflows denominated in U.S. dollars and long-term borrowings
denominated in U.S. dollars.

U.S. Dollar Forwards

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had U.S. dollar forward contracts to buy U.S. dollars on a notional
amount of U.S.$250.0 million and U.S.$260.0 million, respectively, at a weighted average rate of $1.0242 for U.S.$1.00
expiring on September 15, 2017. In June 2014, the Company received cash of $0.7 million on the settlement of U.S.
dollar forward contracts for a notional amount of U.S.$10.0 million. Following the repayment of Tranche B Term Loan
on June 28, 2013, the Company received cash of $11.6 million on the settlement of U.S. dollar forward contracts for a
notional amount of U.S.$238.0 million.

U.S. Dollar Options

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had sold U.S. dollar options at a strike price of $1.295 for U.S.$1.00
on a notional amount of U.S.$250.0 million and U.S.$260.0 million, respectively, expiring on September 15, 2017. In
June 2014, the Company paid cash of $0.1 million to settle U.S. dollar options for a notional amount of U.S.$10.0
million. Following the repayment of Tranche B Term Loan on June 28, 2013, the Company paid $0.2 million to settle
U.S. dollar options for a notional amount of U.S.$15.0 million.
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Interest Rate Swap

In the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company entered into a U.S. dollar interest rate swap to hedge a portion of the
Company’s U.S. dollar floating interest rate exposure on the Company’s long-term debt. The swap effectively fixed the
interest rate on U.S.$175.0 million of the principal at 5.5% for a three year period beginning in September 2012.
Following the repayment of Tranche B Term Loan on June 28, 2013, the Company paid $2.7 million to settle the U.S.
dollar interest rate swap.

Interest Rate Floor

The Tranche B Term Loan carried an interest rate of Adjusted LIBOR plus 3.75%, subject to a minimum Adjusted
LIBOR floor of 1.0%. This interest rate floor was considered an embedded derivative as the floor rate exceeded the
market rate of interest at the time that the debt was incurred and modified. As a result, the interest rate floor derivative
was separated from the carrying value of long-term debt and accounted for as a separate financial liability measured at
fair value. Following the repayment of Tranche B Term Loan on June 28, 2013, the Company derecognized the interest
rate floor financial instrument liability discount and accordingly, recognized a gain in financial instrument relating to
interest expense of $17.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2013.

The value of the Company’s derivative finance instruments are determined using inputs that are either readily available in
public markets or are quoted by counterparties to these contracts. In situations where the Company obtains inputs via quotes
from its counterparties, these quotes are verified for reasonableness via similar quotes from another source for each date for
which financial statements are presented. The Company has consistently applied these valuation techniques in all periods
presented and the Company believes it has obtained the most accurate information available for the types of financial
instrument contracts held. The Company has categorized the inputs for these contracts as Level 1, defined as observable
inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2 defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are
either directly or indirectly observable; or Level 3 defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists
therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Company used the following techniques to value financial instruments categorized in Level 2:

The fair value of commodity options and swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on the difference between contract price and commodity price forecast.

The fair value of foreign currency options and forward contracts is determined using the forward exchange rates at the
measurement date, with the resulting value discounted back to present values.

The fair value of financial instrument contracts by fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2014 was:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets from financial instrument contracts
CommOdity fULUIES ....cc.eevieiieeieiieieee et $ 4,850 $ 4,850 $ - $ -
CommOdity SWAPS ....cooueeiieiiiieniieiiere et 13,847 - 13,847 -
Foreign currency forwards.........ccccoeceeveenenvienienenneninennens 34,860 - 34,860 -
Foreign currency Options ........c.cceveeveereeneeneeneenienneneennens - - - -
TOLAL ASSEES . veveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeee et e e et eeeeeeesesaeeaens $ 53,557 $ 4,850 $ 48,707 $ -
Liabilities from financial instrument contracts
CommOdity fULUIES .......coveeverierierierieieeieeieeeee et $ 490 $ 490 $ - $ -
COMMOAILY SWAPS .eovvveeerieriieriiienieeniteeieeeieesreessreesveenaeens 16,928 - 16,928 -
Foreign currency forwards.........ccccoeceeveevennienicnennennneneens 717 - 717 -
Foreign currency Options .......cc.cceveeeereeneeneeneennenneneennens 8,269 - 8,269 -
Total HabilitieS........veeeeeuriiieiiie et e e $ 26,404 $ 490 $ 25914 $ -
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The fair value of derivative financial instrument contracts by fair value hierarchy at December 31, 2013 was:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets from financial instrument contracts
COMMOMILY SWAPS ..c.veuvvineeeiriiienirieietestetetesieneeeeseese e $ 1,095 $ - $ 1,095 $ -
CommoOdity OPHONS ......eevieiiiieiieiiererrene e 13 - 13 -
Foreign currency Options .......coc.eeveeerieeeneeeenieeneeenieeneennne 7 - 7 -
Foreign currency forwards.............coceoieiiiiiniininiinicnnn, 15,651 - 15,651 -
TOLAl ASSELS ..vvviiiieeieiieee et e s $ 16,766 $ - $ 16,766 $ -
Liabilities from financial instrument contracts
ComMMOUILY SWAPS ....veuvemrereientinieniinieneereeeeeeereeenenseneennes $ 1914 $ - $ 1914 $ -
CommOdity fUUIES ....cevvveerieriierieere et 336 336 - -
Foreign currency Options .......cc.ceveeeereenieeneenieenrenveneennens 5,046 - 5,046 -
Foreign currency forwards.........ccocooceeveenenvenicneenenniennens 215 - 215 -
Total Habilities ....ceoververreriieieeienierieetceeeeeeeve e $ 7,511 $ 336 $ 7,175 $ -

The impact of the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments has been expensed in the consolidated
statement of operations as follows:

Year ended
December 31,
2014 2013
COSE OF SALES ..veeeiieiiieiieeiee et e ettt et e et e e teeebeeesbeesabeessaeessbeeseeasseesssaassseesssaensseesaeenseeas $ (1,883) $ 622
Foreign exchange gain on long-term debt (N0t 14) .....ccceeviiiriiiniiiniiniiieieeeeeeeeieee (16,569) (22,500)
Gain on financial instrument relating to interest EXPENSe ..........cecuerverreerreerrereereeneenuennnes - (18,252)
$ (18,452) $ (40,130)

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to certain financial risks, including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, commodity
price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management strategy seeks to reduce potential adverse effects
on its financial performance. As a part of its strategy, both primary and derivative financial instruments are used to hedge its
risk exposures.

There are clearly defined objectives and principles for managing financial risk, with policies, parameters and procedures
covering the specific areas of funding, banking relationships, interest rate exposures and cash management. The Company’s
treasury function is responsible for implementing the policies and providing a centralised service to the Company for
identifying, evaluating and monitoring financial risks.

a) Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks arise from future transactions and cash flows and from recognized monetary assets and liabilities that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the Company’s operations.

The exposure to exchange rate movements in significant future transactions and cash flows is managed by using foreign
currency forward contracts and options. These financial instruments have not been designated in a hedge relationship. No
speculative positions are entered into by the Company.
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Foreign currency exchange rate sensitivity

If the Canadian dollar strengthened or weakened by 5% relative to the U.S. dollar and all other variables, in particular interest
rates remain constant, the impact on net income and equity would be as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013

U.S. Dollar Forwards and Options

Favorable 5% Change..........c.vovuiiiiiiniieiieeste ettt ettt siae e ire et esbaesasee s $ 3,223 $ 5,063

Unfavorable 5% Chan@e ..........c.covvieiuieeiiieiiieeiieceeeie ettt st ete e sbeesaeesebeesaneenes (3,223) (5,260)
U.S. Dollar long-term debt Forwards and the related Options

Favorable 5% Change ...........coceoveiiieieinieieeeee ettt $ 10,694 $ 11,566

Unfavorable 5% Change ............covuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeteee ettt (10,694) (11,566)

The movement is a result of a change in the fair value of U.S. dollar forward contracts and options. The sensitivity relating to
the Company’s long-term debt includes the change in the carrying value of the Company’s U.S. dollar denominated long-
term debt, the U.S. dollar forward contracts on the principal and the related U.S. dollar call options.

The impact of translating the net assets of the Company’s U.S operations into Canadian dollars is excluded from this
sensitivity analysis.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market interest rates. As
a result of the repayment of Tranche B Term Loan on June 28, 2013, the Company settled the interest rates swap and
derecognized its interest rate floor financial instrument liability discount, and accordingly, the Company no longer has
exposure to changes in market interest rates as at December 31, 2014 relating to these financial instruments.

c) Commodity price risk

The Company is exposed to changes in the price of crude oil, NGLs, oil related products and electricity commodities, which
are monitored regularly. Crude oil and NGL priced futures, options and swaps are used to manage the exposure to these
commodities’ price movements. These financial instruments are not designated as hedges. Based on the Company’s risk
management policies, all of the financial instruments are employed in connection with an underlying asset/liability and/or
forecasted transaction and are not entered into with the objective of speculating on commodity prices.

The following table summarizes the impact to net income and equity due to a change in fair value of the Company’s
derivative positions because of fluctuations in commodity prices leaving all other variables constant, in particular foreign
currency rates. The Company believes that a 15% volatility in crude oil and NGL related prices is a reasonable assumption.

December 31,
2014 2013
Crude oil and NGL related prices
Favorable 15% Change .........c.coceevuieriieiieieeieeeee ettt st $ 5,634 $ 3,082
Unfavorable 15% Change ..........cooueiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieteeeete et (5,634) (3,004)

d) Credit risk

The Company’s credit risk arises from its outstanding trade receivables, including receivables from customers who have
entered into fixed term contractual arrangements to have dedicated use of certain of the Company’s tanks. A significant
portion of the Company’s trade receivables are due from entities in the oil and gas industry. Concentration of credit risk is
mitigated by having a broad customer base and by dealing with credit-worthy counterparties in accordance with established
credit approval practices. The Company actively monitors the financial strength of its customers and in select cases has
tightened credit terms to minimize the risk of default on trade receivables.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, approximately 6% and 4%, respectively, of net trade receivables are past due but not
considered to be impaired. The Company considers trade receivables as past due when it is 30 days past the due date. The
maximum exposure to credit risk related to trade receivables is their carrying value as disclosed in these financial statements.
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The Company establishes guidelines for customer credit limits and terms. The Company review includes financial statements
and external ratings when available. The Company does not usually require collateral in respect of trade and other
receivables. The Company provides adequate provisions for expected losses from the credit risks associated with trade
receivables. The provision is based on an individual account-by-account analysis and prior credit history.

The Company is exposed to credit risk associated with possible non-performance by financial instrument counterparties. The
Company does not generally require collateral from its counterparties but believes the risk of non-performance is low. The
counterparties are generally major financial institutions or commodity brokers with investment grade credit ratings as
determined by recognized credit rating agencies.

The Company’s cash equivalents are placed in time deposits with investment grade international banks and financial
institutions.

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. This risk relates
to the Company’s ability to generate or obtain sufficient cash or cash equivalents to satisfy these financial obligations as they
become due. The Company’s process for managing liquidity risk includes preparing and monitoring capital and operating
budgets, coordinating and authorizing project expenditures and authorization of contractual agreements. The Company may
seek additional financing based on the results of these processes. The budgets are updated with forecasts when required and
as conditions change. Sufficient funds and the Revolving Credit Facility are available to satisfy the Company's requirements
over the next 12 months, and are expected to be available to satisfy the Company’s long term requirements. The Company
has a Revolving Credit Facility of $500.0 million and at December 31, 2014, no amount was drawn against the facility other
than outstanding issued letters of credit.

The terms of the Notes and Revolving Credit Facility require the Company to comply with certain covenants. If the Company
fails to comply with these covenants the lenders may declare an event of default. At December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

Set out below is maturity analyses of certain of the Company’s financial contractual obligations as at December 31, 2014.
The maturity dates are the contractual maturities of the obligations and the amounts are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows.
On demand or Between one After
within one year and five years five years Total
Trade payables and accrued charges, excluding
derivative financial instruments and accrued
TIIERTESE «evveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et et et et et e eeeeeeeeeseneeneeneen $ 526,436 $ - $ - $ 526,436
Dividend payable ............ccoceiiiiiiiiniiniiiceeee, 37,346 - - 37,346
Long-term debt...........ooeeiiniinieiieeeeeeee e - - 1,188,055 1,188,055
Interest payment on long-term debt .............c.cce....e. 76,694 306,776 213,177 596,647
Commodity futures .........ccccceevevienieienieneeneeeeeee. 490 - - 490
Commodity SWAPS......ccoveecuieiiniieiieieeieneese e 16,928 - - 16,928
Foreign currency forwards and options...................... 717 8,269 - 8,986
$ 658,611 $ 315,045 $1,401,232 $ 2,374,888

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing its capital structure are to maintain financial flexibility so as to preserve the
Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations and to finance internally generated growth as well as potential
acquisitions.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company considers its capital structure to include shareholders' equity,
long-term debt, the Revolving Credit Facility and working capital. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may raise debt or issue equity and/or adjust its capital spending to manage its current and projected debt levels.

79



Gibson Energy Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where noted)

29

Financing decisions are made by management and the Board based on forecasts of the expected timing and level of capital
and operating expenditure required to meet the Company’s commitments and development plans. Factors considered when
determining whether to issue new debt or to seek equity financing include the amount of financing required, the availability
of financial resources, the terms on which financing is available and consideration of the balance between shareholder value
creation and prudent financial risk management.

Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet), less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as net debt plus share capital as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

December 31,
2014 2013
Total financial liability BOITOWINGS........c..ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 1,165,368 $ 757,566
Less: cash and cash €qUIVALENLS ........coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiic et (131,911) (97,182)
D[S A (<] o PRSP 1,033,457 660,384
Total Share CaPItal ........cocueiiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt ettt 1,634,001 1,585,145
TOtal CAPILAL.........o.ooviiieieieieeeeeeeeeeeec ettt ettt ettt ettt ene s eneenens $ 2,667,458 $ 2,245,529

If the Company is in a net debt position, the Company will assess whether the projected cash flow and availability under the
Revolving Credit Facility is sufficient to service this debt and support ongoing operations.

Segmental information

The Company has defined its operations into the following operating segments: (i) Terminals and Pipelines,
(ii) Environmental Services, (iii) Truck Transportation, (iv) Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution, (v) Processing
and Wellsite Fluids and (vi) Marketing.

Terminals and Pipelines include fee-based storage and terminalling services and tariff-based pipeline services for
crude oil, condensate and refined products. The Company owns and operates major storage terminals located at
Edmonton and Hardisty, which are the principal hubs for aggregating and exporting oil and refined products out of the
Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin; pipelines, which are connected to the Hardisty Terminal; and injection stations,
which are located in the United States.

Environmental Services includes the provision of environmental and production services such as emulsion treating,
water disposal services and oilfield waste management, exploration support services and accommodation facilities to
the oil and gas industry.

Truck Transportation includes provision of hauling services for crude oil, condensate, propane, butane, asphalt,
methanol, sulfur, petroleum coke, gypsum, emulsion, waste water and drilling fluids for customers in Western Canada
and the United States.

Propane and NGL Marketing and Distribution includes an industrial propane distribution operation and a
wholesale business that includes wholesale propane distribution and an NGL marketing business. The industrial
operation sells propane to oil and gas, commercial and residential customers, while the wholesale operations sell to
larger customers who are not usually end users of the product.

Processing and Wellsite Fluids includes the refining of crude oil and marketing of a variety of products, including
road asphalt, roofing flux, frac oils, light and heavy straight run distillates and tops.

Marketing includes, purchasing, selling, storing and blending of crude oil and condensate, providing aggregation
services to producers and earning margins through quality or time-based arbitrage opportunities.

These operating segments of the Company have been derived because they are the segments (a) that engage in business
activities from which revenues are earned and expenses are incurred; (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to each segment and assess
its performance; and (c) for which discrete financial information is available. No operating segments were aggregated to
arrive at the reportable segments.
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Inter-segmental transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. No margins are recognized on inter-segmental transactions.

Accounting policies used for segment reporting are consistent with the accounting policies used for the preparation of the

Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Propane Corporate &
& NGL other
Year ended Terminals & Environmental Truck Marketing &  Processing & reconciling
December 31, 2014 Pipelines Services Transportation Distribution Wellsite Fluids Marketing balances Total
Statement of operations
Revenue - external and
inter-segmental ........ $ 157,969 $ 431,153 $ 557,735 $1,352,741 $ 667,793 § 7,005,045 $ - $10,172,436
Revenue - inter-
segmental................. (60,869) (62,243) (62,645) (162,105) (193,022) (1,058,023) - (1,598,907)
Revenue - external ........ 97,100 368,910 495,090 1,190,636 474,771 5,947,022 - 8,573,529
Segment profit............... 116,524 100,273 83,178 70,271 51,675 65,180 - 487,101
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment. 33,667 54,901 37,405 14,157 12,346 271 2,187 154,934
Amortization of
intangible assets....... 1,957 24,318 13,039 7,374 4,985 622 2,696 54,991
General and
administrative .......... - - - - - - 37,385 37,385
Stock based
compensation........... - - - - - - 13,977 13,977
Corporate foreign
exchange gain .......... - - - - - - 3,912) (3,912)
Interest expense............. - - - - - - 67,598 67,598
Interest income............... - - - - - - (832) (832)
Foreign exchange loss on
long-term debt.......... - - - - - - 35,431 35,431
Income tax provision..... - - - - - - 35,588 35,588
Net income ........c.ceune. $ 80,900 $ 21,054 $ 32,734 $ 48740 $ 34344 $ 64,287 $(190,118) $ 91,941
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Propane Corporate &
& NGL other
Year ended Terminals & Environmental Truck Marketing &  Processing & reconciling
December 31, 2013 Pipelines Services Transportation  Distribution Wellsite Fluids Marketing balances Total
Statement of operations
Revenue - external and
inter-segmental ........ $ 132,144 $ 325,059 $ 532,490 $1,151,206 $ 611,097 $5,580,040 $ - $8,332,036
Revenue - inter-
segmental................. (50,884) (24,836) (56,155) (160,500) (174,275) (924,717) - (1,391,367)
Revenue - external......... 81,260 300,223 476,335 990,706 436,822 4,655,323 6,940,669
Segment profit............... 95,613 83,094 83,674 62,277 48,720 83,004 - 456,382
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment. 26,503 42,820 36,146 10,337 15,838 263 1,947 133,854
Amortization of
intangible assets....... 2,011 22,646 12,541 6,296 3,541 678 2,490 50,203
General and
administrative .......... - - - - - - 34,664 34,664
Stock based
compensation........... - - - - - - 8,271 8,271
Corporate foreign
exchange gain .......... - - - - - - (4,226) (4,226)
Interest expense............. - - - - - - 53,458 53,458
Gain on financial
instruments relating to
interest expense........ - - - - - - (18,252) (18,252)
Interest income............... - - - - - - 471) 471)
Foreign exchange loss on
long-term debt.......... - - - - - - 19,951 19,951
Debt Extinguishment..... - - - - - - 38,209 38,209
Income tax provision..... - - - - - - 36,905 36,905
Net income (10s$) .......... $ 67,099 $ 17628 $ 34987 $ 45644 $ 29341 $ 82,063 $(172,946) $ 103,816

The breakdown of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, including through business combinations, by
operating segment are as follows:

December 31
2014 2013

Property, Property,
plant and Intangible plant and Intangible
equipment Assets equipment Assets
Terminals and Pipelines.........ccccecereenienieriieneeninienicnecieeieeeee $ 224,401 $ 1,971 $ 105,061 $ 27276
Environmental Services .........ccccveivuiiriieniieiieeiieeee e 76,761 1,281 59,213 978
Truck TranSPOTtatioN .........ccueerveereerieniieieeeenitenee et neeeie e 42,469 3,670 51,146 2,356
Propane & NGL Marketing & Distribution..........ccccceceeveeneenennee. 98,060 14,251 12,930 462
Processing & Wellsite Fluids ...........ccocoociiiiiiiiiniiiie 20,065 77 8,083 109
COorporate & OLhET .......coceiiieiriiiiiiirieee et 9,568 12,196 2,028 2,314
$ 471,324 $ 33,446 $ 238,461 $ 8,495

82



Gibson Energy Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(tabular amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except where noted)

30

31

Geographic Data

Based on the location of the end user, approximately 18% and 21% of revenue was from customers in the United States for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company’s non-current assets, excluding investment in finance leases and deferred tax assets, are primarily concentrated
in Canada with 27% and 32% in the United States at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Subsequent Events

On January 31, 2015, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Littlehawk Enterprises Ltd.
(“Littlehawk™) for approximately $8.2 million, subject to the final purchase price adjustments. Littlehawk is a private
Canadian company which operates hydrovac units that specialize in hydro excavation, pressure testing and water hauling for
the construction and energy industries. The initial accounting for the acquisition is not complete and is pending the final
assessment of working capital in accordance with the acquisition date balance sheet at January 31, 2015, as well as
determining fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

On March 3, 2015, the Company announced that the Board declared a quarterly dividend of $0.32 cents per common share
for the quarter ending March 31, 2015 on its outstanding common shares. The common share dividend is payable on April
17, 2015 to shareholders of record at the close of business on March 31, 2015.

Principal subsidiaries

The Company had the following subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014:

Proportion

of

ordinary

Country of shares

incorporation owned by

and place of the

Name business Nature of business Company
A&A Tank Truck Co. USA Trucking and Waste Disposal 100%
All-Clean Fluids and Filtration Services Ltd. Canada Oil and Drilling Fluids 100%
B.E.G. Liquid Mud Services Corp. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Cal-Gas Inc. Canada Industrial propane 100%
Canwest Propane Partnership Canada Industrial propane 100%
Canwest Propane ULC Canada Industrial propane 100%
Chief Hauling Contractors ULC Canada Trucking Services 100%
GEP ULC Canada Trucking and Storage 100%
Gibson (U.S) Acquisition Corp. USA Holding Company 100%
Gibson (U.S) Finco Corp. USA Holding Company 100%
Gibson (U.S) Holdco Corp. USA Holding Company 100%
Gibson Energy (US) Inc. USA Wholesale petroleum products 100%
Gibson Energy Inc. Canada Holding Company 100%
Gibson Energy Marketing , LLC USA Wholesale petroleum products 100%
Gibson Energy Partnership Canada Trucking and Storage 100%
Gibson Energy Sask Ltd. Canada Trucking and Storage 100%
Gibson Energy ULC Canada Holding Company 100%
Gibson Energy, LLC USA Transportation 100%
Gibson Energy ULC Pension Plan Canada Pension Fund 100%
Gibson Finance Ltd. Canada Holding Company 100%
Gibson Gas Liquids Partnership (Alberta) Canada Wholesale propane 100%
Gibson Gas Liquids ULC Canada Wholesale propane 100%
Gibson GCC Inc. Canada Inactive 100%
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Proportion of

Country of ordinary

incorporation shares owned

and place of by the

Name business Nature of business Company
Gibson Offshore, LLC. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Griswold Management, Inc. USA Inactive 100%
Industrial Lift Truck & Equipment Co, Inc. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Keeton Services, Inc. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Link Petroleum Inc. USA Wholesale propane 100%
Link Petroleum Services Ltd. Canada Inactive 100%
Moose Jaw Refinery Partnership Canada Fluids and refining 100%
Moose Jaw Refinery ULC Canada Fluids and refining 100%
OMNI Energy Seismic Services, LLC USA Oil & Gas Seismic Services 100%
OMNI Energy Services Corp. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
OMNI Energy Transportation Corp USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
OMNI Labor Corporation USA Inactive 100%
OMNI Properties Corp. USA Inactive 100%
Plato Services Partnership Canada Waste Disposal Services 50%
Preheat, Inc. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Rig Tools, Inc. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
Stittco Energy Ltd. Canada Industrial propane 100%
Stittco Utilities Man Ltd Canada Industrial propane 100%
Stittco Utilities NWT Ltd Canada Industrial propane 100%
Taylor Transfer Services, LLC USA Transportation 100%
TPG Leasing, LLC USA Rental and Leasing 100%
TPG Transport, LLC USA Transportation 100%
Trussco, Inc. USA Oil & Gas Support Services 100%
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this annual
report constitute forward-looking information
and statements (collectively “forward-looking
statements”). These statements relate to future
events or the Company's future performance.
All statements other than statements of
historical fact are forward-looking statements.
The use of any of the words “anticipate”,
“plan”, “contemplate”, “continue”, “estimate”,
“expect”, “intend”, “propose”, “might”, “may”,
“will”, “shall”, “project”, “should”, “could”,
“would”, “believe”, “predict”, “forecast”,
“pursue”, “potential” and “capable” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-
looking statements. These statements involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors that may cause actual results
or events to differ materially from those
anticipated in such forward-looking statements.
No assurance can be given that these
expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements included in this
annual report should not be unduly relied upon.
These statements speak only as of the date of
this annual report.

With respect to forward-looking statements
contained in this annual report, assumptions
have been made regarding, among other things:

= future growth in worldwide demand for
crude oil and petroleum products;

= crude oil prices supporting increased
production and services in North America,
including the Canadian oil sands and off-shore
North America, including the Gulf of Mexico;

= fluctuations in commodity prices, including
crude oil prices, and supply and demand
trends, due to factors beyond the
Company'’s control;

= no material defaults by the counterparties
to agreements with the Company;

= the Company's ability to obtain qualified
personnel, owner-operators, lease
operators and equipment in a timely and
cost-efficient manner;

= the regulatory framework governing
taxes and environmental matters in
the jurisdictions in which the Company
conducts and will conduct its business;

= operating costs;

= future capital expenditures to be made by
the Company;

= the Company'’s ability to obtain financing for
its capital programs on acceptable terms;

= the Company'’s future debt levels and
ratings on the Company's debt;

= the impact of increasing competition on the
Company.

Actual results could differ materially from
those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of numerous risks

and uncertainties including, but not limited

to, the risks described in “Risk Factors” and
“Forward-Looking Statements” included in the
Company's AIF dated March 3, 2015 as filed on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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